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CORPORATE INFORMATION

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

10th Floor Cosco Tower
Grand Millennium Plaza
183 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN
ISLANDS

Second Floor, Century Yard

Cricket Square

P.O. Box 902

Grand Cayman

KY1-1103

Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Chong Hing Bank Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN
ISLANDS

Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited
Second Floor, Century Yard

Cricket Square

P.O. Box 902

Grand Cayman

KY1-1103

Cayman Islands

STOCK CODE
1469

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.getnicefg.com.hk

(Information on the website does not form part of this annual report)
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Get Nice
Financial Group Limited (the “Company”), I hereby present the
annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020.

OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s revenue
amounted to approximately HK$369.4 million, representing a
decrease of 8.0% as compared with approximately HK$401.6
million reported in the last corresponding financial year. The
slight decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to the decrease
in brokerage commission with less turnover during the year.
Operating expenses such as commission expenses and settlement

expenses were generally in line with the revenue.

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$139.7 million (2019: HK$133.0 million).
The increase in profit was mainly attributable to the decrease in
finance costs and loss on redemptions of convertible bonds, net
of the increase in recognition of impairment loss on accounts
receivable from margin clients during the year. The Group
recorded imputed interest expenses arising from convertible
bonds issued in September 2017 of HK$31.2 million during the
year (2019: HK$96.7 million). Loss on redemptions of HK$38.9
million were recorded upon redemptions of convertible bonds of
total principal amounts of HK$262.5 million in prior year, no
such loss was recorded during the year. The Group recorded net
impairment losses on accounts receivable from margin clients of
HK$110.9 million (2019: HK$20.1 million) in current year.

Basic earnings per share for the year were HK6 cents (2019: HK5

cents) as a result of increase in profit during the year.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Market Review

Hong Kong stocks market started to climb since the beginning
of 2019 as the representatives of both China and the United
States expressed optimism about the trade negotiations. With
US-China trade truce, continued economic growth in the
US, and reaccelerated momentum in Chinese economies, the
investors were generally optimistic and Hang Seng Index reached
the year high of 30,280 points on 15 April 2019. However, the
US President suddenly announced that the trade negotiations
broke down, causing Hong Kong stocks market to fall sharply
since the end of April 2019.

In the third quarter of 2019, US-China trade war was heating up
and the political events in Hong Kong have destroyed investors’
confidence in the stock market. The trade restrictive measures
imposed by the two countries on each other were escalated,
causing economic losses to the economic systems of the two
countries, while at the same time increasing the trade costs
and markets uncertainty globally. Affected by the US-China
trade war, the exchange rate of the renminbi continued to be
weak, which caused the further decline of the Hong Kong
stock market. On the other hand, the market’s concern about
the slowdown of China’s economic activity has deepened the
pessimism mood of the investment market. Due to the continued
trade conflicts with the US and weak domestic demand, China’s
economic growth has slowed to its lowest level in recent years
and Hong Kong has once again fell into a technical recession

since the financial tsunami in 2009.

At the end of 2019, a turnaround occurred and China and the
United States reached a first-stage trade agreement which China
agreed to double purchase of various products from the United
States in the next two years and the United States agreed to
reduce the tariff on China’s imported goods, caused Hong Kong

stocks market to rebound.

In the first quarter of 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak spreads
globally, caused disruptions in various business segments across
the world and investors retreated from risky assets to hold cash.
The plunge of asset prices and oil prices triggered panic sale and

liquidity crunches globally.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

With fears and pessimisms caused by the outbreak of COVID-19
and concerns regarding global economy, the Hang Seng Index
closed at 23,603 points at the end of March 2020, a decrease
of 18.8% as compared with 29,051 points at the end of March
2019. The average daily turnover on the Main Board and
GEM during the year ended 31 March 2020 was approximately
HK$92.2 billion, a decrease of 4.4% as compared with
approximately HK$96.4 billion for the prior financial year.

Business review
Broking and securities margin financing

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the broking business
posted a profit of approximately HK$4.0 million (2019:
HKS$17.7 million). The operating result of the broking business
decreased by 77.4% as a result of the decrease in our broking
turnover and number of sizeable corporate finance transactions
during current year. The decrease in broking turnover was
affected by the volatile local stock market and negative global
investment atmosphere. Revenue from broking for the year
decreased by 25.8% to approximately HK$43.9 million (2019:
HK$59.2 million) as compared with last financial year, of which
approximately HK$6.8 million (2019: HK$12.7 million) was
contributed by the underwriting, placing and proof of funds
business. The decrease in these fee incomes was due to the
decrease in number of deals as a result of the less active capital

market during the current year.

Securities margin financing remained to be the Group’s
major revenue contributor for the year. During the year, total
interest income from securities margin financing dropped by
4.4% to approximately HK$325.2 million (2019: HK$340.3
million) with the decrease in average level of securities margin
lending during the year. Total gross accounts receivable from
margin clients at 31 March 2020 amounted to approximately
HK$3,692.3 million (as at 31 March 2019: HK$3,732.6
million). Net impairment loss on margin clients receivable of
HK$110.9 million was charged during the current year (2019:
HK$20.1 million). The Group will continue to maintain a
balance on yield relative to risk and cautious approach to the

credit control of its margin financing business.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Corporate finance

The Group’s corporate finance business focused on the provision
of financial advisory services to listed companies in Hong
Kong. During the year ended 31 March 2020, it completed 2
financial advisory transactions (2019: 5). The operation reported
a segment profit of approximately HK$0.2 million for the year
(2019: HK$1.5 million).

Outlook

Disruption to business operations and logistics due to
COVID-19 seriously affected many industries, the impact will
probably last for a period of time. Economic activities will not
fully resume until the crisis is under control. Countries along the
“Belt and Road” were also affected and China’s investment in
these countries’ infrastructure development was also slow down.
At the same time, the potential restart of US-China trade war
brought further uncertainties to the global trade environment.
It is expected that the overall economy and the stock market in

Hong Kong may tend to be weak.

In the future, the business environment of the Group will
continue to be competitive. The increasing regulatory
requirements such as the recent effected guidelines for securities
margin financing activities issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission brought further compliance-related and
system-related costs to the Group which may impact the cost

efficiency and earnings growth of the Group.

Dealing with the future challenges, the management of the
Group would review and adjust business strategies on regular
basis with a prudent and balanced risk management approach.
The management of the Group remains cautiously optimistic
about the business development and overall performance of
the Group in the future. The Group is endeavoring to render
comprehensive services to our affluent and high-net-worth clients
in order to maintain our clients’ confidence and loyalty. Given
our lean and efficient organization structure, stable clients base,
strong track record and solid business fundamentals, the Group
is poised to expand its horizons and scale new heights in the

years to come in order to continue maximising returns and value

for all shareholders.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

Equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$3,931.5 million as at 31 March 2020 (2019:
HK$3,965.8 million), representing a decrease of approximately
HK$34.3 million or 0.9% over that of last financial year end.
The decrease was mainly attributable to the profit for the year
net of dividend distributed.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s net current assets amounted
to HK$3,810.7 million (2019: HK$3,845.6 million), and its
liquidity as represented by current ratio (current assets/current
liabilities) was 8.88 times (2019: 3.67 times). The increase
in current ratio was mainly due to the decrease in liability
component of convertible bonds as the convertible bonds were

matured during the year.

Bank balances and cash on hand amounted to HK$260.9 million
(2019: HK$422.9 million). The decrease in bank balances and
cash on hand was mainly due to the cash outflows in respect of
the redemptions of convertible bonds of HK$262.5 million.

The Group had no bank borrowings as at 31 March 2020 (2019:
HK$nil) and its unutilised banking facilities as at the end of
the year were approximately HK$905 million (2019: HK$905
million), which were mainly secured by charges over the Group’s
clients’ pledged securities, a property owned by a subsidiary of
the Company and corporate guarantees issued by the Company.
The liability component of convertible bonds issued by the
Company amounted to HK$233.5 million as at 31 March
2019, the amount was fully redeemed due to maturity during
the year. The Group’s gearing ratio (total borrowing over equity
attributable to owners of the Company) as at 31 March 2020 was
zero (2019: 0.06).

The number of issued shares of Company amounted
to 2,500,000,000 shares as at 31 March 2020 (2019:
2,500,000,000 shares).

The business activities of the Group are not exposed to any

significant exchange risks.

The Group had no material contingent liabilities at the end of

the year.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Charges on Group Assets

As at 31 March 2020, leasehold land and building of the Group
with a carrying amount of HK$102.8 million (2019: HK$105.5
million) were pledged for a banking facility granted to the

Group.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries,

Associates and Jointly Controlled Entities

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates or jointly controlled entity completed during the year
ended 31 March 2020.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had 59 (2019: 59) full time
employees. The Group’s employees were remunerated according
to their performance, working experience and market conditions.
The total amount of remuneration cost of employees of the
Group for the year was HK$19.9 million (2019: HK$18.9
million). The Group provides employee benefits including
mandatory provident fund, discretionary share options and

performance bonus to its staff.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors recommended a final dividend of HK2 cents per
share, together with the interim dividend paid during the year,
amounting to total dividends of HK5 cents per share for this

financial year.

The final dividend will be payable on or about 10 September
2020 to sharcholders of the Company whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 1 September 2020.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed on the
following time periods during which no transfer of shares of the

Company will be registered:

For attendance to 2020
Annual General Meeting

19 August 2020 - 24 August 2020,

both dates inclusive

For entitlement to final dividend 31 August 2020 - 1 September 2020,
both dates inclusive (Record date being

1 September 2020)

In order to qualify for attendance to the Company’s 2020
Annual General Meeting which is scheduled to be held on 24
August 2020, Monday and/or entitlement to the final dividend,
all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s registrar, Tricor Secretaries
Limited of Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on the

following dates:
Events Last date of lodgment of transfer documents

For attendance to 2020 Annual 18 August 2020, Tuesday

General Meeting

For entitlement to final dividend 28 August 2020, Friday

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I wish to express my gratitude to our
customers and shareholders for their continued support. I would
also like to thank your all our directors, the management team

and staff members for their hard work and dedicated service.

By Order of the Board

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Hung Hon Man

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2020
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie, aged 74, was appointed as our
executive Director and managing director on 24 September
2015. He is primarily responsible for the securities broking
and securities margin financing business. Before completion of
the spin-off of the Company from Get Nice Holdings Limited
(“GN Holdings”), Mr. Shum was the managing director and an
executive director of GN Holdings since its listing in June 2002
until his resignation on 7 April 2016. Mr. Shum has over 33

years of experience in the securities business.

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan, aged 50, was appointed as our executive
Director on 24 September 2015. He is also our chief executive
officer. Mr. Hung is primarily in charge of our Group’s overall
corporate strategy and the daily operations of our Group,
including business development and overall management.
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan joined GN Holdings in August 2000.
Mr. Hung is also a responsible officer under the SFO for the
regulated activity “advising on corporate finance”. He is also
currently an independent non-executive director of Silver Base
Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 886), the issued shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan holds a bachelor of science degree from
the University of Hong Kong and is a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Hung is a nephew of Mr. Hung Hon

Man, our non-executive Director and the chairman of our Board.

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Hung Hon Man, aged 66, was appointed as our Director
on 31 August 2015 and was re-designated as our non-executive
Director on 24 September 2015. He was appointed as the
chairman of our Board on 16 March 2016 and is a member of
both the remuneration and nomination committees. Mr. Hung
Hon Man is also the chairman and chief executive officer of GN
Holdings and the founder of GN Holdings. He is responsible
for the formulation of corporate strategy and the envisaging the
future direction of GN Holdings. He possesses over 25 years
of experience in the securities industry in Hong Kong. Being
the non-executive Director and chairman of the Company,
Mr. Hung Hon Man takes a consultative and supervisory role
in matters concerning the Group and is not involved in the

day-to-day management of the Group.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS - continued
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Ng Yau Kuen, Carmen, aged 44, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 16 March 2016. She is
also the chairman of the remuneration, nomination and audit
committees. Ms. Ng had worked at PricewaterhouseCoopers
Hong Kong for 14 years in the Financial Services Assurance
Department. Since leaving PricewaterhouseCoopers, she has
been a certified public accountant (Practising). Ms. Ng holds a
bachelor’s degree of business administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong; and a master’s degree of business
administration and a master’s degree of laws in corporate and
financial law from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology and the University of Hong Kong, respectively.
Ms. Ng is currently a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. She is also an independent
non-executive director of Simplicity Holding Limited (stock
code: 8367) and KOALA Financial Group Limited (stock code:
8226). All of the above companies are listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. She is also an independent
non-executive director of IEV Holdings Limited, a company

listed on the Singapore Exchange.

Mr. Cheung Chi Kong, Ronald, aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 16 March 2016. He has
been involved in the financial and securities industries for over
20 years and has extensive experience working in mutual funds,
securities brokerage and insurance brokerage financial services
business with financial institutions in Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung
is currently a chief executive of PC International (HK) Limited
and responsible officer of PC Securities Limited. He holds
a bachelor’s degree in mathematics from the University of

Waterloo.

Mr. Chan Ka Kit, aged 50, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 16 March 2016. He has been involved
in the financial and insurance industries since 2001 and has
extensive operational and management experience in mutual
funds and insurance brokerage financial services business with
financial institutions in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is currently
an associate director of AMG Wealth Management Limited.
Mr. Chan holds an executive master’s degree in business

administration and is a Certified Financial Planner.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Ng Hon Sau, Larry, aged 51, is a responsible officer and

a director of our major subsidiaries namely Get Nice Securities
Limited (“GNS”) and Get Nice Futures Company Limited
(“GNFCL”). Being the Group’s chief operating officer, Mr. Ng
is primarily responsible for supervising the securities and futures
broking and securities margin financing businesses. Mr. Ng
joined GN Holdings in July 2001. He has had over 27 years of
experience in the financial industry, with 25 years in securities
and futures and several years in corporate banking. Mr. Ng holds
a bachelor of science degree in finance from California State

University, Fresno located in the United States.

Mr. Cheng Wai Ho, aged 56, is a responsible officer and a
director of our major subsidiaries namely GNS and GNFCL.
Mr. Cheng takes up the management role in the supervision of
the human resources department of the Group. He also oversees
our overall implementation of registration procedures to ensure
all relevant staff are properly registered under the SFO. Prior to
joining GN Holdings, he had been a dealing director of three
other securities firms for more than six years. He is a member of

Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute.

Mr. Ko Yat Fei, aged 30, is the financial controller of the
Group and company secretary of the Company. He has more
than 8 years of experience in accounting, auditing and corporate
advisory. He is responsible for managing finance and compliance
matters within the Group. Mr. Ko is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He holds a
bachelor’s degree in commerce (honours) in accounting from

Hong Kong Shue Yan University.

Mr. Kam Wing Ho, aged 41, and is the head of information
technology department of our Group. He is responsible for the
development and supervision of the information technology
system of our Group. He joined GN Holdings in January 2011.
He has over 15 years working experience in the information and
technology field. Mr. Kam holds degree of bachelor of science

from Victoria University, Australia.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
March 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. This is with the
view of being a transparent and responsible organisation which
is open and accountable to the Company’s shareholders. The
Directors believe that good corporate governance practices are
increasingly important for maintaining and promoting investors’

confidence.

An explanation of how the principles of the Corporate
Governance Code were put into practice during the year ended
31 March 2020 is set out below.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
COMPLIANCE

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board is of
the opinion that the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
titled “Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report” (the “Code”).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board provides leadership, approves policies, strategies and
plans, and oversees their implementation to further the healthy
growth of the Company, in the interests of its shareholders.
The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, financial information, appointment of

Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the chief executive officer
(“CEO”) and the senior management. The delegated functions
and work tasks are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval
must be obtained from the Board prior to any significant

transactions entered by the abovementioned officers.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued

The Board has the full support of the senior management to
discharge its responsibilities. In addition, the Board has also
established three Board Committees and has delegated various

responsibilities to them as set out in their terms of reference.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises six members, half of
these Directors are non-executive and independent of the
management. The Board is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising the
Group’s affair. The Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience appropriate and diversity of perspective for the
requirements of the Group’s businesses. As at the date of this
annual report, two of the Directors are executives, namely, Mr.
Shum Kin Wai, Frankie (Managing Director) and Mr. Hung Sui
Kwan (CEO), one of them is non-executive Director, Mr. Hung
Hon Man (Chairman of the Board, Member of Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee) and three of them
are independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Ng Yau
Kuen, Carmen (Chairman of Audit Committee, Remuneration
Mr. Chan Ka Kit

(Member of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and

Committee and Nomination Committee),

Nomination Committee), and Mr. Cheung Chi Kong, Ronald
(Member of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and

Nomination Committee).

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board has at all times
met the requirements of rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors and at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related

financial management expertise.
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BOARD COMPOSITION - continued

Each of the Directors’ respective biographical details is set out in

the “Biographical details of Directors and senior management”
of this annual report. The Board members have no financial,
business, family or other relationships with each other save for
that Mr. Hung Sui Kwan (CEO) is the nephew of Mr. Hung

Hon Man (Chairman of the Board and non-executive Director).

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board has at all times
adopted the board diversity policy. It sets out the approach to
achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance
its effectiveness. The Company endeavors to ensure that the
Board has the appropriate balance of skills, experience, expertise
and diversity of perspectives. The appointments of board
members will continue to be made on merit basis, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity of the Board. Pursuant to the board
diversity policy, the Company seeks to achieve board diversity
through the consideration of several factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, culture and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The Board will set up and review the measurable objectives from
time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the

progress made towards achieving those objectives.

The Board has revised and adopted the board diversity policy
on 26 April 2019 and will review from time to time the
implementation of the policy, as appropriate, to ensure its

continued effectiveness.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify its Directors and officers against liabilities arising
from corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
on an annual basis ensuring that the Directors and officers are

adequately protected against potential legal liabilities.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as directors of the
Company and the conduct, business activities and development

of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion of
his appointment. This is to ensure the new employee possesses
an appropriate understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and has full awareness of Director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory

requirements.

Directors are expected to participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains

informed and relevant.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, relevant reading
materials including regulatory updates and seminar handouts
have been provided to the Directors for their reference and

studying.
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EXRERWME
CORPO

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND

RATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EERIREXRRE-&

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT - continued
A summary of their records of training during the financial year A BB BE Y B I R sk AN T

is as follows:

Training on corporate
governance, regulatory
development and other

relevant topics
FRLXER
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HiEBEEE 2353
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie A G ek v
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan T B 31 515 A v
Non-Executive Director FHITESE
Mr. Hung Hon Man e A 4
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIAFHITES
Ms. Ng Yau Kuen, Carmen SR 2 1 v
Mr. Chan Ka Kit Wi R A5 S A 4
Mr. Cheung Chi Kong, Ronald RAETLIEA v
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD PRACTICES

Pursuant to the Code provision A.1.1, the Board should meet
regularly, and board meetings should be held at least four times
each year to discuss the Group’s business development, operation
and financial performance. Notice of at least 14 days is given to
all Directors for all regular Board meetings to give all Directors
an opportunity to attend. All regular Board meetings adhere
to a formal agenda in which a schedule of matters is addressed
to the Board and all Directors have the opportunity to include
matters in the agenda for Board meetings. All Directors have
access to Board papers and related materials and are provided
with adequate information which enables the Board to make an
informed decision on the matters to be discussed and considered
at the Board meetings. Minutes of Board meetings are kept
by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any

reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

To facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors are free
to have full and timely access to the management for enquiries
and to obtain all relevant information and the Directors can seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at

the Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

During the year, all Directors have been provided with monthly
updates by the Group’s management, giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance, position,
recent developments and prospects in sufficient detail to keep
them abreast of the Group’s affairs and facilitate them to
discharge their duties under the relevant requirements of the

Listing Rules.
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EXRERWME
CORPO

BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE
MEETINGS

During the year, 8 Board meetings and 2 general meetings have
been held. Directors may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications. Details of the attendance

of the Directors in the meetings are as follows:

RATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EXERESEZEEER
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Audit  Nomination Remuneration

Board committee committee committee AGM EGM

EZe ENZEE REZEE FMZEE RREFAE RRHAAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Shum Kin Wai Frankie SRELE 6/8 NARER  NARER  NAREHA 0/ 11
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan s b 8/8  NAREM  NARER  NARER 11 01
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Hung Hon Man HELE 718 NIARHER 22 303 11 11
Independent Non-Executive Directors 1§ UFHTES
Ms. Ng Yau Kuen, Carmen RAEL A 8/8 212 212 313 1/1 /1
Mr. Chan Ka Kit RS 8/8 22 22 313 1/1 11
Mr. Cheung Chi Kong, Ronald R LA 8/8 20 22 303 11 11

The Company Secretary of the Company is responsible for
keeping minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings.
Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for comment
within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version

is open for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or a Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board
at a duly convened Board meeting. The Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles”) also contains provisions requiring
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such

Directors or any of their associates have a material interest.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

All Directors were appointed for fixed term of three years
commencing from 7 April 2020. They are subject to retirement

by the rotation under the provision of the Articles.

According to the Article 108(a), at each annual general meeting
of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from

office by rotation.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Ms.
Ng Yau Kuen, Carmen and Mr. Cheung Chi Kong, Ronald will
retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-

election.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. All
the Directors have confirmed, following a specific enquiry by the
Company that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code during the year.

The Company has adopted written guidelines, “Code for
securities transactions by relevant employees”, on no fewer
exacting terms than the Model Code for securities transactions
by relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of

unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the written guidelines by the

employees was noted by the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of the Company’s Chairman and CEO are
complementary, but importantly, they are distinct and separate

with a clear division of responsibilities.

Mr. Hung Hon Man (Chairman), provides leadership and
is responsible for the effective functioning of the Board in
accordance with good corporate governance practice. With
the support of the senior management, the Chairman is also
responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner and

appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings.

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan (CEO), focuses on implementing
objectives, policies and strategies approved and delegated by
the Board. He oversees the Company’s day-to-day management
and operations. He is also responsible for developing strategic
plans and formulating the company practices and procedures,
business objectives, and risk assessment for the Board’s approval.
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan is a nephew of Mr. Hung Hon Man, the
Chairman of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment at the

Board meetings and scrutinising the Group’s performance.

Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decisions,
in particular, they bring an impartial view to bear on issues of
the Group’s strategy, performance and control. All independent
non-executive Directors possess extensive academic, professional
and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advices to the Board. The
independent non-executive Directors provide independent advice
on the Group’s business strategy, results and management so that
all interests of Shareholders can be taken into account and the

interests of the Company and its Sharcholders can be protected.

During the year, the Board (at all times) met the minimum
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors, and complied
with the requirement that these should include one such Director
with appropriate professional qualifications of accounting or
related financial management expertise. Ms. Ng Yau Kuen,
Carmen has the appropriate professional qualifications and

experience in financial matters required.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS - continued

Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing Rules, the Company
has received a written confirmation from each of the independent

non-executive Director of his/her independence to the Company.

The Board considers that the three independent non-executive
Directors are independent in character and judgement and they
also meet the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY
The Company has adopted a dividend policy that, in

recommending or declaring dividends, the Company shall
maintain adequate and sufficient cash reserves for future growth.
The Board has the full discretion to declare and distribute
dividends to the Shareholders, and any final dividend for a
financial year will be subject to Shareholders’ approval. In
proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account, among other things, the Group’s general financial
position, capital and debt level, future cash requirements and
availability of business operations, business strategies and future
development needs, any restrictions on payment of dividends
and any other factors the Board may consider relevant. Any
payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the Articles and all applicable laws and

regulations.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The overall management of the Group’s operation is vested in
the Board. The Board takes overall responsibility to oversee
all major matters of the Group, including the formulation and
approval of all policy matters, overall strategic development of
the Group, monitoring and controlling the Group’s operation
and financial performance, internal control and risk management
systems, and monitoring of the performance of the senior
management. The Directors must make decisions objectively in

the interests of the Company and its sharcholders as a whole.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to the senior management of the Group.
The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
Pursuant to the levels of authority approved by the Board, the
senior management executes day-to-day operations unless the
subject matter exceeds the authority granted by the Board or
relates to any matters specifically reserved to the Board, they

would seek approval from the Board.

The Board has established (i) Nomination Committee (ii)
Remuneration Committee and (iii) Audit Committee, with
defined terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board
committees which explain their respective roles and the authority
delegated to them by the Board are posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seck independent
professional advice and other assistance in appropriate

circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are (i)
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
on a regular basis; (ii) to recommend to the Board suitable
candidates for directorship after consideration of the nominees’
independence (if applicable) and quality in order to ensure the
fairness and transparency of all nominations; and (iii) to assess
the independence of independent non-executive Directors.
In identifying suitable director candidates and making such
recommendations to the Board, the Nomination Committee
would also take into account various aspects of a candidate,
including but not limited to, his/her education background,
professional experience, experience with the relevant industry
and past directorships.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises four members,
being Ms. Ng Yau Kuen, Carmen (Chairman of Nomination
Committee), Mr. Hung Hon Man, Mr. Chan Ka Kit and Mr.
Cheung Chi Kong, Ronald.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year. There
were two meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2020.
The major work performed by the Nomination Committee for
the year ended 31 March 2020 is set out below:

(i) assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

(ii) reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board; and

(iii) recommended the re-election of Directors at the annual
general meeting.

Nomination Policy

On 26 April 2019, the Board has adopted the nomination
policy (“Nomination Policy”) which sets out the nomination
criteria and procedures for the Company to appoint additional
directors or re-elect directors. The Nomination Policy can assist
the Company in achieving board diversity and enhancing the
effectiveness of the Board and its corporate governance standard.

When assessing the suitability of a candidate, factors such
as the repurtation integrity, accomplishment and experience,
commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest and attention
to the Group’s business will be taken into consideration as a
whole. In addition, a range of diverse perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skill and knowledge would be
considered. In the case of independent non-executive Directors,
the candidates must further satisfy the independence criteria set
out in the Listing Rules.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Remuneration Committee

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure relating to all Directors and senior
management of the Company; to make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights, compensation payments and any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment and

ensure none of the Directors determine their own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises four
members, being Ms. Ng Yau Kuen, Carmen (Chairman of
Remuneration Committee), Mr. Hung Hon Man, Mr. Chan Ka
Kit and Mr. Cheung Chi Kong, Ronald.

The primary aim of the remuneration policy is to enable the
Company to motivate and retain executive Directors and senior
management by comparing their performance against corporate
goals and objectives when determining appropriate compensation
for them. The principal elements of the remuneration package
include basic salary, discretionary bonus, retirement scheme
contributions and share options. No Director or any of his/her
associates should be involved in any decision as to his/her own
remuneration. In determining guidelines for each compensation
element, the Company refers to the comparable remuneration

standard in the market.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year. There
were three meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2020.
The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee for
the year ended 31 March 2020 is set out below:

(i) reviewed the remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Group; and

(ii) recommended the basic salary increment of Directors and

staff of the Group.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Remuneration Committee — continued

According to the code provision B.1.5 of the Code, the annual
remuneration (including bonus) of the members of the senior
management of the Group by band for the year ended 31 March
2020 is set out below:
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The Audit Committee is responsible for making T B g EAT - AW R I A
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and removal of the external auditors and has authority to raise S TR A I AR R S R BB AL
questions regarding the resignation or dismissal of the auditors; Z BAES R ERE R R EFT*&RF& B 7]

overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process, internal
control and risk management systems and to review the Group’s
interim and annual consolidated financial statements. The
Audit Committee has access to and maintains an independent

communication with the external auditor and management.

The Board has also delegated the corporate governance function
to the Audit Committee. The major responsibilities are to review
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors. The members
are Ms. Ng Yau Kuen, Carmen, Mr. Chan Ka Kit and Mr.
Cheung Chi Kong, Ronald, all of whom are not involved in the
day-to-day management of the Company. Ms. Ng Yau Kuen,
Carmen who has appropriate professional qualifications and
experience in accounting matters, was appointed as the chairman

of the Audit Committee.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Audit committee — continued

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year. There were two
meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2020. The major
work performed by the Audit Committee for the year ended 31
March 2020 is set out below:

(i) reviewed the annual consolidated financial statements and
the announcement of the final results for the year ended 31
March 2019;

(if) reviewed and discussed with the management about risk

management and effectiveness of internal control;

(iii) reviewed the connected transactions and continuing

connected transactions of the Group;

(iv) reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Code and

relevant disclosures;
(v) reviewed the re-appointment of external auditors;

(vi) reviewed the non-competition undertaking from Get Nice
Holdings Limited (“GN Holdings”); and

(vii) reviewed the interim consolidated financial statements and
the announcement of the interim results for the period
ended 30 September 2019.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under

the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2020.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING - continued
Directors’ responsibility

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company are to give a true and
fair view and comply with all applicable regulatory requirements
and accounting standards. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, the Directors
have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern as at 31 March 2020. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the consolidated financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2020 on a going concern basis.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of
annual financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the Group’s financial position, its financial performance, and
cash flows for the year. Management provides the Board with
management accounts and updates on a monthly basis, with a
view to giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, financial position, and prospects to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2020, the Board:

(i) adopted HKFRSs, which conform to the International

Reporting Standards in all material respects;

(ii) selected suitable accounting policies and applied them

consistently;

(iii) made prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates;

and

(iv) ensured that the financial statements were prepared on a

going concern basis.

In financial year ended 31 March 2020, the annual and interim
results were published within three months and two months,
respectively, after the end of the relevant period to provide

stakeholders with transparent and timely financial information.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING - continued

Independent auditor’s responsibility

The responsibilities of Mazars CPA Limited, Certified

Public Accountants, the Company’s external auditor, on the

consolidated financial statements are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report on
pages 55 to G1.

Independent auditor’s remuneration

For the year ended 31 March 2020, Mazars CPA Limited, the

Company’s external auditor, provided the following services to
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Audit services HENG R 1,400 1,400
Taxation services T 5 R %5 23 23
Total HaEt 1,423 1,423

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

The Company has received an annual confirmation from GN
Holdings that GN Holdings has complied with the terms of the
deed of non-competition undertaking (“Deed”) dated 16 March
2016 in favour of the Group as referred to pages 193 to 195
in the prospectus of the Company dated 24 March 2016. The
Company has also adopted appropriate procedures to monitor
that the Deed is being observed.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company, to
the best of their knowledge and beliefs, are of the view that GN
Holdings has complied with the terms of the Deed for the year
ended 31 March 2020 and has not entered into any transaction
with the intent to breach the terms of the Deed during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the establishment
and maintenance of sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems to safeguard the Group’s corporate

interests.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems
are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss; to manage prudently but
not completely eliminate the risk of system failure. Systems and
procedures are put in place to identify, manage and control the

risks of different businesses and activities.

The internal control system is to maintain proper accounting
records and to comply with relevant laws and regulations. The
Group has its independent audit function, assisting the Board
and management to conduct regular and independent review to
ensure a sound internal control system is being implemented,
maintained, and relevant regulatory requirements are complied
with. On a yearly basis, the internal audit personnel will present
a report to the Audit Committee relating to operational,
financial and compliance aspects and will alert the management
on the audit review findings or irregularities, if any, advise them
on the implementation of necessary steps and actions to enhance

the internal controls of the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Audit Committee,
as delegated by the Board, has reviewed the report provided
by the Group’s internal audit personnel and is satisfied the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management. It has also considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting and
financial reporting functions and their training programs and

budgets.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL - continued

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board has adopted
its risk management policy and risk appetite statement which
clearly defines the types of risk that the Group is prepared to
pursue, retain or tolerate. The risk management process includes:

(1) identifying ownership of risks, business objectives and
risks that could affect the achievement of objectives;

(ii) analysing the likelihood and impact of risks and evaluate
the risk portfolio accordingly; and

(iii)  considering the risk responses and ensure effective
communication to the Board/senior management and
ongoing monitor the residual risks (if any). A risk register
has been maintained as a tool for documenting risks and
actions to manage each risk on ongoing basis.

During the year, the senior management is responsible for
maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
control. The risk control is implemented to minimise the risks to
which the Group is exposed to during the day-to-day operation
of business. The senior management designs, implements and
maintains the risk control to safeguard the assets of the Group.
It also involves making decisions regarding which risks are
acceptable and how to address those that are not.

The Board has confirmed that a review of the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems has been
conducted and considers them effective and adequate.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities to ensure potential
inside information being captured and confidentiality of such
information being maintained until consistent and timely
disclosures are made in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
Group has an inside information policy with the procedures and
internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information as follows:

e the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the
disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules as well
as the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Insider Information”
published by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong in June 2012;

e the Group has implemented its policy on fair disclosure by
pursuing board, non-exclusive distribution of information
to the public through public announcements and the
Company’s website;

EREERAMBEE -

PEE_E_FF=A=T—HILFE
A O PR A B B R K R B i G
B o B e 5 E AR SR T R A TS~ fR B B
AR E R R o B AR Y AL

() HEEAFEHER T - EHHE R
] RE R B BRI Y JEL R 5

(i) 70 b7 8 2R Ja B B B S L B I
Bt A B AL S &

(iii) 75 5EJEl g e B O & > M WE AR 1) R
& ARG PR AT A R - I
Fra B AR AR N EBE (A) - BHE A7
B JE R R AE A v kR B & AT
B T H > DL A8 P 4% T R B o

JAAAETE > AR LR AR A LA
T By B ) BB o B e e S TE
i B B D AR AR H R SRS B T
JRU B o e R B R Rt Bl A e B
Bt > DIREAR LB EE o HgR
5 B ] 4 32 B JE B LA B e SR AT
32 1A JE g AR R E o

O o RS R B R R N AR
22 1 52 B BB AT At o SIE R A AR B )
T A BRI R H) o

BERFEHEE

A AR WY P R B A AR I AR B R
BEEANRHELEARNERE > B2
1 UM S BRe 9 40 8 2y 1b o AR B A
F1 TR 35 T S BOR DA B B % A 1 v B
MR 7 B A R B A G AN T

o SR P AE i B EL SRS IR A ST B TR R
TEN B P B M A R R MO B
BEHEZAGNR -F — ZFNH %
INIARCRTEDSE 3 S =N

R VY FPAL PR
B0 5 40 ) 24 TR G BCRERY » DL
OB BOR

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ##f £ ®i5EEHRAT ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2020 %R




ERERKSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION -

continued

. the access of information is restricted to a limited
number of employees on a need-to-know basis such that
employees who are in possession of inside information
are fully conversant with their obligations to preserve

confidentiality; and

. the Group has established and implemented procedures
for responding to external enquiries about the Group’s
affairs and only designated persons are authorised to
speak on behalf of the Company when communicating
with external parties such as the media, analysts or

investors.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ko Yat Fei is the company secretary of the Company
and a full-time employee of the Company. He has day-to-day
knowledge of the Company and is responsible for advising the
Board on corporate governance matters. Mr. Ko confirmed that
he has complied with all the required qualifications, experience

and training requirements under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with shareholders of the
Company and investors. Therefore, the Group is committed to
maintaining a high degree of transparency to ensure that the
investors and the shareholders of the Company receive accurate,
clear, comprehensive and timely information about the Group
through the publication of annual reports, announcements and

circulars.

The Company also publishes all corporate correspondences on
the Company’s website www.getnicefg.com.hk. Shareholders and
investors may also email their queries to the Company’s email
address: investor@getnice.com.hk, which will be handled by
the Company’s Investor Relations team. The Board maintains
regular dialogues with investors and analysts to keep them
informed of the Group’s strategy, operations, management and

plans.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS -

continued

The Directors and the members of the various board committees
attend, and answer questions raised at the general meetings of
the Company. Separate resolutions are proposed at the general

meetings on each substantially separate issue.

The chairman of the general meetings of the Company explains
the procedures for conducting a poll before putting a resolution
to vote. The results of the voting by poll are then published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

How shareholders can convene an extraordinary general

meeting

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more shareholders holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company and carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company by mail at the Company’s principal
office address in Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

The procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board
and sufficient contact details to enable these enquiries to be

properly directed

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s
attention to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
office address at 10/F., Cosco Tower, Grand Millennium Plaza,
183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company Secretary
forwards communications relating to matters within the Board’s
purview to the Board and communications relating to ordinary

business matters, such as suggestions, and inquiries to the CEO.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS - continued

Procedures and sufficient contact details for putting forward

proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders are welcome to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group to be
discussed at shareholders’ meeting. Proposal shall be sent to
the Board by written requisition. Shareholders who wish to put
forward a proposal should convene an extraordinary general
meeting by following the procedures as set out in paragraph
headed “How sharcholders can convene an extraordinary general

meeting” above.

Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 March 2020, there had been no

significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have pleasure
in presenting their annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company whose shares
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited since 8 April 2016. The principal activities of
the Group are engaged in the provision of financial services,
including securities dealing and broking, futures and options
broking, underwriting and placements, securities margin
financing and corporate finance services. Particulars of the
Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to the consolidated

financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 are

set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income on page 62.

The Directors proposes to recommend, at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Monday,
24 August 2020 (the “2020 AGM”), a final dividend of HK2
cents per share to the shareholders on the register of members on
1 September 2020.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years ended 31 March 2020 is set out
on page 168 of this annual report. This summary does not form
part of the audited consolidated financial statements in this

report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company

were entered into or existed during the year.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements. There
is no movement in the share capital of the Company during the

year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the convertible bonds and share option scheme of the
Company (with details as respectively disclosed in notes 29 and
32 to the consolidated financial statements), no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares or that require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares during the year or subsisted at the

end of the year.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages

65 to 67.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to sharcholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s

shares.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As of 31 March 2020, the reserves of the Company

available for distribution to shareholders were approximately
HK$2,163,492,000 (2019: HK$2,092,254,000) which
comprised share premium, other reserve, contributed surplus and

retained profits.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to

the date of this report, are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie (Managing Director)
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Director:

Mr. Hung Hon Man (Chairman)
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DIRECTORS - continued

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. Ng Yau Kuen, Carmen
Mr. Cheung Chi Kong, Ronald
Mr. Chan Ka Kit

Each of the Directors will be subject to retirement and
re-election at annual general meeting in accordance with the

Articles.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association,
at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for
the time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
(including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. A retiring

Director shall be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Ms. Ng Yau Kuen, Carman and Mr. Cheung Chi
Kong, Ronald will retire as independent non-executive Directors
by rotation at the 2020 AGM and they, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the 2020 AGM.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following
confirmations from the Directors, save as otherwise set out
in this report, there is no change in the information of the
Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.

Name of Director Details of changes

Mr. Shum Kin Wai,
Frankie

The monthly salary of Mr. Shum
was increased from HK$40,520
to HK$41,340 with effect from
January 2020.

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan The monthly salary of Mr. Hung
Sui Kwan was increased from
HK$57,890 to HK$59,050 with
effect from January 2020.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS - continued

Name of Director Details of changes

Mr. Hung Hon Man The monthly salary of Mr. Hung
Hon Man was increased from
HK$20,000 to HK$20,400 with

effect from January 2020.

Ms. Ng Yau Kuen,
Carmen

The monthly director fee of Ms. Ng
was increased from HK$9,500
to HK$10,000 with effect from
January 2020.

Mr. Cheung Chi Kong, The monthly director fee of
Ronald Mr. Cheung was increased from
HK$9,500 to HK$10,000 with

effect from January 2020.

Mr. Chan Ka Kit The monthly director fee of

Mr. Chan was increased from
HK$9,500 to HK$10,000 with
effect from January 2020.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of

the Company are set out on pages 11 to 13 on the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company and each of the independent
non-executive Directors has signed an appointment letter with
the Company. The appointment of each of the Directors is
for a period of three years and shall continue thereafter until
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing

served by either party on the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the contracts described under the section headed
“Connected Transactions” and “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, no contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 13 January 2020, King Joy Asia Limited (“King Joy”,
as the purchaser), a direct wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and Mr. Hung Hon Shing (“Mr. Hung HS”, as the
seller) entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement
(“Agreement”) pursuant to which King Joy agreed to acquire,
and Mr. Hung HS agreed to sell the entire equity interest in Red
Eagle Securities Limited (“Red Eagle”) at a cash consideration
of approximately HK$62.8 million (subject to adjustment). Red
Eagle is licensed corporation under the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures Ordinance with regulated activity under Type 1
Dealing in Securities and is a participant of the Stock Exchange.
The principal activity of Red Eagle is provision of securities
brokerage services. Mr. Hung HS is the father of Mr. Hung
Sui Kwan, an executive director of the Company, and the elder
brother of Hung Hon Man, a non-executive director of the
Company. The transaction contemplated under the Agreement
is subject to reporting and announcement requirements but
is exempt from the circular (including independent financial
advice) and shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Further details are set out in the

Company’s announcement dated 13 January 2020.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Brokerage services and margin loan financing

Name of connected person BEATHR
Executive Directors: HITEE

Shum Kin Wai, Frankie and his associate At R B+
Hung Sui Kwan and his associate T g B R N
Non-Executive Director: FHTES :

A QEN (L YNax

Hung Hon Man and his associates

Directors of certain subsidiaries KEBETHBAR
of the Group: ZEE:

Ng Hon Sau, Larry and his associate PR YIS ) YR

Cheng Wai Ho and his associate LSy &N YN

Management fee and interest expense

During the year, the Group (i) received a management
fee from GN Holdings amounting to HK$2,520,000 for
office areas sharing; and (ii) paid an interest expense to GN
Holdings amounting to approximately HK$1,024,000 for
loan facility.

Save for disclosure in (3) and (4) below, the Directors,
including the independent non-executive Directors, were
of the opinion that the transactions listed in (1) and (2)
above were on normal commercial terms where all of the
applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) on
an annual basis calculated under the Listing Rules were less
than 5% and the annual consideration was less than HK$3
million. The transactions were thus exempted from the
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule

14A.76(1)(c) of the Listing Rules.
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Brokerage
commission
income paid

to the Group
for the year

Margin loan
interest paid
to the Group

for the year

Maximum
amount of
margin loan

for the year

FRENTF FRENTFT FAREER
rEEZ rEREZ Mz
KRB RESEXRNE BEEH
HK$ HKS$ HK$
T T W#EIT
15,644 17 102,972
74,103 2,273 955,977
788,392 15,813,590 316,559,142
140 8,692 666,237
21,881 - -
EEBRMEMAX

SRR ASHE () B it L 5 O e A
U ¥ 1 i B4 34 %5 2,520,000% 7T 5 &
(i) B8 390 50 2l 1 4 A R S AT LIS,
B % 471,024,000% € ©

bR R SC3) 4z B g oh > EH (TS
B ERMATES) R V) KEQRQ)K
5y ¥5) & 1F K AR K > AR $E TR
Rl 47 BEME ST 2 B A 8 | 4 1
R (B FRBRIN) AR 5% & 4F AL
18 £ 1% 12 3,000,000% 7T » [H UL > A B
22 by MR o ST BT BB 14A.76(1)
(o)W A B FR e~ AR A~ A M K
ST A UE 2 BE o
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

3.

Brokerage services and margin loan financing provided

to Asia Smart Group Limited

On 30 August 2017, Get Nice Securities Limited (“GNS”),
a subsidiary of the Company and Asia Smart Group Limited
(“Asia Smart”), a company wholly owned by Mr. Hung
Hon Man (a non-executive Director and the chairman of
the Board), entered into (i) the financing services agreement
(“2017 Financing Services Agreement”, as amended by
supplemental agreement dated 12 September 2017),
pursuant to which GNS may (but not obliged to), upon
request from Asia Smart and/or its associates, provide or
procure any other company amongst the Group to provide
the margin financing facilities to Asia Smart and/or its
associates from time to time during the period from 20
November 2017 to 31 March 2020; and (ii) the broking
services agreement (“2017 Broking Services Agreement”)
pursuant to which GNS may (but not obliged to), upon
request from Asia Smart and/or its associates, provide
broking services and services incidental thereto by GNS
or any company amongst the Group to Asia Smart and/
or its associates during the period from 30 August 2017
to 31 March 2020. Details of the terms and conditions of
the 2017 Financing Services Agreement and 2017 Broking
Services Agreement can be referred to the announcements
dated 30 August 2017 and 12 September 2017 and circular
dated 18 October 2017.

On 1 November 2019, GNS and Asia Smart entered into
the termination agreement pursuant to which the 2017
Broking Services Agreement and the 2017 Financing

Services Agreement were terminated on 15 December 2019.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

3.

Brokerage services and margin loan financing provided

to Asia Smart Group Limited — continued

During the period from 1 April 2019 to 15 December
2019, (i) the interest income earned from Asia Smart by
GNS amounted to approximately HK$10,478,000 (with
annual cap set at HK$19,000,000 for the year ended
31 March 2020);
loan granted to Asia Smart amounted to approximately
HK$228,348,000 (with annual cap set at HK$230,000,000
for the year ended 31 March 2020); and (iii) the brokerage

commission earned from Asia Smart by GNS amounted

(ii) the maximum amount of margin

to approximately HK$502,000 (with annual cap set at
HK$8,000,000 for the year ended 31 March 2020).

Pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the above transactions have been entered into (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on
normal commercial terms or better (as the case may be); and
(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them during the validity of the agreement periods on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

Company’s shareholders as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has reviewed the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions
pursuant to rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and advised
the Board in writing (with a copy provided to the Stock
Exchange) that the above transactions, nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe that: (i)
have not been approved by the Board; (ii) were not, in all
material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Group if the transactions involve the provisions of
goods or services by the Group; (iii) were not entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and (iv) have

exceeded the their respective annual caps.
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BRERRESERRE - &
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

4.

Brokerage services and margin loan financing provided

to Mr. Hung Hon Man and/or any controlled companies

On 1 November 2019, GNS and Mr. Hung Hon Man
(“Mr. Hung”) (a non-executive Director and the chairman
of the Board), entered into (i) the financing services
agreement (“Financing Services Agreement”), pursuant to
which GNS may (but not obliged to), upon request from
Mr. Hung and/or any controlled companies, provide or
procure any other company amongst the Group to provide
the margin financing facilities to Mr. Hung and/or, as the
case may be, the relevant controlled company from time
to time during the period from 15 December 2019 to 14
December 2022; and (ii) the broking services agreement
(“Broking Services Agreement”) pursuant to which GNS
may (but not obliged to), upon request from Mr. Hung
and/or any controlled companies, provide broking services
and services incidental thereto by GNS or any company
amongst the Group to Mr. Hung and/or any controlled
companies during the period from 15 December 2019 to
14 December 2022. Details of the terms and conditions
of the Financing Services Agreement and Broking Services
Agreement can be referred to the announcement dated 1
November 2019 and circular dated 22 November 2019.

During the period from 15 December 2019 to 31 March
2020, (i) the interest income earned from Mr. Hung by
GNS amounted to approximately HK$5,171,000 (with
annual cap set at HK$7,500,000 for the period from 15
December 2019 to 31 March 2020); (ii) the maximum
amount of margin loan granted to Mr. Hung amounted to
approximately HK$314,912,000 (with annual cap set at
HK$330,000,000 for the period from 15 December 2019
to 31 March 2020); and (iii) the brokerage commission
earned from Mr. Hung by GNS amounted to approximately
HK$243,000 (with annual cap set at HK$2,400,000 for the
period from 15 December 2019 to 31 March 2020).
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

4.

Brokerage services and margin loan financing provided
to Mr. Hung Hon Man and/or any controlled companies

— continued

Pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the above transactions have been entered into (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on
normal commercial terms or better (as the case may be); and
(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them during the validity of the agreement periods on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

Company’s shareholders as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has reviewed the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions
pursuant to rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and advised
the Board in writing (with a copy provided to the Stock
Exchange) that the above transactions, nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe that: (i)
have not been approved by the Board; (ii) were not, in all
material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Group if the transactions involve the provisions of
goods or services by the Group; (iii) were not entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and (iv) have

exceeded the their respective annual caps.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken
by the Group in its normal course of business are set out in
note 39 to the consolidated financial statements. Those related
party transactions which constituted connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules which
are set out in the section headed “Connected Transactions” and
“Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages 40 to 45, have
compiled with Chapter 14A.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

1. Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
of the Company

Name of Director

Capacity

=y EEME
Mr. Hung Hon Man

PECE sz A (i)

Held by controlled corporation (Note)

BEALRS

A G B TE H O SERS IR AR AT 2 EOR B
N 58 5y 2 A% WS R i o 5 Sk 3R A 5
39 o MR LR IA T 2 B 2L 5 5 4
B A by 2 BN 52 b (3 R A4 4k
FA0RASH B 5y | K [FF B AL 5
A H) TS BT R RIS 14A % 2 BLE o

EERBETRARZRAER

RACECEFE=ZA=+—H  REEHFK
A B W1 28 3 5 2 A 2 W 2R T 45 47 19 8 T i
P e ek AR 4 TR B i o A o ST B 2R
WA T RS e AR IR AR
) R S AT BN B BT A AR w] R
R B 28 8 o BOW B IR B BB XV )
A9 P47y ~ AR R PS03 S A 5 B 2 SR B

1. AATEREEIBIZEERZ
HaE

Percentage
Number of of the issued
issued ordinary

shares held

share capital

of the Company

FFERT (EEXRRAEET
EBRRHA BAzED L
50,309,829 2.01%

Note:  Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in
50,309,829 ordinary shares of the Company which are
held by Honeylink Agents Limited (“Honeylink”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability, the entire issued share capital of which is

beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man.

AL o PR SCSE A AR 2% B A i Honeylink
Agents Limited ([ Honeylink 1) £ 2
A2 750,309,829/ ¥ 4 it 2 HE 4 o
Honeylink 2 774 9% Ji§ 3 22 7 5 i ik 5or
ZAHBRAT » H AT E AT BA m
PSR AR
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES - continued

2. Long positions in the non-voting deferred shares of
HK$1.0 each of Get Nice Securities Limited (“GNS”), a

wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

EEEWmE
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=
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ERBETRAS RGNS

2. RAQRAZEMBLRAGHEZER
RA(HHFEE]) 2BREELGET
ZEREREZERZHFR

Percentage

of the issued

Number of non-voting

non-voting deferred share

deferred of GNS

Name of Director Capacity shares* held HEFES

FEERERE CERTERERE

EEpR EEME BEERHE EZRZBIL

Mr. Hung Hon Man Beneficial owner 36,000,000 90%
3L B an Ha i A

Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie Beneficial owner 4,000,000 10%
RS et it Ha e A

40,000,000 100%

The non-voting deferred shares carry practically no rights to
dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at
any general meeting of GNS and on liquidation, the assets of
GNS available for distribution among the holders of ordinary
shares and the holders of non-voting deferred shares shall
be applied first in paying to the holders of ordinary shares
the sum of HK$1,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share and
secondly in repaying to the holders of non-voting deferred
shares the nominal amount paid up or credited as paid up on
such shares, and the balances of the GNS’s assets shall belong
to and be distributed among the holders of ordinary shares in
proportion to the amount paid up or credited as paid up on

such ordinary shares respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES - continued

3. Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

Ef&ﬁﬁﬁﬁkaZﬁﬁEé
3. AAAHBERAALHFERSKE

of GN Holdings, the immediate holding company of the BB T 2EEBERZ2HFAE
Company
percentage
Number of the issued
of issued share capital of
ordinary  the GN holdings
Name of Director Capacity shares held IR
FriFe T BRITRE
ESHAR EEME BEERHE ZEDL
Mr. Hung Hon Man Held by controlled corporation (Note) 2,898,049,874 29.99%
e e 2 A ()

Note: Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in
2,898,049,874 ordinary shares of Get Nice Holdings
Limited which are held by Honeylink, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, the entire issued share capital of which is

beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 March 2020, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any shares or underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

FE 2 U SO A W 4 HE A B Honeylink
A Z 450 PR BR A 7]2,898,049,874
J - 48 e 2 ME 4 o Honeylink £ 7% 9% &
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
AND OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme to subscribe
for shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company granted under the
share option scheme during the year are set out in note 32 to the

consolidated financial statements.

During the year, no options were granted to any director of the

Company.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate and none of the
Directors, their spouses or children under the age of 18, had
any right to subscribe for the shares of the Company, or had

exercised any such rights during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2020, so far as is known to any Directors or
chief executives of the Company, the persons or corporations
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company)
who had, or were deemed or taken to have an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO (“DI Register”) or as otherwise notified to the Company

were as follows:
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS - continued
Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the

Company

Name Capacity

8 EantE

GN Holdings Beneficial owner
FaRaRediie gt ZSDN

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, the Directors were
not aware of any person or corporation (other than the Director
and chief executives of the Company) who had, or were deemed
or taken to have, any interests or short positions in any shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in DI Register or

otherwise notified to the Company.

FTERRKR-E
AATEREEIEBTZEERCHER

Number of Percentage of

issued/underlying the Company’s

ordinary issued share
shares held capital (%)
BAERT

e T/ EETRE

HBEEEREE ZBDE (%)

1,824,690,171 72.99

B b SCRT 48R F Ah 0 i E R AR = M
= —H > EEIAMBA AT A LS
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme are set out in

note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,

redeemed or sold any of the listed shares of the Company during
the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s turnover

attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for

less than 10% of the Group’s total turnover.

The Group had no major suppliers due to the nature of the

principal activities of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained the public float as required by the
Listing Rules during the year.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$25,000.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for
the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year ended 31 March 2020.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Details of the compliance by the Company with the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
are on pages 14 to 35 of the Corporate Governance Report in

this annual report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,

qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board, as
authorised by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
duties, responsibilities and performance, and the prevailing
market conditions. No individual should determine his/her own

remuneration.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31 March
2020 and an analysis of the likely future development of the
Group’s business are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 4 to 10 of this

annual report. The discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

In addition, discussion on the key relationships with the Group’s
major stakeholders, Group’s environmental policy and performance
as well as compliance with relevant laws and regulations which
have significant impact on the Group are set out in the Company’s
Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2020 (“ESG
Report”). The ESG Report will be published separately on the
websites of the Company (www.getnicefg.com.hk) and the Stock

Exchange news website (https://www.hkexnews.hk).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include

strategic, commercial, operational and financial risks.

Strategic risks

The Directors maintain a strategic plan together with a financial
budget at the end of each financial year based on then knowledge
to the external environments and a number of forecast and
estimates. The Group would invest in capital expenditures or
require additional working capital by way of equities or debts
fund raising based on the strategic plan in order to cope with
the market demand and competition. Given the rapid change of
unforeseeable external environments in the financial industry,
the Group is facing significant strategic risks on its capital
expenditures and working capital requirements when changing
the strategic plans to adopt the unexpected changes of external

environments.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
— continued
Commercial risks

The Group is facing the keen competition by other securities
brokers or financial institutions. To maintain the Group’s
competitiveness, the management uses cost leadership strategy
as well as diversifying its business strategy to tackle other

competitors.

Operational risks

Management regularly reviews the Group’s operations to ensure
that the Group’s risk of financial or reputational losses or
inability to deliver services to customers, resulting from fraud,
errors, omissions, failed internal processes, IT systems and
compliance matters, are adequately managed. The Group has
also established its own business continuity plan and monitoring
measures, including but not limited to implementation of cyber
security control and comprehensive cyber testing programme,
to protect the Group from risk of interruption to its business

continuity.

Financial risks

The principal financial risks are set out in note 6 to consolidated
financial statements heading “FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS” —

“Financial risk management objectives and policies”.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from
each of the independent non-executive Directors. The Company
considers the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent of the management of the Company and are free
from any relationship that would materially interfere with the

exercise of their independent judgments during the year.
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AUDITOR

Mazars CPA Limited (“Mazars”) was first appointed as auditor
of the Company on 23 March 2018 upon resignation of Deloitte

Touche Tohmatsu.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2020 were audited by Mazars whose term of

office will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting.
A resolution for the reappointment of Mazars as the auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

On behalf of the Board

HUNG HON MAN
CHAIRMAN

26 June 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

MBEMAZARS

TO THE MEMBERS OF
GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Get Nice Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 62 to 167,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting

policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2020, and of its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Mazars CPA LiMITED

HH B IR () 00 A L6
42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
TS T AT s 18 SRR BR R 42

Tel 7 (852) 2909 5555

Fax 5 E: (852) 2810 0032

Email #E#: info@mazars.hk

Website #H1lk: www.mazars.hk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

HREELER

o St e A% T T T AR R A A% R 2 S A
B R A A ) ] A B S R 2 A
T B HIA o I S S TH Y R A A B A
o B A BV R S L o L R LR R
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Loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) on accounts receivable from margin clients arising from the

business of dealing in securities margin financing

EFRECTHERBELCRUREECEFREABRGEER ([BAGEEFR ) ZERERE

Related disclosures are included in notes 4, 6 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

HREHBREMN TS 6R22ITE Z 1% %

Key Audit Matter
HEELER

At 31 March 2020, the accounts receivable from margin
clients arising from the business of dealing in securities
margin financing amounted to HK$3,544 million, net
of loss allowance for ECL of HK$148 million. These
represent 80% of the total assets of the Group.

Management assessed the provision for ECL of accounts
receivable from margin clients based on various inputs
such as loan-to-value percentage, default rate provided by
credit rating agency or other relevant information together

with forward-looking analysis.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ET N REBREETSH

Our procedures, among others, included:

e considering the relevance and reasonableness of
key assumptions over the ECL assessment, and the
relevance and accuracy of the source data used in

thC assessment;

e evaluating the credit risk management process
including the process for identification of impaired
accounts receivable from margin clients and the

measurement of the loss allowance;

D checking, on a sample basis, the existence and
accuracy of the recoverable amount of the securities
collateral, to supporting documents and with

reference to closing market price;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Key Audit Matters — continued

HRERER-#

Loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) on accounts receivable from margin clients arising from the

business of dealing in securities margin financing — continued

EFRECTHERBELCRURECEFREABGEER ([RAGEFR) ZEREE-&

Related disclosures are included in notes 4, 6 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Key Audit Matter
BREELER

We considered this matter to be a key audit matter due
to the significance of the balance and the significant
judgement in determining ECL on the account receivables

from margin clients.

A A BT % L S B R SR R AL S IE > BTN
JBR 45 Bk 2 B M 7R E R AR R 2 P IR TH < TR
B 5 18 5 9 e 2 EOR I B

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN BET N RERREETSR

* comparing, on a sample basis, the recoverable
amount of the securities collateral with the accounts
receivable from each individual margin clients to

determine whether there was any shortfall; and

o assessing the sufficiency of the loss allowance
recognised with respect to the above shortfall, after
taking into account other factors such as credit
worthiness, past collection history and repayment

subsequent to reporting period.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s 2020 annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with

Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements — continued

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group

to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obrtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement

that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought

to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements — continued

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26 June 2020

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is:

Fong Chin Lung
Practising Certificate Number: P07321
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE"Z-ZF=A=+—"HLLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020
2020 2019
—g=%F | —%T AF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
! FERT T#C
Revenue I &= 7 369,362 401,589
Other operating income At 2% 5 i A 9 510 435
Other gains and losses, net b Wi 45 K s 18 15 AR 10 500 (38,297)
Amortisation and depreciation WESY T A 18 (7,656) (7,111)
Commission expenses 11 48 B 3¢ (7,020) (9,460)
Net impairment loss on accounts receivable JE Wi HE T 27 Yk (B s 1B VR 4 6 (110,907) (20,085)
Staff costs =N N 11 (19,878) (18,911)
Finance costs Tl AR 12 (33,145) (97,031)
Other expenses A B 52 (20,501) (21,855)
Profit before taxation i Al %= A 13 171,265 189,274
Income tax expense T A5 B 52 15 (31,483) (56,219)
Profit for the year REE@FA 139,782 133,055
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hfth 2 E Uz (B %)
Items that will not be reclassified ro NEEHSHEEm ZIHA
profit or loss
Surplus on revaluation of properties W) 2 AL LR 1,114 2,770
Deferred tax arising on revaluation Wy 2 Ak A AR 2 IR RE B IH
of properties 30 (184) (457)
Total other comprehensive income AEEHMEPHEKRREAE
for the year 930 2,313
Total comprehensive income for the year 25 F £ 2 [H Ui 72 2 58 140,712 135,368
Profit for the year attributable to: UITMTALTEBERFERR :
Owners of the Company ZN/NGIE: ZEDN 139,716 132,980
Non-controlling interests I 4 I HE A 66 75
139,782 133,055
Total comprehensive income UTATREEEBEAE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIE: XN 140,646 135,293
Non-controlling interests I R HE 45 66 75
140,712 135,368
BT T
Earnings per share BREF
Basic and diluted E-VNVE i 17 0.06 0.05
GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ##<m&EBAER /AT ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2020 £
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-E-_ZTFE=A=+—H
At 31 March 2020

2020 2019
—ECEF ZE N
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i FExT T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property and equipment / Prepaid lease ) 2 K WG E A RE A
payments and property and equipment DY S/ E & T 18 105,651 112,073
Intangible assets I 19 8,413 8,413
Other assets HoAth & 21 4,172 3,297
Deposit paid for acquisition of a subsidiary i }iff — [H Ff} J& 2~ 7] 2
EENEES 35 6,200 =
Deferred tax assets E AT i VE &R 30 259 259
124,695 124,042
Current assets REEE
Accounts receivable JHRE A B T 22 3,564,867 3,707,421
Prepayments, deposits and other TEAY BRIE ~ e S H A
receivables JE i A 23 2,145 2,927
Tax recoverable ] i [\] i IE 21,320 7,349
Investments in securities NiB A2 RE 24 104 170
Bank balances — client accounts WRATH R — B FIRF 25 445,239 1,143,120
Bank balances — general accounts and cash RITEE R — — IR R4 26 260,910 422,942
4,294,585 5,283,929
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable JE A5t B TH 27 478,475 1,196,203
Accrued charges and other payables JE i 2 ) R At R A AR IE 28 5,374 8,443
Tax payable JE A5t i TEL — 164
Liability component of convertible bonds ] # [l fi 75 2 & &5 > 29 - 233,524
483,849 1,438,334
Net current assets RBEEFHE 3,810,736 3,845,595
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 3,935,431 3,969,637
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities R S i TH B K 30 3,958 3,706
3,958 3,706
NET ASSETS BEEFE 3,931,473 3,965,931

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 fF5§ °
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ra IR R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A —_E_EF=F=+—H
At 31 March 2020

2020 2019
—go®E | F
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
it & THERT TH T
Capital and reserves BEXR#EE
Share capital ¥ A 31 25,000 25,000
Reserves A 3,906,473 3,940,827
Equity attributable to owners AAREEAELESR
of the Company 3,931,473 3,965,827
Non-controlling interests FEE R R = - 104
TOTAL EQUITY B 3,931,473 3,965,931
The consolidated financial statements on pages 62 to 167 were M‘GZE §% I67TEZ AR R Bk ER e
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on i ZF AN AN H A R AR RET
26 June 2020 and are signed on its behalf by: o 0 MY ESRRREE
Shum Kin Wai Frankie Hung Sui Kwan
SEME At I 38
Director Director
#HH HH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ToEF=A=1+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

BHE—

Atributable to equity holders of the Company

RLARA AR
Property Non-
Share Share  Contributed ~ Convertble  revaluation Other ~ Reained controlling
apitdl  premium sutplus  bonds reserve reserve reserve profis Toul  incerests Toul
i %
Wk OREER  REER RARE EGEE  MRRE  REEN 4R RERES 4%
Nows  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HK§000  HKS000
Wt féx Tt T TEx  fEn Tt T T fEn T
(note i) (notel) ~(note 29) (note i) (note iv)
LTI i A 3 T L i
Ac L Aprl 2018 iwe SgIC21 R BO0SATLA86%1 M9 1516 199 L7243 39918 B3
Impact on nitial application of HKFRS 9 HRERAERTR R
Foko e - = - - - - (844) (844) - (844)
s tesated 1] B0 SBAT L6 69 5160 1% L7BX9 3093l B39
Profi for the year KEERA - - - - - - 1% 132,980 7 133,05
Other comprehensive income (expense) E2EYE (BX)
Tems that will nt be recasfed wo proftor b FEEHAHEFBLFH
- Surplus on revaluation of properties ~WEERR = = = - L7 - - L - L
- Defered tax arsing on revaluarion YRR R
of properties Kl - - - - 53) - - (7 - (1)
Total other comprehensive income Rf2EREEE = = = = 1313 = = 1313 = 1313
Total comprehensive income for the year REERENESR = = = = 2313 - 1% 35,293 5o 135368
Transactions with equity holders SRRREALRE
Contributions and distibutions HERRE
- Dividends o owner -REAAZIRE 16 - - - - - = (150000)  (150000) - (1snon)
- Redemption of convertible bonds -BHT k&% bi) - - - (106,310) - = 88,499 (17,811) - (17,811)
- - - (106310 - - (61501)  (167.811) - (17811)
Changes in ounership inteess LT iii
- Disposal of inteests in a subsidiary -HE-HHBATZER
without oss of control i &k £ = = - - - - 4 4 (] -
Total transactions with equity holders AREEEALRGEE - - - (106310 = = (61497)  (167,807) @ (167810)
At31 March 2019 RZE-AEZR=1-R BO0 AT 14891 106309 747 159933 LT9A752 3965807 104 3965931
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-T-TF=A=1+—HILFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

Atributable to equity holders of the Company

FATREARE
Convertible ~ Property Noa-
Share Share  Contributed bonds  revaluation Other  Retained controlling
apil  premium surplus feserve feserve feserve profits Totdl  interests Total
T4R L

Ba  R#EE REEE EERE EMEE  EMEE  REEW B FERER i

Nows ~ HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HES000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000

Wt Fér TR TR  TEr  TEn TR TEr  TEn  TEn TEn
(notei)  (notei)  (note29) (noteili) (noteiv)

(e (W) (MEn) (M) (WEw)

At 1 Apil 2019 REZ-JEMA-H B0 ST L4651 106309 4TS 1993 IIMTL 396587 104 396591
Profit for the year KEERA - - - - - - 1716 139716 06 139782
Other comprehensive income (expense) Ap2ENE(RR)
Tems that will nt b rclusifed o proftor bos - FEEHAHZHBLFH
- Surplus on revaluation of properties -HEERER - - - - 1114 - - 1114 - 1,114
- Deferred taxarsing on revluaton of popertes ~WEERELZETHE % - - - - (184 - - (184 - (189
Total other comprehensive income Ef2ENEEE - - - - 930 - - 930 - 930
Total comprehensive income for the year FEEREUREE - - - - 930 - 139,716 140,646 06 140,712
Transactions with equity holders SRREEALRE
Contributions and distributions HERFE
~Dividends o owner -mHAAZRE 16 - - - - - - () (75000 - (1500)
- Redemption of convertble bonds upon manriey ~RIMEEETRRESE 0 = = - (106,309 - - 106,309 - - -
- - - (106,309 - - (68,691) (175,000) - (175000
Changes in ownershp inteests #EEEERT
- Acquisiion of non-controllng interess gt il
ina subsidiary LHERER 4 . . . . = = = = (170) (170)
Total transactons with equty holders HRREEALRALE - - - (106309 - - (e (7500 (170)  (175,170)
t31 March 2000 RZB-REZA=t-H DS A 5 -80S 15995 1867 393L4TS - 39L4B
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium represents the excess of the net proceeds or
consideration from issuance of the Company’s shares over their
par value. Under the Companies Law (as revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for
distribution or paying dividends to sharecholders subject to the
provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and
provided that immediately following the distribution of dividends,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the

ordinary course of business.

Contributed surplus represents residual arising from the
capitalisation of amount due to the ultimate holding company to

share capital of the Company on 8 April 2016.

Property revaluation reserve deals with revaluation adjustments of
property and equipment in accordance with the accounting policies

adopted in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Other reserve represents the capital contributions from equity
holders of Get Nice Incorporated (“GN Incorporated”) and
Steppington Holdings Limited (“Steppington”) now comprising
the Group before the completion of the group reorganisation prior

to the listing of the shares of the Company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 fF5§ °

(i)

(iid)

(iv)

HE-_Z-_TF=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

e A7 i AR AR AN R B AT A2 B B4 2 B 45 3K
TEL {3 4 m A R o T R o ARR B
SREE AT (KB o AR 2 B i
i R T 2 TR R AL e A A I A B A S
P IR SR AT A S > M BB BB 2 IR A
AN T RE S ST H O SEH AR 2 B
WA -

T B R AR E —F —/REM A H A E
ARF i A2 TR 2 R AR IR 3 FE AN O R B FE AR
BB -

) 56 Tl ot A4 AR R A 5 U 5 S I R 2 B R
P2 Gt BUR g ) 26 K et < AL TR -

At £ A AR AR 2 W] B b T R 52 R
A [ A AT AR B A SR B T Z Get
Nice Incorporated ([ GN Incorporated |)
K Steppington Holdings LimitedZ i &
(I Steppington ]) °

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED &7 £ REBAER AT
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HREBHERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-T-TF=A=1+—HILFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

2020 2019
—EIEHF | ZFNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
it THET T T

OPERATING ACTIVITIES REER
Profit before taxation i 71 Y A 171,265 189,274
Adjustments for: R
Amortisation and depreciation WESY T £ 18 7,656 7,111
Gain on disposal of property and B W 3 KRR 2 U A

equipment 10 (40) -
Werite off of property and equipment €LY E V&L 13 - 15
Werite off of accounts receivable B HE g B TE 13 300 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H B B S 2 B 2 Ui i 10 - (12)
Net impairment loss on accounts JFEE W HR T 2 L e 4 v

receivable 6 110,907 20,085
Loss on redemption of convertible bonds i [1] n] # [ f& 75 2 s 48 29 - 38,867
Fair value changes on investments BAEREZ A REEE

in securities 10 66 22
Finance costs Tl R AR 12 33,145 97,031
Interest income B I A (6,196) (4,514)
Dividend income BB A 9 (6) -
Operating cash flows before movements RSB 2

in working capital K Bl = 317,097 347,879
Changes in working capital: BEESEE

Other assets HoAth & (875) 3,524

Accounts receivable e L&EE*” 31,347 389,699

Prepayments, deposits and other FAT K 7 4 J HoAth

receivables WEW H 782 1,165

Bank balances — client accounts WITEE G -FEPIRP 697,881 (723,483)

Accounts payable JRE Ak e 3 (717,728) 713,739

Accrued charges and other payables JRE Rt ) % G Ath B Ak B 3 (2,632) 1,096
Cash generated from operations 40 55 B AL EH 4 325,872 733,619
Interest income received AL INSE PN 6,196 4,514
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid B A A R 15 B (45,550) (70,040)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING REEBFTERERE

ACTIVITIES 286,518 668,093

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED #7 £ mi5EAR2AF e ANNUAL REPORT 2020 ik
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE_ZT-_ZTF=RA=+T—HILFE
Year ended 31 March 2020
2020 2019
—E-ETF —F A
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i 51 FTHET T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REX®
Purchase of property and equipment 15 B W) 2 KA 18 (120) (882)
Proceeds from disposal of property and B Y 3 R 2 BT AR
equipment FRIEH 40 -
Purchase of intangible assets i Y - (3)
Purchase of investment in securities EEBAERE - (34)
Deposit paid for acquisition of g B — 5] Rfk g N /) 2
a subsidiary B4 4% 4 35 (6,200) -
Dividend received B i i S ), 6 -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REXBFFAZFERE
ACTIVITIES (6,274) 919)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEXK
Interest paid for convertible bonds CL A T #8575 2 R R (2,639) (7,732)
Interest paid 2 AT LR (1,967) (356)
Dividends paid B S 16 (175,000) (150,000)
Proceeds from bank borrowings SRAT MG B Fr 5 28 320,000 196,828
Repayment of bank borrowings 1;=1 EIRIT R A (320,000) (256,828)
Loan from the ultimate holding company AN R B K 550,000 180,000
Repayment of loan from ultimate holding 1; ai o A B T B R
company (550,000) (180,000)
Redemption of convertible bonds i 0] W] Ha i & 25 29 (262,500) (262,500)
Cash outflow arising from acquisition of i if — [H] B J&§ 28 7] 2 IF #5 B
non-controlling interests in a subsidiary WEzEEAEZHE TR 40 (170) -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING MEXBFAZFRE
ACTIVITIES (442,276) (480,588)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash BRERBELEEEH
equivalents FORA) & (162,032) 186,586
Cash and cash equivalents at the BEHINRERRASEE
beginning of the reporting period 15 H 422,942 236,356
Cash and cash equivalents at the WMEHKBRER
end of the reporting period, REEEHEAR:
represented by bank balances SRITHEER
_—general accounts and cash -—REFRED 260,910 422,942
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 £%f e GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED &£ mEBHRA T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE—

—EF=A=+HLFE

Year ended 31 March 2020

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Get Nice Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability on 31 August 2015 and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The Company’s immediate and
ultimate holding company is Get Nice Holdings Limited
(“GN Holdings”), a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with its shares listed on the Stock Exchange. The
Company’s registered office is located at Second Floor,
Century Yard, Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1103, Cayman Islands and its principal place
of business is located at 10th Floor, Cosco Tower, Grand
Millennium Plaza, 183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set
out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the
functional currency of the Company.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand,
unless otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted
in the 2019 consolidated financial statements except for the
adoption of the following new / revised HKFRSs that are
relevant to the Group and effective from the current year.

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED &€ mEBER AR

—REF
HremERERA A ((A2H ] R
ZER-RENA=ZT— HIRIEH 2R
B ISR 22% N w ik (— LR — 45
RG] - AR KB 2R E
Ak MRS 2 M e A PR A ] Eﬂx{ﬁu\
T A s W S 5 o B A R ] (T 22
Brl) BT e AN T Z H R KB AR
N T AR BR A A (4% 4 4%
e l) > Ay — [ B 2 3 I 5 B
ZAT > KBRS BT e AR
A G M R N E B 3 B 4 Bl A
J#Second Floor, Century Yard, Cricket
Square, P.O. Box 902, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1103, Cayman Islands & & ¥ 2 5
KA 18395 AL T B 5 P iR K 107
1o

AN 2 EBER B IR M
JB ) 2 T S WO B A B R
WN£42 ©

AN T R H M E S B (FAR A 4R E )
ZEAMBEMEAANG ZNGEE W
Wwos ([Tl 251 -

FEREHRE
RS

% S R WS R T AR B A s R R
OB LA 2 7 B o M S (4 P

A 2 B s B SRR B
AP HER J e H) %ﬁ%ﬁ‘”@nﬂ?ﬁﬂﬁ

BN RG] 2 R E R - KRS
S B ¥ R IR ST B S 5 T A R
23wl g BT AL (T LT RR ) 2
P FERE

Brn AN T EHERERER
B T8

e MBERRCRIEE —F — LEL
A B TR BT RO g R EOR Bz
e f B> M BR T DU S A £ A B Sl
AR AE S B 2 R RT 7 BEAE BT A s P
s o HE R BR S -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued
Adoption of new / revised HKFRSs
Annual Improvements Project — 2015-2017 Cycle

HKAS 12: Income tax consequences of payments on financial

instruments cla;:iﬁed as equity

The amendments clarify that (a) the income tax
consequences of dividends are recognised in profit or
loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to
where the past transactions or events that generated the
distributable profits were originally recognised and (b)

these requirements apply to all income tax consequences of
dividends as defined in HKFRS 9.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The interpretation supports the requirements in HKAS 12
Income Taxes by specifying how to reflect the effects of

uncertainty in accounting for income taxes.

The adoption of the interpretation does not have any

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HE-_Z-_TF=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

TEEBRR-&

RAHFHETBIEFTE MRS E
FENEEH . —E—RFE-_ZE—+
FHE

B R 129 - WERR A A P S
11 il T A 79 Py 95 18 7

2 S B F] RS () S T 15 B4R SR AR
5 5 400 w7 2B ] 4 i ) SR 1 o A s
5 5% 2 TR AE 8 £~ HAth & T Ui £ B R
tn PR o M (b)7% 55 oK ME ¥ s B
5 i R e J 2R 9 B L A2 1 I B 22 T A
HRLE R -

PRAA B2 S5 18 T B AR 5 R R I SR AT
(LEES-2 K

BB (EBRUBEEZ2EZEREE) %
BE2350 oW BREEZ THEEM
% v P 2 B3 7 ok o A RIS 1258
B0 R RE - R B A0 e B i BT 45 B &
wl e B AP Y AN E MR 2

PR AR 5% e PR 3B A SV 5 SR AR I AT o
HERE -

=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-T-TF=A=1+—HILFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

03

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Adoption of new / revised HKFRSs — continued

HKFRS 16: Leases
HKEFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 and related Interpretations

for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. It
significantly changes, among others, the lessee accounting
by replacing the dual-model under HKAS 17 with a single
model which requires a lessee to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for the rights and obligations
created by all leases with a term of more than 12 months,
unless the underlying asset is of low value. For lessor
accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the
lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly,
a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases
differently. HKFRS 16 also requires enhanced disclosures to

be provided by lessees and lessors.

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group
has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time at 1 April 2019
(i.e. the date of initial application, the “DIA”) using the
modified retrospective approach in which comparative
information has not been restated. Instead, the Group
recognised the cumulative effect of initially applying
HKFRS 16 as an adjustment to the balance of accumulated
profits or other component of equity, where appropriate, at
the DIA.

The Group also elected to use the transition practical
expedient not to reassess whether a contract was, or
contained, a lease at the DIA and the Group applied
HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and to contracts entered into
or changed on or after the DIA that are identified as leases
applying HKFRS 16.

0]

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED &€ mEBER AR

TESBRR-&

RO RETEEUBEREE
Bl -&

BEEUBHEERFlewt - HE

7 i BB Ol HE RIS 165 —F — L
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PR Wl VB U 55 17908 SO Bl e R o
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% AR E WHER B E R R AL A A
RS EE —HEE > BAEEE
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HIl AR 452 7 o & w6 JU) 56 17 98 e T 2 AR
BWE R R E M B s 2 AR RT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Adoption of new / revised HKFRSs — continued

HKFRS 16: Leases — continued

Before the adoption of HKFRS 16, lease contracts were
classified as operating or finance lease in accordance with

the Group’s accounting policies applicable prior to the DIA.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group accounted for
the leases in accordance with the transition provisions of
HKEFRS 16 and the Group’s accounting policies applicable
from the DIA.

The Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for leases previously classified as operating leases at the
DIA, except for leases for which the underlying asset is of
low value, and the Group applied the following practical

expedients on a lease-by-lease basis.

(a) applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases

with reasonably similar characteristics.

(b) did not recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
to leases for which the lease term ends within 12
months of the DIA.

(c) excluded initial direct costs from the measurement of

the right-of-use assets at the DIA.

(d) used hindsight in determining the lease term where the
contract contains options to extend or terminate the

lease.

02

HE-_Z-_TF=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

TEEBRR-&

R RETEEUBEREE
Al -&

BB BHEERFlowt - HE &
T BR A0 7 v S s R B SR 16 R AT
AR U I E S i A A AR
FHEOK - B &0 8 A EH T
AEHE -

TP BR A 7 i B S R o R B R 16 R AR
7 B2 1 AR 0 7 ok U S A R S 1658
F1% 248 9 Ak SC B |1 U Y 0 R 7
7 48 B &t BUR B B AT AR -

T E UCHE R H O A B2 It S i 8
Joy S AL B 0 L R RO M
L M5 o A T R R A AR
BRBRAL o« A5 B 9920 T A B 2 ¥ 4R
P LA W] AT REE U7 3

(@ HAAFGHMUSENHEEAS
R QB -

(b) 307 4 s AL 303 7 UK ME T EE R
1218 J 7R %5 R 2 A B il 5o ) b
HELAHEAE-

(o) JAHWHE A& 6 1 M
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(d) &S ERNAILHE Z#E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-T-TF=A=1+—HILFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHHE-E&

— continued

Adoption of new / revised HKFRSs — continued

HKFRS 16: Leases — continued

At the DIA, right-of-use assets were, on a lease-by-lease

basis, measured at either:

(a) their carrying amount as if HKFRS 16 had been
applied since the commencement date, but discounted

using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the

DIA; or

(b) an amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by
the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments

relating to the lease recognised immediately before the
DIA.

Lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s

incremental borrowing rate at the DIA.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-T-_TF=A=1+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESHBE-&
— continued

R BT SMERESE
8] — &

BB BFEEREI6S  HE—&
RoE—NEZA =1 A EAF®
S B 55178 B B 2 A AL R 1B
BELA 1 YR E R BB R R B Y

Adoption of new / revised HKFRSs — continued

HKFRS 16: Leases — continued

Reconciliation of operating lease commitments disclosed
applying HKAS 17 at 31 March 2019 and lease liabilities
recognised at the DIA is as follows:

AR
HK$°000
F#& T
Operating lease commitments at 31 March 2019 A—E—NHE=ZA=Z+T—HZ
ﬁﬁ%*ﬂh A 121
Less: Short-term leases o A E (74)
Leases of low-value assets = RN (47)

Lease liabilities at 1 April 2019

—FJUENA —HZ B A =

As lessee

At 31 March 2019, prepaid lease payments are up-front
payments to acquire fixed term interests in lessee-occupied
land that are classified as operating leases. Upon application
of HKFRS 16, the prepaid lease payments with carrying
amount amounting to HK$69,279,000 were reclassified
to right-of-use assets and were still presented within the
line item “Property and equipment” in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except
for certain properties and investments in securities, which
are measured at revalued amounts or fair value, as explained

in the accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as that of the Company using

consistent accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 March 2020

03

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Basis of consolidation — continued

All intra-group balance, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full upon consolidation.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control and continue to be

consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and within
equity in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The non-controlling interests in the acquiree, that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in event of
liquidation, are measured initially either at fair value or at
the present ownership instruments’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. This choice of measurement basis is made on an

acquisition-by-acquisition basis.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests on the basis of existing
ownership interests and the possible exercise of conversion
of potential voting rights is not considered. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to the owners of the
Company and the existing non-controlling interest even if
this results in the existing non-controlling interests having a

deficit balance.

C/%mge: in awnem/aip interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly

in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Basis of consolidation — continued

Changes in ownership interest — continued

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest determined at the
date when control is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interests at the date when control
is lost. The amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the disposed subsidiary
are accounted for on the same basis as would be required
if the parent had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Any investment retained in the former subsidiary
and any amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are
accounted for as a financial asset, associate, joint venture or

others as appropriate from the date when control is lost.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group reassesses whether it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that

there are changes to one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position which
is presented in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The carrying amount
of the investments is reduced to its recoverable amount
on an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the

Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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Year ended 31 March 2020

03

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Property and equipment

Property and equipment, other than buildings, are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Repairs and maintenance are charged to

profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Buildings are stated at revalued amount, being the fair value
at the date of valuation less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Fair value is determined
by independent valuations which are performed annually.
Increases in valuation are credited to the property
revaluation reserve. Decreases in valuation are first offset
against increases on earlier valuations in respect of the
same asset and are thereafter charged to profit or loss. Any
subsequent increases are credited to profit or loss up to
the amount previously charged and thereafter to property

revaluation reserve.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less

accumulated impairment losses of property and equipment

over their estimated useful lives from the date on which

they are available for use and after taking into account their

estimated residual values, using the straight-line method, at

the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land Shorter of the term of the lease,
or 27 years

Buildings Shorter of the term of the lease,
or 27 years

Leasehold improvements  Shorter of the term of the lease
or 5 to 10 years

Motor vehicles and yacht 4 to 10 years

Office equipment 3 to 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 to 7 years

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in

the year in which the item is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Prepaid lease payments

Before 1 April 2019, prepaid lease payments are up-front
payments to acquire fixed term interests in lessee-occupied
land that are classified as operating leases. The premiums
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses and are amortised over the remaining
lease terms of land on a straight-line basis to profit or
loss. From 1 April 2019, those payments are accounted
for as “Right-of-use assets” and included in “Property and

equipment”.

Intangible assets
Trading rights

Trading rights confer eligibility on the Group to trade
on the Stock Exchange. The trading rights have no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the Group
can use to generate cash flows. As a result, the trading
rights are considered by the management of the Group
as having indefinite useful lives because they are expected
to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The
trading rights will not be amortised until its useful life is
determined to be finite. They will be tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that they may

be impaired.

The useful life of the trading rights is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues
to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is account for on a

prospective basis.

Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite useful life are stated at
costs less any impairment losses. Impairments are reviewed
annually or when there are any indications that the club

memberships have suffered impairment loss.
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Year ended 31 March 2020

03

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain

control of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group

continues to recognise the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group recognises the financial
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and an

associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for accounts receivable without
a significant financing component within HKFRS 15)
are initially recognised at their fair value plus, in the
case of financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.
Such accounts receivable are initially measured at their

transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt investment measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCT”); (iii) equity investment measured at FVOCI; or
(iv) measured at FVPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and measurement — continued

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition

depends on the Group’s business model for managing the

financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash

flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified

subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group

changes its business model for managing them, in which

case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first

day of the first annual reporting period following the

change in the business model.

1)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising from
impairment, derecognition or through the amortisation

process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include
accounts receivable, deposits and other receivables,
bank balances — client accounts and bank balances —

general accounts and cash.
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Year ended 31 March 2020

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and measurement — continued

2)

Financial assets at FVPL

These investments include financial assets that are
not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, including
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies
and financial assets that are otherwise required to be
measured at FVPL. They are carried at fair value, with
any resultant gain and loss recognised in profit or loss,
which does not include any dividend or interest earned
on the financial assets. Dividend or interest income is

presented separately from fair value gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling it

in the near term;

(ii) part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking on initial recognition;

or

(iii) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee
contract or not a designated and effective hedging

instrument.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at FVPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on

different bases.

The Group’s financial assets mandatorily measured at

FVPL include investments in securities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when
the liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or

expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are direct attributable to the issue of

the financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payable
and accrued charges and other payables. All financial
liabilities are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method, unless the effect of discounting would be

insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments

unless otherwise specified.
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03

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECL”) on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost to which the impairment requirements
apply in accordance with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific
treatments as detailed below, at each reporting date, the
Group measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at
an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on
that financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an

amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e.
the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life

of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due
to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the

entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12

months after the reporting date.

0]

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED &€ mEBER AR

TESBRR-&

EWMIE-&
HEERE
A5 [ e SR AR HE S A ST E I S M E
FE I TH M5 B0 18 2 e 1R B (LI
1B oK ¥ BE A s B 5 i 4 Y R 25 95
) o BRTF SCHFHE Y R SR AL 5
AR > W4 g E A (s B R
H W25 fiE w8 DA AR B & 3G 0 - AR [ &
A R A M E G S EN S EE 2
W24 B 2 e R o 0l E
(15 B R B B 40 25 il 58 LA AR 4 3 1
> A4 R R 45 R 1208 H A &
FER N SEFI RS E E 2 iR
{ﬁo

WG k1R 2 il &7

T 5 6 12 7 <6 Bl T H T 4F 0 R
5 B 18 (B0 Br A Bl 8 X BLE) 19
LRI HEAG = o

MEMEENS > FHEEBRRSGHE

REAT R B A S A B B R
FE T I WSO AN B B B T 2

MG B e IR & T R A 4E

HA BT A T RE B2 A SR E AR TR
Bk R - M2 A A SRR A 2

WG SRR — 5 AR
A A REAE i i H IR 1208 H R g AR i
il THZNEN -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 £



o

g R E U

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued
Impairment of financial assets — continued
Measurement of ECL — continued

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or

more shared credit risk characteristics:
(i) past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(iii) nature of collateral

(iv) industry of debtors

(v) geographical location of debtors

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the

carrying amount of the financial instrument.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that the Group may not
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full if
the financial instrument that meets any of the following

criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group);

or

(ii) there is a breach of financial covenants by the

counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging

default criterion is more appropriate.
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03

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued
Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
In parcicular, the following information is taken into

account in thC assessment:

e the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or

interest on the due dates;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating

(if available);

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor; and

o actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s

ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30

days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the

reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued
Impairment of financial assets — continued
Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(a) it has a low risk of default;

(b) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its

contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(c) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash

flow obligations.

As detailed in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements, the financial instruments determined to have

low credit risk includes bank balances — general accounts.

Simplified approach of ECL

For accounts receivable other than margin clients, without
a significant financing component, the Group applies
a simplified approach in calculating ECL. The Group
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each
reporting date and has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the

economic environment.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events

that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash

flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that

a financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data

about the following events:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower.

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

cvent.

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider.

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.

the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a

deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount based on historical experience of recoveries
of similar assets. The Group expects no significant recovery
from the amount written off. However, financial assets
that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s procedures for recovery
of amounts due, taking into account legal advice if
appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is recognised in profit

or loss.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holders, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value of
the consideration that would be received at that time do not
vary, are accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an equity

component.

At initial recognition, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is measured as the present value of
the future interest and principal payments, discounted
at the market rate of interest applicable at the time of
initial recognition to similar liabilities that do not have
a conversion option. Any excess of the fair value of the
compound instruments over the amount initially recognised
as the liability component is recognised as the equity
component. Transactions costs that related to the issue of a
compound financial instrument are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to the allocation of

the fair value.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expenses recognised in profit
or loss on the liability component is calculated using
the effective interest method. The equity component is
recognised in a separate reserve until either the convertible

bonds are converted or redeemed.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHHE-E&

90

— continued
Convertible bonds — continued

If the convertible bonds are converted, the amount
previously recognised in equity, together with the
carrying amount of the liability component at the time
of conversion, are transferred to share capital and share

premium as consideration for the shares issued.

If the convertible bonds are redeemed, any difference
between the redemption consideration allocated to the
liability component and the net carrying amount of the
liability component is recognised in profit or loss while the
amount previously recognised in equity and the redemption
consideration allocated to the equity component are
recognised or transferred directly to accumulated profits or

losses.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For classification
in the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
equivalents represent assets similar in nature to cash and

which are not restricted as to use.

Revenue recognition
Dividend income

Dividend income from financial assets is recognised when
the Group’s rights to receive dividend is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably. Dividend income from
investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to

receive payment have been established.

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group
is as follows:

(a) Broking services

(b) Corporate finance services
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued
Revenue recognition — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

— continued
Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods or
services promised in a contract with a customer and
identifies as a performance obligation each promise to

transfer to the customer either:

(a) a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that

is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same pattern

of transfer to the customer.

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct

if both of the following criteria are met:

(a) the customer can benefit from the good or service
cither on its own or together with other resources that
are readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or

service is capable of being distinct); and

(b) the Group’s promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of the

contract).
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03

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Revenue recognition — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

— continued
Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred

when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over
time and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria

is met:

(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the

Group performs;

(b) the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer

controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the promised
asset. In determining when the transfer of control occurs,
the Group considers the concept of control and such
indicators as legal title, physical possession, right to
payment, significant risks and rewards of ownership of the

asset, and customer acceptance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Revenue recognition — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

— continued
Timing of revenue recognition — continued

Revenue is recognised on the following bases:

o Commission income for broking business is recorded

as income at a point in time on a trade date basis;

© Underwriting commission income, sub-underwriting
income, placing commission and sub-placing
commission are recognised as income at a point in
time in accordance with the terms of the underlying
agreement or deal mandate when relevant significant

act has been completed;

*  Proof of funds commission and clearing and handling
fee income are recognised at a point in time when
the relevant transactions have been arranged or the

relevant services have been rendered;

e Advisory fee income is recognised over time when
the relevant transactions have been arranged or the

relevant services have been rendered; and

*  Management fee is recognised over time when the

relevant services have been rendered.

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15,
provided the outcome of the performance obligation can
be reasonably measured, the Group applies the output
method (i.e. based on the direct measurements of the value
to the customer of the goods or services transferred to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract) to measure the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation
because the method provides a faithful depiction of the
Group’s performance and reliable information is available
to the Group to apply the method. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the costs incurred until
such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the

performance obligation.
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03

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Revenue recognition — continued

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using
the effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the assets while it is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) in case of

credit-impaired financial assets.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in the currency of HK$, which is

also the Company’s functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property and
equipment, intangible assets and the Company’s
investments in subsidiaries may be impaired or impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may be
reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated, based on the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash

flows independently (i.e. cash-generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Impairment of non-financial assets — continued

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are

recognised as an expense in profit or loss immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as an

income in profit or loss immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an

expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Leases
Applicable from 1 April 2019

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term
leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. All the leases in the

Group are either short-term lease or low-value asset leases.
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03

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Leases — continued

Applicable before 1 April 2019

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

As lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant

lease.

Lease incentives are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the net consideration agreed for the use
of the leased asset. Contingent rentals are recognised
as expenses in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the

associated services are rendered by employees.

Retirement benefit costs

Payment to defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as expenses when employees have rendered service entitling

them to the contributions.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
payments under the Employment Ordinance is the amounts
of future benefit that employees have earned in return
for their services in the current and prior periods. The
obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
method and discounted to its present value and after
deducting the fair value of any related assets, including

those retirement scheme benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in

exchange for shares or rights over shares.

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period or is recognised as an expense in full at the grant
date when share options granted vest immediately, with a

corresponding increase in equity.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve

will be transferred to retained profits/accumulated losses.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at fair value of the goods
or services received, except where the fair value cannot be
reliably estimated, in which case they are measured at fair
value of the equity instruments granted. In all cases, the fair
value is measured at the date the Group obtains the goods

or the counterparty renders the services.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the period as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.
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03

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Taxation — continued

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arising from initial recognition
of goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and

credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investment in subsidiaries except where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_ZT_ZTF=A=+—HLEE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Related parties — continued

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each holding
company, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is

related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are

also related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

holding company of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which

it is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group.
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03

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Related parties — continued

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity

and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes

subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s chief operating decision maker, who is the
board of directors of the Company, for the purpose of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of,

the Group’s various lines of business.

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material

may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of the consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new /
revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and are not
yet effective for the current year, which the Group has not

carly adopted.

Amendments to HKASs 1
and 8

Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKFRSs 7 and 9 Reform

Definition of Material '’

(2)

Amendments to HKFRS 3  Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent

Concessions %

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture 4

(" Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020
) Effective for acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning
of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2020
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2020

The effective date to be determined

(3)
(4)

The directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these
new / revised HKFRSs in future periods will have any

material impact on the result of the Group.
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Year ended 31 March 2020

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements. They affect the
application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going basis
and are based on experience and relevant factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Where appropriate,
revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period of revision and future periods, in case the revision

also affects future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance
for financial assets at amortised cost including accounts
receivable by using various inputs and assumptions
including risk of a default and expected loss rate. The
estimation involves high degree of uncertainty which is
based on the Group’s historical information, recoverable
amount of securities collateral, past collection history of
borrowers, concentration risk of borrowers, the Group’s
actual loss experience, existing market conditions as well
as forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amount
of the financial assets at amortised cost. Details of the key
assumption and inputs used in estimating ECL are set out

in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Tax provision and tax losses

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of certain tax losses of
approximately HK$20,657,000 (2019: HK$26,380,000)
as the realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary

differences will be available in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS - continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued
Revaluation of buildings

The Group’s buildings with carrying amount of
approximately HK$37,750,000 (2019: HK$37,980,000)
are stated at revalued amount based on the valuation carried
out by an independent professional valuer with reference
to recent market transaction prices at the end of reporting
period and/or market rental value for similar properties at
similar locations, adjusted for certain estimates of market

conditions.

In determining the fair value of the buildings, the valuer
has based on a method of valuation which involves, inter
alia, sales price of comparable properties in close proximity
adjusted for differences in key valuation attributes,
such as size and age. In relying on the valuation report,
management has exercised their judgement and is satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions as at the end of each reporting period.
Particulars of the buildings of the Group are set out in note

18 to the consolidated financial statements.

HE-_Z-_TF=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

4. BARETHEETRAE &

AT RERZZETERER-&
HEFE A

A 45 18] B T {H 4Y £537,750,0009 76 (=
ZE— JL4F : 37,980,000% ¥ ) Z HEF
e EAL SR > B SEIRIEH
TS A E R AT 2 A &
W2 25 itk B0 oK 1 3 A T 35 58 ) 1B
Je /B A i AR 25 B 2 JE A 2E R T
B & E A - AR A AR
AT EE o

TP 7 R T N FUAELIRE o A (R DL A
EI7 8 M KHE > E o & CE )
AR 2 W] LB ) 26 2 B RS R
B A (BB M b 2 22 51 i an RF A
PR > 1R SRR o O Al (R B
T O AT R B > 30 1F MG (E T
5 BE#) B R A% i R 2 BLIRE T
oo ABAEEMET 2R A
S5 R M k18

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 ££$8 * GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED &€ mEBERA A

103



104

wr B BT 8 R B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE—

—EF=A=+HLFE

Year ended 31 March 2020

5.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group consists of debt, when applicable,
and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital as disclosed in note 31
to the consolidated financial statements and reserves as
disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. The management reviews the capital structure by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. In view of this, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt
or the redemption of existing debt. The Group’s overall

strategy remains unchanged throughout the year.

Certain group entities are regulated by the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) and
are required to comply with the financial resources
requirements according to the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R”). The
Group’s regulated entities are subject to minimum paid-up
share capital requirements and liquid capital requirements
under the SF(FR)R. Management closely monitors, on a
daily basis, the liquid capital level of these entities to ensure
compliance with the minimum liquid capital requirements
under the SF(FR)R. The Group’s regulated entities have
complied with the capital requirements imposed by the
SE(FR)R throughout the years ended 31 March 2020 and
2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

HE-_Z-_TF=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

6. E@MIH

Categories of financial instruments EFEMITA
2020 2019
—g=¥E| % NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
i FET RPN
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at FVPL o AEFE AR 2
4 & 104 170
Amortised cost I B A (a) 4,278,104 5,274,880
Financial liabilities E@MERE
Amortised cost Fic 4k 5 WA (b) (483,849) (1,438,170)
Notes: B 5E -

(a) Financial assets at amortised cost include accounts receivable,
deposits and other receivables (excluding prepayments),
bank balances — client accounts and bank balances — general

accounts and cash.

(b) Financial liabilities at amortised cost include accounts
payable, accrued charges and other payables and liability

component of convertible bonds.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
investments in securities, accounts receivable, deposits and
other receivables, bank balances and cash, accounts payable
and accrued charges and other payables. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes to
the consolidated financial statements. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

(a)  HEHES A R 2 Sl 4 B
MR THL ~ i <3 B HC A B R IEL OF (2 36
MR ~ RATHERR —F P IRF DK
MAITHIBE — — BRF RBl& -

(b)  H5HE S A T i 2 4 il £ 0 6 4 RE A
HRIH - B ST T R H A A R T A K
TR R R 2 AR o

MEERERBRREREE

AAEH 2 £ e T H A R i
B MR TH - e S R sk
T~ SRATAE R R Bl AT HRTA DA
JRE w22 Y R A R A RO o MU S
THZFE A R & T B ok 2 A B Y
AR ER o MCAF Rl TR BT B A 2 R B
LA R AR A B B 2 BOR 81 an
B By B e S T B o ORIy
f7 A A5k L 4 AT R A M
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Year ended 31 March 2020

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Market risk

Market risk can be described as the risk of change in fair
value of a financial instrument due to changes in interest

rates, equity prices or foreign currency exchange rates.
y ¥

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate risk should the

need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The management considers that the Group’s exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk on variable-rate bank balances as
a result of the change of market interest rate is insignificant
due to low interest rates on bank balances at the end of the
reporting period, thus no sensitivity analysis is prepared for

cash flow interest rate risk.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities which classified as
financial asset at FVPL. The directors of the Company
manage the exposure by closely monitoring the portfolio of
these financial instruments. The fair value of these financial
instruments will be affected either positively or negatively,
amongst others, by the changes in the closing market prices

of the relevant listed equity securities.

Sensitivity analysis

No sensitivity analysis has been prepared as the directors of

the Company consider the price risk is not significant.

Currency risk

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
currency risk exposure is not significant as most of the
transactions and financial assets and liabilities of the group
entities are denominated in the functional currencies of the
respective entities. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis has

been presented on the currency risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position, which is net of

impairment losses, represents the Group’s exposure to credit

risk.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties arises from
the carrying amounts of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

The Group exposes to credit risk, which is the risk that a
counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when
due. Impairment allowances are made for losses that are
expected at the end of the reporting period. Significant
changes in the economy or environment of a particular
industry segment could result in losses that are different
from those provided for at the end of the reporting period.
Management therefore carefully manages its exposure
to credit risk. The Group’s internal credit risk grading
assessment for financial assets except for accounts receivable

under HKFRS 15 compiled as the following categories:

HE-_Z-_TF=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

tRMITHEH-—&
MERMEEAERKE &

FEmEE

B MBS IR UL 3R 2 O BT < Rl EE 1Y)
iR T B 7% 101 B 9 Ml 1R 3 AR R A £ )
T 3 114 {5 B R B i 1

R 22 5y 365 75 R BE JE AT B AT T W] 2 AR 4R
V) A A o 5 M 4R 2 A 4 ] A R A R L
B - T2 B & B IR UL K B 81 45 TR
SR E 2 R

A [ A B R B > 5% LB AR KK S
77 7 2 9 g R BE S 4 B i I ik
R TR 8K AT e 18 - AR E
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Year ended 31 March 2020

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued

Credit risk — continued

Internal credit rating

REBEEFFR

Performing

J& #)

Underperforming

J& %1% YLK A

Not performing

Nk

Write-off

tRMITHEH-—&
MERMEEAERKE &

FEmRE-&

Description

RS

The balances that have not had a significant
increase in credit risk and 12-month ECL
will be recognised

A B 45 R 2 A5 B g Sl 0 S 2 3 SIf 51F
RS 1218 A TH {5 B 1R

The balances that have had a significant
increase in credit risk and for which the
lifetime ECL will be recognised

A B 45 B 2 A5 B0 T By B 48 e R
2 TE G B e

The balances that have objective evidence
of impairment and for which the lifetime
ECL will be recognised

A R 4 i L B 2 L Tl 1 MR R NI 1 e R 4
iEREIEN - i

The balances that have evidence indicating
that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery

A B A O b BRSNS R R i E
P IR I 8 T A 4 OB NI g ] R I
Z Il 5

ECL treatment
BHEEFBZERRE
12-month (Normal Credit Quality)
128 5 (EFEEER)
Lifetime (Significant increase in
Credit Risk)
2 (5 88 R B 3 18 )
Lifetime (Credit-impaired)

2H (BEf5 HBE)

Amount is written off

R T LA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Credit risk — continued
Accounts receivable from margin clients

The Group provides financing services only to recognised
and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all these margin clients are subject to credit verification
procedures. The margin loans are secured by pledged
marketable securities and margin facilities are set to
ensure that certain proportion of the fair value of pledged
marketable securities of the individual margin clients is

higher than the corresponding outstanding loans.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 58% (2019:
44%) of the total accounts receivable from margin clients

was due from the Group’s ten largest margin clients.

No ageing analysis is disclosed, as in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does not
give additional value in view of the nature of business of

securities margin financing.

The Group’s customer base consists of a wide range of
clients and the accounts receivable from margin clients
are categorised by common risk characteristics that are
representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts

due in accordance with the contractual terms.

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether there is
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
whether the financial asset is credit-impaired and the
amount of loss given default, the Group has taken into
account the credit quality of margin clients, the collateral
to account receivable balances ratio, amount of margin
shortfall of margin clients and pledged marketable securities
and adjusted for forward-looking factors that are specific
to the debtors and general economic conditions of the
industry, in estimating the probability of default of these
financial assets, as well as the loss upon default in each
case. There was no change in the estimation techniques or

methodology made during the year.

HE-_Z-_TF=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2020
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77 M FR A 3007 5% R P e < ol 208 2 LA A
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HE-T-TF=A=1+—HILFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Credit risk — continued
Accounts receivable from margin clients — continued

The Group has established a margin client credit risk
classification system and performs credit risk management
based on margin client classification in one of three
categories of internal credit rating. The information about
the ECL for the accounts receivable from margin clients
at the end of the reporting period is summarised below.
After considering the above factors, net impairment loss of
approximately HK$110,907,000 (2019: HK$20,085,000)

was recognised during the year.

At 31 March 2020

tRMITHEH-—&
MERMEEAERKE &

EEmE—&

JEW AR 7 5 7 HEIH — 78

N R = VA o o S R N < 9N
ARG  WREBRBEEF 28 (5T
SRNFAE B R AR A H A — ) AT
15 BRI 45 B o A i 15 TR 2 M AR
a4 &P AR TE Y U (S B0 1R SRR
WA - M E LMK ERE > FRNE
e 78 W {E 5 8 1F % 49110,907,000% JC
(= ZF—JU4F : 20,085,000% 50) °

R-ZZE-Z2F=A=+—H

Gross carrying Loss
Internal credit rating Basis of ECL amount allowance
RS EFFR BHGEEBRER # AR (E BiERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FERT
Performing JE 4 12-month 1218 H 3,400,141 16,408
Underperforming JEZIE P RKAE  Lifetime et 104,030 7,822
Not performing N Lifetime 4 1 188,123 124,088
3,692,294 148,318

At 31 March 2019 —“NLEFE=ZA=+—H
Gross carrying Loss
Internal credit rating Basis of ECL amount allowance
AR AE B RE AR T B 1R 2 e A i T (L s TH 93
HK$000 HK$°000
Tt B
Performing J& #) 12-month 1218 A 3,647,664 17,702
Underperforming JBE A TE VLKA Lifedime 2 53,167 3,795
Not performing NIE 4 Lifetime il 31,732 15,914
3,732,563 37,411
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued

Credit risk — continued

Accounts receivable from margin clients — continued

At 31 March 2020, the Group recognised loss allowance of
approximately HK$148,318,000 (2019: HK$37,411,000)

on its accounts receivable from margin clients. The

movement in the loss allowance for accounts receivable

from margin clients during the year

Year ended 31 March 2020

is summarised below.

HE-_Z-_TF=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

tRMITHEH-—&
MERMEEAERKE &

EEEE—#&

JEY IR 35 2 5 )7 I — 48

AR CRFEZA =T —H o AEE
BERE A R 8 & & 5 R JE i AR ks 18
5 %1148,318,0005 76 (& — JL4F
37,411,000%5 7G) ° 4F [N B U IR 3 & %
FIREM R EE s s a T -

BE-_ZE-_ZEF=-A=1t—HLEE

12-month
ECL Lifetime ECL
1218 A
HHBEE
| 5F i 2HEREERR
Under- Not
Performing  performing  performing Total
i )
& % BRRE BN mat
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TET TER
At the beginning of the reporting i S ]
period 17,702 3,795 15,914 37,411
(Decrease) Increase in allowance (BB 2D ) 388 8 45 (1,294) 4,027 108,174 110,907
At the end of the reporting period i A R 16,408 7,822 124,088 148,318
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HE-T-TF=A=1+—HILFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMTH—&
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERREEEEREEX &
— continued
Credit risk — continued EEmE—#&
Accounts receivable from margin clients — continued JE W (R 78 2 5 7 HEIH — A
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE_ZT-NF=A=1+—HIEHFEE
12-month
ECL Lifetime ECL
1218 A
HMEE
B EMENEEER
Under- Not
Performing  performing  performing Total
JE#)
Béd  ERKE NG At

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TH#T R T THT

At the beginning of the reporting RSB KES

period, as restated 15,902 2,243 20 18,165
Increase in allowance bl IR 1,800 1,552 16,733 20,085
Amount written off WsE 4% - = (839) (839)
At the end of the reporting period iSRS K 17,702 3,795 15,914 37,411
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Credit risk — continued
Accounts receivable from margin clients — continued

The following significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of the balances contributed to the increase in the

loss allowance during the year:

(i) Increase in loss given default rate due to the increase
in shortfall portion of margin loans which are not fully
secured amounted to approximately HK$186,762,000
(2019: HK$34,553,000); and

(i) Additional loss allowance of approximately
HK$89,556,000 (2019: HK$15,838,000) as a result of
difficulties on repayment by accounts receivable from

margin clients.

The Group has pledged securities as collateral amounted
to approximately HK$48,634,000 (2019: HK$3,642,000)
in respect of the credit-impaired accounts receivable from

margin clients.

Deposits with financial institutions

The credit risk on bank balances — general accounts
is limited because majority of the counterparties are
financial institutions with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies and state-owned banks
with good reputation. No loss allowance was recognised for

both years.

Liquidity risk

As part of its ordinary broking activities, the Group is
exposed to liquidity risk arising from timing difference
between settlement with clearing house or brokers and
customers. To address the risk, the treasury team works
closely with the settlement division on monitoring the
liquidity gap. The Group manages its liquidity risk through
maintaining sufficient cash. As part of the measures to
safeguard liquidity, the Group has maintained substantial
stand-by banking facilities, diversifying the funding sources

and spreading out the maturity dates.

HE-_Z-_TF=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

tRMITHEH-—&
MERMEEAERKE &

FEmME-&

HEW AR i & % R — 4

DT &5 B 40 R T (L F) =K 8 ) A 54
A s SR S 3

() R I BE I A BOE K
Z AR A A RE A 1 A
186,762,000% 7T (= & — JL4F :
34,553,000%% J0) 5 B i 15 & 47 18
KELF K

(i) AREIRARBLEEFTIER Y @
A 4 K R B > AR R AR AN s R A A
#189,556,000% 7C (= F — JL4FE -
15,838,0004% JC)

A4 [H ks B B0 BE 0 FE R 78
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Year ended 31 March 2020

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMTH—&
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERREEEEREEX &
— continued
Liquidity risk — continued EEmE—#&
Liquidity and interest risk tables it B B R F 5 B Y
The following tables detail the Group’s remaining F %#ﬂzﬁ% 9] 45 Pl R R 4 o o
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based on the ek 2 F R & K BIR o« T RAPEE
agreed repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up ﬂ‘lﬁ TR WG BB 4 U i (F2 A 2 1 ] i
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities R s RER B mMmK - PEE
according to the earliest date on which the Group can FEHERAGHESRE - [ RATHE 4
be required to pay. The tables include both interest and i B AR RE ] — 5 BR[O R 0 OR Z IR T
principal cash flows. The difference between the “Total B35z =4 > REGH T EE
undiscounted cash flows” column and the “Carrying i R 2R A A Bl i i > M BB a0
amount at the end of reporting period” column represents Ol N B B SR G RS IR B
the future contractual cash flows attributable to the RZIRMEE -
instrument which are not included in the carrying amount
of the financial liability on the consolidated statement of
financial position.
Carrying
amount at
Repayable in Total the end of
Repayable less than Within undiscounted the reporting
on demand 1 month 1 year cash flows period
AEER ARMEA AERRE REEHR
®"E AEE 15K mERRE ZIREE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TER TER TEx TEx TER
At 31 March 2020 R-B_F
£=A=t+-AH
Accounts payable JE A HRIE 358,726 119,769 = 478,495 478,475
Accrued charges and W w2 1 S At
other payables JE A 30 = 5,374 - 5,374 5,374
358,726 125,143 - 483,869 483,849
GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ##£®&EHBR/AR ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2020 f#k
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_Z-_TF=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMITH—#&
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERAREEEEREEX &
— continued
Liquidity risk — continued EEmE—#&
Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued B B R F 5 B 5 7 — A
Carrying
amount at
Repayable in Total the end of
Repayable less than Within  undiscounted  the reporting
on demand 1 month 1 year cash flows period
AEER  ARUEA AEBB S  REEBR
%3 R 14ER i AR Z MR
HK$’ 000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T THT T#T T#T Tt
At 31 March 2019 REZF—NEF
=A=+—H
Accounts payable JE A AR 1,046,563 149,665 - 1,196,228 1,196,203
Accrued charges and JE = R H A
other payables JRE £t 2B - 8,443 = 8,443 8,443
Liability component of RS
convertible bonds A5 - - 264,688 264,688 233,524
1,046,563 158,108 264,688 1,469,359 1,438,170

The following tables detail the Group’s expected maturity
for certain financial assets. The tables below have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities
of the financial assets, including interests that will be
earned on those assets, except for those financial assets
which are not repayable on demand. The analysis is based
on when the Group anticipates that the cash flows will
occur. The difference between the “Total undiscounted
cash flows” column and the “Carrying amount at the end
of reporting period” column represents the possible future
cash flows attributable to the instrument which are not
included in the carrying amount of the financial asset on the
consolidated statement of financial position. The inclusion
of information on financial assets is necessary in order to
understand the Group’s liquidity risk management as the

liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—EF=A=+HLFE

HE—

Year ended 31 March 2020

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued

Liquidity risk — continued

Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued

6. $RITH &
MERMEEAERKE &

=EmE—-&

B & 2 R F| 5 g 5 7 —

Carrying
Repayable amount at
Repayable in between Total the end of
Repayable less than lto3 undiscounted  the reporting
on demand 1 month months Undated cash flows period
an

AEEX  AMER 1EEAR AERAE  REEER
& nEE & #AH b+ ZRAE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TR TR THr T T TR

At31 March 2020 R-2-2FZA=1-A
Accounts receivable, net TR IR 1 4 3,544,786 20,892 - - 3,565,678 3,564,867
Deposits and other receivables fed R ISR 7,088 - - - 7,088 7,088
[nvestments in securities BHENE - - = 104 104 104
Bank balances - client accounts REBR-EFFRR 250,869 194,532 = = 445,401 445,239

Bank balances - general accounts Rirkth-—RF kB2
and cash 188,555 58,345 14,063 - 260,963 260,910
3,991,298 273,769 14,003 104 4,279,034 4,278,208
Carrying
Repayable amount at
Repayable in between Total the end of
Repayable less than 1w} undiscounted  the reporting
on demand 1 month months Undated cash flows period

1S
ARER  ARMBAR  1EEAR AMREE  RERESA
i i i EHH RELH IR
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000
Tk Tk Tk Tk Tk Tk
At31 March 2019 RZZ-0E
ZRET-H

Accounts receivable, net ViR TR 5 4 3,696,429 12,334 - - 3,708,763 3,707,421
Deposits and other receivables i ARG 1,397 - - - 1,397 1,397
Investments in securities 5754 - = = 170 170 170
Bank balances - client accounts BT ER-EFER 651,488 491,726 = = 1,143,214 1,143,120

Bank balances - general accounts Rirkith-—RF kB2
and cash 354930 57,719 10,323 - 4297 422,94
4,704,244 561,779 10,323 170 5,276,516 5,275,050
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Fail‘ value measurements

The following presents the assets and liabilities measured
at fair value or required to disclose their fair value in these
financial statements on a recurring basis across the three
levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13
Fair Value Measurement, with the fair value measurement
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the entire measurement. The levels of

inputs are defined as follows:

e Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the

Group can access at the measurement date;
. Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset

or liability.

(i) Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets Fair value at 31 March
tREE R=ZA=+—-HZARE
2020 2019
“ECEE | ZEZNHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
THER T
Listed equity securities 104 170
i AR

HE-T-_TF=A=1+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

tWMIBE-&

AREHE

DL 5 LA A B M 4 O A M ST o
PEAARBZEELAME HEE
Vs B S R4 1 S 1358 20 7 (4 A 4 BT
REZZMMBHRDI > % b RMS
BRI E A R R R A
150G VG A0 A s B 4 o A B
PR EMT :

o BIE (REER) - AEEREE
H%ﬂ@ﬁzwﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
{6 BT P 2 R ORAETH )

o H2E HIEASEZIREUS
F&EﬁTE%&ﬁ%%mﬁﬁ
AN B R

o H3E (REER) c EERARZ
TTﬁmﬁAﬁﬁ

(i) AR EFEZ 2HEE

Fair value Valuation techniques

hierarchy and key inputs

EERMR

MREER EX-1P8 ¢4

Level 1 Quoted prices in an active market
518 it T35 W

There were neither transfers between Level 1 and Level
2 fair value measurement nor transfers into and out of
Level 3 fair value measurement during years ended 31
March 2020 and 2019.

REBE_F _FER_F—ILF
ZA=t—HILEE > B1ERE
208 o~ SUfE R 2 [ S H
EERZEAI R A NS
4o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE—

6.

—EF=A=+HLFE

Year ended 31 March 2020

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value measurements — continued

(ii) Financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at

fair value

The management of the Group considers that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated statement of financial position

approximate their fair values.

Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to

offsetting

The disclosures set out in the tables below include
financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement that covers similar financial instruments that are

either:

. offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of

financial position; or

*  not offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of

financial position as the offsetting criteria are not met.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement made
between the Group and Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited (‘HKSCC”) and a broker, the Group has
a legally enforceable right to set off the money obligations
receivable and payable with HKSCC and a broker on the
same settlement date and the Group intends to settle on a

net basis.

In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off the accounts receivable and payable with its
retail customers in the Group’s brokerage business (the
“brokerage clients”) that are due to be settled on the same
date with reference to the settlement method set by the
HKSCC and the Group intends to settle these balances on a

net basis.

6.

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED #&#F&m&EBERAT o

tWMIE-—&

AREHE-&

(ii) G LA 42 3 T
4@@%
A 4 [ 45 B R 5 S G A TS 3
%?%%ﬂﬁﬂ%z%ﬂ%%&

A A2 R E AR 5 2 AR
{ETHZS°

TREERSHEEIEE

TR PR AR R A AR
VR BT 2 5 — 1 A T M ol O 3R
ML T H 22 B % PR &l E =
L&A S -E

o RAEMEESMPORIEEHEE
69

o R E M MR R R E UK
S 1 T 7 AE A S T AR 5 S
AR VLR ALE & -

AR A 5 1] B 7 o P R 5 A IR A
([FBEE ) SRR B AT B 15 AU 5

TCWT&E‘%=$%I§]%7€A{£T§mﬁJ%
A7 HE ) 41K 819 7 8 A %N N CIREE
J &5 A 1 I i B B A5 SR AR > i HL

ZIK%EIﬁﬁU{?%EﬁT%%} :

BEAh > 295 75 U 45 B AT S &5 T
> AR F A A T AT HE R B
AEMBHLEBZTEREF (RBLF
5 1) T TR] 0 A5 A R i % B A R
H > T HA LA BT A -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to

offsetting — continued

Except for balances which are due to be settled on the same
date which are being offset, amounts due from/to HKSCC,
a broker and the brokerage clients that are not to be settled
on the same date, financial collateral including cash and
securities received by the Group and deposits placed with
HKSCC and a broker do not meet the criteria for offsetting
in the consolidated statement of financial position since
the right of set-off of the recognised amounts is only

enforceable following an event of default.

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial assets

after impairment

HER
ERALH
BELE
HEK$000
TR
At31 March 2020 W-BZ8FZf=1-H
Accounts receivable arising from the business of dealing BEIMEEE R NEK
in securities and future contracts s 2 IR 3,017,874

“ra TR M R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_ZT_ZTF=A=+—HLEE

Year ended 31 March 2020

6. $RITH-&
tHEERSREBE I EY &

BRI RSS2 B 2 &R A& 8R40 > i

i E RS &

ARG HEAE P B E A

AR DT ATEAT > WG H AR
e EA B A - R RREE
R ~ R R Y (BG4 J T ik
Ba ki) - FREESE ELZ
> AR ERE G B IR LRI

2 At -

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial ~ Net amounts of
liabilities ~ financial assets
set offin the presented in the

consolidated  consolidated

statement statement
of financial of financial
position position

REREE  RERME
RREEE  HRR2S
ZEBRER  2EREE

L #B
HKS000  HKS$'000
TR TER

(53,007) 3,564,807

Related amount not set off in the

consolidated statement of financial position
Financial Collateral

instruments pledged ~ Net amount

ERIGRIBRRREE 2 ABER

EHIR CERERY 7B

HKSO00  HES000  HKS$'000
TEL TR TER

(905)  (3,495,914) 08,048
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HE-T-TF=A=1+—HILFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to

6. EMIAE—#&
CRHEEHESHAEEES &
offsetting — continued
Gross amounts
of recognised
financial ~ Net amounts of
liabilities  financial assets

setoffin the  presented in the

Related amount not set off in the

Grossamounts  consolidated ~ consolidated
of ecogised T e— consolidated statement of financial posicion
financial assets of financial of financial Financial Collateral
after impairment position position instruments pledged Net amount

REalsE  RERUE

HiEKE RRxg#Ez  RAREZ
EEASR  CRALH SHER T EREREHRRE MR Z HRER
KELE  aR4E H  GRIE CHENERYD i
HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Tk Tk T T T T
At31 March 2019 REF-NE=A=1-H
Accounts receivable arising from the business of BERMKEE R ER
dealing in securities and future contracts i 2 ERR 3,805,075 (97,654) 3,707,421 (1,059) (3,087,644) 18,718
Gross amounts  Net amounts
of recognised ~ of financial
financial assets liabilities
Coihis et Related amount not set off in the
Grossamounts consolidated  consolidated
. consolidated statement of financial position
of recognised statement statement
financial ~ of financial ~  of financial Financial Collateral
liabilities position position  instruments pledged ~ Net amount
RERHE
fRzEEe  REAHE
BRZ  ERIER HRRESZ YERGREBRRRMESZRBLE
SRARAT BESE <SREETE SRIR CERERY it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin Thn Thn TR Tin Tin
At 31 March 2020 R-8-8£ZA=t-R
Accounts payable arising from the business of BERMEEEANER
dealing in securities and furures contracts hEE 2 AR (531,482) 53,007 (478,475) 905 - (477,570)
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to

offsetting — continued

At 31 March 2019

Accounts payable arising from the business of

dealing in securities and furures contracts

(ross amounts
of recognised
financial

liabilities

e
ERAREH
HKS 000
T

RZF-MEZAZ4-H

Wi RIRRE R 05EH

s 2 BRI (1,293,857)

“ra TR M R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_ZT_ZTF=A=+—HLEE

Year ended 31 March 2020

6. $RITH-&
tHEERSREBE I EY &

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial assets
set off in the
consolidated
statement

of financial
position

R aRH
R
EEAeR
KE4E
HKS 000
T

97,654

Net amounts
of financial
liabilities
presented in the
consolidated
statement

of financial

position

e &M
IHEZAL
SRARTE

HK$ 000
T

(1,196,203)

Related amount not set off in the

consolidated statement of financial posicion

Financial Collateral

instruments Net amount

pledged

TERG R HERA R EE HRE R

SHMIR  CHERERY i
HKSO00  HKSO0  HKS000
T#7 T T
1,059 - (L1514

The amounts which have been offset against the related

recognised financial assets and financial liabilities in the

Group’s consolidated statement of financial position are

measured on the same basis as the recognised financial assets

and financial liabilities, which is amortised cost.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 fF5§ °

A A% 4 ) 45 5 B 5 51K 0 3% BEL A
B C iRl e R I A RS 2
W RECHEREMEE LA
AR [ 2 2 e (R348 8 B A ) =t
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-T-TF=A=1+—HILFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

7. REVENUE 7. Wz
2020 2019
—eo®E| % Ak
HK$’000 HK$°000
FH 5 Tt
Revenue from contracts with BREEUHREERE155%
customers within HKFRS 15 ﬂ AZEFAHWE
Brokerage commission #8401 4 26,730 37,288
Underwriting and placing commission A1 8 I e 5 A 4 5,824 5,509
Proof of funds commission & 4 A 4 1,000 7,160
Other commission FHo Al AR 4 102 33
Clearing and handling fee income HE A TFHEBERA 1,819 2,365
Adpvisory fee income LR PN 257 2,089
Management fee GESLIE 2,520 2,520
38,252 56,964
Interest revenue calculated using the LB BT B A
eﬁ[ective interest method Z FiB V&3
— bank balances and time-deposits — SR AT 45 B B BAE K 5,877 4,235
— other financial assets at amortised — PR AT R 2
costs At 4 Tl &
— accounts receivable — JEIWIETE 325,233 340,390
331,110 344,625
Total revenue U 2% 48 28 369,362 401,589
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. REVENUE - continued

In addition to the information shown in segment

disclosures, the revenue from contracts with customers
within HKERS 15 is disaggregated as follows:

HE-_Z-_TF=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

I 55 — 4
I 4 0 0 8 T A RS o S A S

e 5 1SS T 7 1 S 4 2
SRt

2020 2019
—ER0RF | _EF 0K
HK$’000 HK$°000
TR T#IT
Timing of revenue recognition: W 7 AR 2 IF [T P -
At a point in time RERBE
Brokerage commission KA & 26,730 37,288
Underwriting and placing commission £ 81 T i 5 A 4 5,824 5,509
Proof of funds commission B G b 4 1,000 7,160
Other commission HoAth A 42 102 33
Clearing and handling fee income HERTHBRA 1,819 2,365
35,475 52,355
Over time e B 2
Advisory fee income AN 257 2,089
Management fee I 2,520 2,520
2,777 4,609
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HE—

—EF=A=+HLFE

Year ended 31 March 2020

8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is currently organised into three operating
divisions, namely, broking, securities margin financing and
corporate finance. These divisions are the basis on which
the board of directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, reviews the operating results
and financial information. The principal activities of these
divisions are as follows:

Broking — Provision of stockbroking,
futures and options broking and
underwriting and placements

Securities margin — Provision of securities margin
financing financing
Corporate finance —  Provision of corporate advisory

services

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 2
to the consolidated financial statements. For the purposes of
monitoring segment performance and allocating resources

between segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than certain property and equipment / prepaid
lease payments and property and equipment, club
memberships, certain prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, certain bank balances and certain tax

recoverable.

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than certain accrued charges and other payables,
certain deferred tax liabilities and liability portion of

convertible bonds.

e all profit or loss are allocated to operating segments
other than certain amortisation and depreciation,
certain lease payments for short-term leases or leases
of low value assets / operating lease rentals, certain
management fee, certain finance costs, certain staff
costs and certain other expenses incurred for strategic

planning by the Group.

Segment information about these divisions is presented

below.

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED &€ mEBER AR

7 EB & ¥

$%@ﬁﬁﬁ&3@“t%ﬁ=w
BH - EmHERBEME > ULSER
5 o z#%WE$“7%$ﬁ'WIE
BERRAE) M AE I E R
ZHEME o GEIM Y TEERMT ¢

P ) — PRI A
B K A hE 48 40 IR B
DL Ko 6 88 I e s

EAREAES — REBHEESH

il & %

1> R — PR SER AR ES

B 2 & UK BLAR A IS IR R

B st T ol 2 A5 4 [ e s BOR AR R o £

BE 54 TR R B K Ay B W] 2 B WA iR

o BREBOYWY3E BB TE AT A K

ﬁu&%%& IR
%Pﬁﬁ SKIE ~ i g e At R i

FRIH T SR AT A B KA 4 Wk
@ﬁﬁ%v%ﬁ%%ﬂﬂﬁ%%

L5 -

o BRI MBS 2 K OH At B AT AR
TH ¥ 5 A0 SiE B T AR B T 4R A
oz A4 > BT A AR

4 WL AR 5 -

. ﬁ%$%@2%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁz
FS 53 480 G e B B~ e S AL B

&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%zﬂ%ﬁ KRR
HEME  WHEHRER  Th
lE A~ R B TAS Ky

FHoAb B AN B A i A Sk 8 2

4 WL AR 5 -

BEAE AR 1Y 2 7 5B EORL R R AR e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

results by reportable operating segments.

Year ended 31 March 2020

BE—Z-_ZF=RA=+—HILFE
Year ended 31 March 2020
DERE R — &
DR EREE
PLR 2 #2780 T i 588 o iRt 2 A
B2 i 4 B ERA 0T ©

BE-Z-_ZTF=ZA=+—-HLFE

Securities
margin Corporate
Broking financing finance Consolidated
BE
ki HKRESHE ERE =a
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
THER FTHER TAERT TAERT
Segment revenue o 43,938 325,167 257 369,362
Segment result e 3,953 213,960 164 218,077
Unallocated corporate expenses Ao BREE M (14,610)
Unallocated finance costs R4 e Bl & B AR (32,202)
Profit before taxation Fod AT ¥4 ) 171,265
Year ended 31 March 2019 BEFE—N4E=ZHA=+—HIL4EE
Securities
margin Corporate
Broking financing finance Consolidated
[t
R RESHE EME e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
T T T T 0
Segment revenue o 59,157 340,343 2,089 401,589
Segment result URES 17,718 320,257 1,518 339,493
Unallocated other gains and losses AR 73 B H Al 45 %
and corporate expenses, net JEa 18 DL R A 2
- iiReE (53,462)
Unallocated finance costs 0 B Bl A (96,757)
Profit before taxation Tt i 355 ] 189,274
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE—

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment assets and liabilities

—TF=RA=+—HIEFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by reportable operating segments.

At 31 March 2020

7 EE R - &
SHEEREE

PATR 7 #2280 T i 58 o m R it 2 A&
B R B AR BT -

R-ZZ-Z2F=A=+—H

Securities
margin Corporate
Broking financing finance Consolidated
BE
g REELWME TERE wRE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT TET THERT THERT
Segment assets o G 399,702 3,893,585 9,820 4,303,107
Unallocated assets Rl G E 116,173
Consolidated assets GEEE 4,419,280
Segment liabilities 1 # AL 131,178 351,749 10 482,937
Unallocated liabilities Ko A & 4,870
Consolidated liabilities e = 487,807
At 31 March 2019 —WFE=H=1+—H
Securities
margin Corporate
Broking financing finance Consolidated
Y
B RELME 3 RE gy
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#IT SR T THT
Segment assets o R 538,300 4,732,833 9,732 5,280,865
Unallocated assets KA & E 127,106
Consolidated assets A EE 5,407,971
Segment liabilities i LR 159,828 1,041,015 146 1,200,989
Unallocated liabilities Ko He A E 241,051
Consolidated liabilities = a (R 1,442,040
GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED #£#7< @5 BEHERAT e ANNUAL REPORT 2020 fFi§
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Other segment information

2020

Broking
FES)
HK$°000
TER
Amounts included in the — FI & 2 & it 1 5
measure of segment DIEEFAZ
profit or segment assets: WH
Additions of property and ¥ 3 Je ik Al 2 iR &
equipment 120
Depreciation of property ¥ 3 R it 2 Hr 85
and equipment (1,055)
Fair value losses on BHEBREZARE
investments in securities 5 18 (66)
Gain on disposal of kS E V&L VA
property and equipment e 4 40
Interest income (including  Fl Bt A (145
revenue and other Wi g e L A 7
operating income) ) 6,187
Net impairment loss on HE R E 2 i (L
accounts receivable SRRt =
Finance costs il LA (943)
Commission expenses IEAZES (6,978)
Werite off of accounts 0 IR 5
receivable -

Securities
margin
financing
&5
RESRE
HK$°000
THER

325,167

(110,907)

(300)

“ra TR M R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_Z-_TF=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

DHER—&E
5 5 & R
—g-%f

—

Corporate
finance  Unallocated

TxmE RAE
HK$’000 HK$°000
TR TER

- (6,601)

~
N
1

- (32,202)
(42) -

Consolidated
o)

HK$’000
TR

331,429
(110,907)
(33,145)
(7,020)

(300)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-T-TF=A=1+—HILFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 8. DEER-&
Other segment information — continued HttpEHER —&
2019 —EF-hE
Securities
margin Corporate
Broking financing finance Unallocated ~ Consolidated
Eogss
ma i r¥EME A1 B saE
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
Tt T Tk T T
Amounts included in the — FI & 4 & it A 5
measure of segment NHEERIAZ
profit or segment assets: WE
Additions of property and ¥ 3 Je ikl 2 IR E
equipment 879 = = 3 882
Amortisation of prepaid AT &R 2 4
lease payments, and NS ENE
depreciation of property 2ok
and equipment (1,220) - (1) (5,890) (7,111)
Fair value losses on HHBEZANE
investments in securities &5 15 (22) _ _ _ (22)
Gain on disposal of 5 B 2 ) 22 Wi
subsidiaries fi = = = 12 12
Interest income (including | St A (45U
revenue and other g B At 2 HEE
operating income) A) 4,498 340,343 63 - 344,904
Net impairment loss on HEE BRI 2 3 (L e
accounts receivable B IR 5 = (20,085) - - (20,085)
Loss on redemption of JE I T 4 5 55 2
convertible bonds i 48 - - - (38,867) (38,867)
Finance costs Al ¥ R AR (274) = = (96,757) (97,031)
Commission expenses 4B (8,851) - (609) - (9,460)
Write off of property and #5436 K &
equipment (15) - = = (15)
Geographical information i & & K

AL 2 B AU o R AL
B B AN 2 sk S A IR E)
HE NIl EE KR EBIHE
) WAL A o

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong.
Accordingly, the Group’s revenue from external customers
and all non-current assets (excluding financial assets and

deferred tax assets) are located in Hong Kong.

ERTIEEF2EH

W TR F U
=+ —HIE4EE > W FAEH AL
B A $510%8L A | 2 B R o

Information about major customers

During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, there
were no customers contributing 10% or more of the

Group’s total revenue.
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9. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

10.

“ra TR M R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_Z-_TF=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

9. Ht&EEWA

2020 2019
—EoRF | _FAEF
HK$’°000 HK$°000
FERT TH#TT
Bank interest income $RAT A EMA 319 279
Dividend income B A 6 =
Sundry income HoAt e A 185 156
510 435
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 10. Hftt iz R B 18
2020 2019
—g-gx| % uF
Note HK$’°000 HK$°000
it FERT T#TT
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries [ 8 s Bl 22 I g - 12
Gain on disposal of property and B W 3 B I A
equipment 40 -
Net realised (losses) gains on SEERMATRE G Z B
error trades (5 48) b % 15 4 (29) 36
Fair value changes on investments I RE A REEE)
in securities (66) (22)
Net exchange gains BEE 52 Wi 4 T3 555 544
Loss on redemption of convertible HEf [|] w48 i 2 2 B 18 29
bonds - (38,867)
500 (38,297)
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HE-T-TF=A=1+—HILFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

11. STAFF COSTS 11. ET AR
2020 2019
S =
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAR Tt
Staff costs including directors’ BIA (BIEHEME)
emoluments:
Salaries and other benefits Hr 4 Mo HoAth AE A1) 19,170 18,200
Retirement benefit scheme B R A A1 5 ) £ 2
contributions 708 711
19,878 18,911
12. FINANCE COSTS 12. @& B A
2020 2019
—g=®5| —~% A%
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
F FExT FHsT
Interest on bank borrowings W|ATRHEZFE 779 127
Interest on bank overdraft RATHE L Z F B 16 -
Interest on clients’ accounts EERF 2B 148 147
Interest on convertible bonds Al & S5 2 LS 29 31,178 96,675
Interest on loan from the ultimate B BAE RN w2 B ECRLE
holding company 1,024 82
33,145 97,031
13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 13. Bt Al 2 Al
This is stated after charging: e MR T5IEIE :
2020 2019
—g=%F| ~%T K
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T T
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 5 i ) 4 1,400 1,400
Werite off of property and equipment 55 W 2 K s - 15
Werite off of accounts receivable i I i R TR 300 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s remuneration

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six

(2019: six) directors were as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2020

HE-_Z-_TF=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

14. EERTHRARKEEM=

(a)

EERTHRAZME
EAEBEMARZ (ZFE—JUE N
B)VEFKXHZMEWT

BE_2_TF=A=t+-—-HL
FE

Executive
Director
and Chief Non-
Executive ~ Executive executive
Officer ~ Director ~ Director  Independent Non-executive Directors
HTESR
A UNEE FYUMES BUkunEs
Mr. Shum Ms.Ng M. Cheung
Mr.Hung  KinWai, MrHung MrChan YauKuen,  ChiKong
Sui Kwan Frankie ~ Hon Man Ka Kit Carmen Ronald Total
ARAEE SEEEE BEXEE RIFRRE ROt REIRE ag
HK$000  HK$°000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HEKS$000
Tér TEx Tz TEn TErR TRz TEx
Fees LIEA - - - 116 116 116 348
Other emoluments: Hm -
Salaries and other benefits (note i) 4 ROLHARA (k) 698 488 - - - - 1,186
Performance and discretionary I REEICAL (3ki)
bonus (note i) 72 51 = = = = 123
Contributions to retirement B IRA IRt B 55
benefit schemes 18 V4 - - - - 4
Commission [i% 188 95 - - - - 283
Total emoluments Gl ko 976 061 - 116 116 116 1,985
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-T-TF=A=1+—HILFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 4. BEERTHEABRREEM S
— 15

OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION - continued

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s remuneration

— continued

Year ended 31 March 2019

(a)

EERTRAZME -&

BE-_F-NEFE=A=+—H1
FRE

Executive
Director
and Chief Non-
Executive  Executive  executive
Officer ~ Director ~ Director  Independent Non-executive Directors
UHEER
oAR  UhEE FanEs TRHES
Mr. Shum Ms.Ng  Mr. Cheung
Mr.Hung  KinWai,  MrHung  MrChan  YauKuen,  ChiKong
Sui Kwan Frankie ~ Hon Man Ka Kit Carmen Ronald Total
WEMEE ARMEE BEEE WRBEE ROBLL RELEAE EL
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HKS$°000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Téx  Téx  TEx  TEx  TEx  Tix  T#x
Fees g - - - 108 108 108 34
Other emoluments: Hm -
Salaries and other benefits (note i) B4 R AR (k) 670 469 - - - - 1,139
Performance and discretionary RRRBAETEA (W 3ti)
bonus (note i) 82 58 - - - - 140
Contributions to retirement R AR B 5
benefit schemes 18 26 = = = - 44
Commission E 575 57 - - - - 632
Total emoluments A 4 1,345 610 = 108 108 108 2,279
Notes: Wt 23

(i) The balances shown above for executive directors,
namely Mr. Hung Sui Kwan and Mr. Shum Kin Wai,
Frankie, were mainly for their services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group.

(ii) Performance and discretionary bonus is determined
with regard to the Group’s performance, the
individual’s performance and comparable market
statistics.

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan’s emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as an
executive director and the chief executive officer of the

Company.

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED &€ mEBER AR

() EFIA BT IE S (B 5 G
RS AR AR EE W
Be W G BRA N R e A S T 2
B B fR A 2 s -

(i) RERMIFIEALTI 2 IRALE M)
R~ (AN R B R w] H T 85 55
w1 e o

b 30 B 2 i E i o 2R B B A
B LA 22 w] 4T 2 2 AT BUARRR
Sy 2 O MR 5 2 B g
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEFE’
REMUNERATION - continued

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s remuneration

— continued

There was no arrangement under which a director or
the chief executive officer waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration in the years ended 31 March 2020
and 2019. In addition, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any of the directors as an inducement to
join, or upon joining the Group or as a compensation
for loss of office for the years ended 31 March 2020
and 2019.

(b) Employees’ remuneration

The five highest paid individuals of the Group
included one (2019: one) director of the Company.

The emoluments of the remaining four (2019: four)

highest paid individuals are set out as follows:

HE-_Z-_TF=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

14. EERTHRARKEEM=

— i

(a)

(b)

EERTHRAZME &

S 4 B =5 5k A7 B AR B FE kR &
MERE -F_FFER T
EZH =+ — H kA AT ] 5
2R W R F RF
K =ZFE—NFEZH=Z1+—HIE4E
FE > AR 4 [ 3 48 ) AT o] 2 2 S AT
P <5 > A 2% 1855 I SR AR 4R T 2 R
b B B HE 5 o BUAE £ Bk A 4R

éo

BEME

A 45 T A e e A R Nt rp—
B (ZF— U5 —1fs) AR
EH o

FEERPUAL (& —JU4F - UL B
[SE RPN el ot (L

2020 2019

—g=%%5| % NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T oo

Salaries and other emoluments 4 B Ho At 4 3,822 3277
Contribution to retirement VERN N AR IR

benefits schemes 72 54

3,894 3,327
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-T-TF=A=1+—HILFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 14 EERTBRARRESME
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEF’ —#&
REMUNERATION - continued
(b) Employees’ remuneration — continued b) EEME-&
The emoluments of the individuals are within the S5 2 T 42 A ~F- DA o [

following bands:

Number of individuals
EBE A"
2020 2019
—goeE | —FA%

HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 7T £1,000,000% 7T 2 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 JC 21,500,000 T 2
There was no arrangement under which the four it 48 19 {57 e e 380 1R I N A ik 3 sk
highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive R ENERE T FBER E
any remuneration for the years ended 31 March 2020 — L= H = — H IR AR
and 2019. In addition, no emoluments were paid by B 4 2 2Pk - DLk > AR 4R E R
the Group to the four highest paid individuals as an BOERCRER ZE—NFE=NH
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as = — H kAR R N A 6] PO
compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31 FE AN L AT 4 > 1E A S
March 2020 and 2019. Jin B A SR B 2 %&)\E&?‘Hf\
A 2y Bl A 1 <
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. TAXATION

The two-tiered profits tax rates regime have been
implemented from 1 April 2018, under which, the profit
tax rate for the first HK$2,000,000 assessable profits arising
from Hong Kong of qualifying entities will be taxed at
8.25%, and assessable profits arising from Hong Kong
above HK$2,000,000 will continue be taxed at the rate
of 16.5%. As only one of the subsidiaries in the Group is
eligible to elect the two-tiered profits tax rates, profits of
the remaining subsidiaries of the Group will continue to be

taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

For the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered

profits tax rates regime.

HE-_Z-_TF=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

15. B8

IS BB R W Bt =T — /N4
H—HREST > i, S EMEBR
s A 19 172,000,000 T ME 51 B i
FIHE LS. 25% 1 Bl B A A 45 B - 14
s AE 192,000,0009 0 LA _F A E SR
T ik 1L A 48 A 16.5% I B R B -
A AR 42 T 1 — T BB A W A A s A
PG BB R R G 2 G AEHHE
1% B 2 ) 2 R A A A 16.59% 1) )
— BB

BME - FE -FTER T JLE=H
= — H IR > A I 1S B4 R
1575 B0 2R W 4 ol 55

2020 2019
—BZEF | —EZ0E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T#TT
Current tax BN HA B 18
Hong Kong Profits Tax WG
Current year AN 33,240 56,277
Opver provision in prior years DL 4 J3E e A 458 A (1,825) (164)
31,415 56,113
Deferred tax IR SE TR
Origination and reversal of W I 22 B 7 AR R 43 ol
temporary differences (note 30) (B 5£30) 68 106
Income tax expense Fir 18- BH 7 31,483 56,219
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HE-T-TF=A=1+—HILFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

15. TAXATION - continued 15. HIE— &
Reconciliation of income tax expense SR ¥R
2020 2019
—g-eE | —F F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET T# T
Profit before taxation i Al 2= Al 171,265 189,274
Income tax at applicable tax rate 7 B ARG E 2 s 28,093 31,065
Tax effect of income not taxable AN HE R B IS 2 B B
for tax purpose (1,514) (747)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ANFT 0B SE 2 B R
for tax purpose 6,336 25,971
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised o T R o I s 48 2 B T o 2 - 996
Utilisation of tax losses previously B DA AR o i RRB TH S 4R
not recognised (72) -
Over provision in prior years DA 4F JE R A (1,825) (164)
Others HoAthy 465 (902)
Income tax expense for the year A A JEE BT A5 5 Bl 52 31,483 56,219
16. DIVIDENDS 16. IS
2020 2019
—EoRF | “FhEF
HK$’°000 HK$°000
FET T# T
Final dividend for prior financial year, EAT > b BB R R
paid — HK4 cents — B R4 (= F— U4 -
(2019: HK3 cents) per share VA 100,000 75,000
Interim dividend for current financial year, B 1} » 7% W BU4E BE 2 o I it E
paid — HK3 cents — BB (ZF— L4 -
(2019: HK3 cents) per share 3l 75,000 75,000
175,000 150,000

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March
2020 of HK2 cents (2019: HK4 cents) per share,
amounting to HK$50,000,000 (2019: HK$100,000,000)
has been proposed by the directors of the Company and is

BE_FZ-FF=HA=1T—HILFE
Z AR 2y Bus Al (= F —
A 43l > 3£ 5150,000,000% T (=
Z—JL4F 1 100,000,000 C) - ML ZH
i R Ji 5 SR AR R & AR R R
AHEHEFEE -

subject to the approval by the owners of the Company in

the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE 17.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

is based on profit attributable to the equity holders of the

HE-T-_TF=A=1+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

ZRAER
AR AR 2 I HE R T A i ) e 4
08 M R 49 P B o B M

Company and the weighted average number of ordinary ARPEERAF ZFTEANEWT
shares in issue during the year as follows:
Earnings i A
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AR
Earnings for the purpose of basic and P wEE B IR A R 4 v 2
diluted earnings per share Z thi A
Profit for the year attributable to AN T HE 35 B AL 4R 1R
equity shareholders of the Company T ] 139,716 132,980
Number of shares BB E B
2020 2019
’()0() ’000
TR T
Weighted average number of ordinary JH A 5 5B A R A R 4 T B R
shares, for the purpose of basic and Z IS 34 38 78 i B B
diluted earnings per share 2,500,000 2,500,000

Diluted earnings per share was the same as basic earnings
per share as the Company’s outstanding convertible bonds
had an anti-dilutive effect to the basic earnings per share
calculation. The computation of diluted earnings per
share for both years did not assume the exercise of certain
convertible bonds since their assumed exercise would result

in increase in earnings per share.

B 0 M B SR A g M AR TR
J?Iﬁzli"ﬂﬂiﬁélilTTﬁ%E&%#éﬁ
e REA B Z 5t B i 2 .
ﬁlfﬁftﬂxﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂzﬁgiﬂﬁxm
VR AT M S AT B o R R S
B E AT (8 46 2 B8 Bt ) 3
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HE-T-TF=A=1+—HILFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT / PREPAID

18. ¥R REFANHEEREN

LEASE PAYMENTS AND PROPERTY AND ' EFER
EQUIPMENT
Prepaid lease
ayments Property‘and fquipmcnt
RHERTE HEREH
Right-of-use
assets- Motor
Leasehold Leasehold Leasehold vehicles Office Furniture
Jand ) Jand Buildings  improvements andyacht  equipment  and fixtures Total
FREEE- ‘ . .
gt  HELH BT REYEEE REREE BOERE GARZE At
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSON0  HKS000  HKSON0  HKS000
T T T T T T T T
Cost or Valuation RAGEE
At 1 April 2018 RZZ—~N\ENA—H 103,780 - 35,840 8,438 30,660 12460 70 191,880
Additions RE - - - 307 - 537 38 882
Adjustment on revaluation BifRE - - 2140 - - - - 1,140
Disposal & = = - - - (250) - (250)
Write off s - - - (926) (536) (2,984) (151) (4597)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NEZR=T-H 103,780 = 37,980 7819 30,124 9,763 589 190,055
Comprising: af:
At cost e 103,780 - = 7819 30,124 9,763 589 152,075
At valuation A = = 37,980 = = = = 37,980
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-NEZR=T-H 103,780 = 37,980 7819 30,124 9,763 589 190,055
A1 Aprl 2019 R WA -] 103,780 - 37,980 7819 30,124 9,763 8190055
Tmpact on initial application of HUE AT B A
HKFRS 16 BleH yE (103,780) 103,780 - - - - - -
Additions RE = = - - - 120 - 120
Adjustment on revaluation HIHE - - (230) = = = (230)
Disposl hE - - - = (500) - = (500)
Write off i - - - (403) - (409) (39) (851)
At31 March 2020 RZEZZF=F=1-H = 103,780 37,750 7,416 29,624 9474 550 188,594
Comprising: ik
At cost e - 103,780 . 7416 29,64 9474 550 150,844
At valuation bt - - 37,750 - - - - 37,750
At31 March 2020 RZEZZF=F=1-H = 103,780 37,750 7,416 29,624 9474 550 188,594
Accumulated amortisation/depreciation 23T /1 E
At 1 April 2018 RZZ—AENA-H 32,030 - - 8,206 141 11,284 652 76,333
Charges it 2451 = 630 28 3,113 060 i) 7,111
Fliminated on revaluation Glilszie s = - (630) = = = = (630)
Disposal ih & - - - - - (250) - (250)
Wite off flié - - - (926) (536) 2,969) (151) (4582)
At 31 March 2019 REZ-NE=H=1-H 34,501 - = 7,508 26,718 8,731 524 77,98
Impact on nitial application of iR
HKERS 16 Gl e % (34,501) 34501 = = = = = =
Charges i = 2,450 1,344 100 3,167 579 16 7,656
Eliminated on revaluation Bl - = (1,344) = = = = (1,344)
Disposal hE = - - - (500) - = (500)
Write off s - - - (403) - (409) (%) (851)
At31 Mach 2020 RZEZFE=f=1-H = 36,951 = 7,205 29,385 8901 501 82,943
Net carrying values RAE
At31 March 2020 RZE-EE-B=1-A = 66,829 37,750 21 239 573 49 105,651
At 31 March 2019 REZ-NE=H=1-H 69,279 = 37,980 311 3,406 1,032 6 112,073
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT / PREPAID

LEASE PAYMENTS AND PROPERTY AND
EQUIPMENT - continued
Upon the adoption of HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019, the

prepaid lease payments are presented under property and

equipment — right-of-use assets (note 2).

The property interests in leaschold land and the buildings
thereon (including the whole or part of undivided share in
the underlying land) in Hong Kong of HK$104,579,000
(2019: HK$107,259,000) are held by the Group as the
registered owner. Those property interests were acquired
from the previous registered owners by making lump sum
payments at the upfront. Except for the variable amounts
to be charged by the government subsequently that are
reviewed regularly with reference to the rateable values, for
example, there are no ongoing payments to be made under
the terms of the land lease. At the end of the reporting

period, the remaining lease term is about 27 years.

The buildings of the Group were valued at 31 March 2020
and 2019 by Messrs. RHL Appraisal Limited (“RHL”) on
market value basis. RHL is not connected with the Group,
and has appropriate qualifications and recent experience in

the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.

In estimating the fair value of the buildings, the highest
and best use of buildings is the current use. In estimating
the fair value of the Group’s buildings, the management
of the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it
is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the
management of the Group engages third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation of the Group’s buildings.
At the end of each reporting period, the management of
the Group works closely with the qualified external valuers
to establish and determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for Level 3 fair value measurement.
The management of the Group would first consider and
adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived from
observable quoted prices in the active market. When Level
2 inputs are not available, the management of the Group
would adopt valuation techniques that include Level 3
inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair value of
the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to

the directors of the Company.

HE-_Z-_TF=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

18. MERRE AN HEEREU

KMERZRE-&

R T JUET H — H R A s B
A5 ME R B 165 1% > TE AT B EKIE R
YR — A REE ETH T 251 (ff
EF2) o

104,579,000 6 (= & — JL4F ¢
107,259,000 7G) 114 7 s FHL 6L + b J2
AR Y R R (B35 AR B
2 F B A A B 4y E YRR i AS 4
VERBREERA - ZEWEMRTY
PART A — A oy K Al B st 3+
Wi B o I BURT 4% 8 2 1R R S 2= i A
{8 5 4G ST BT W BURY V7 B & EE A > B
s AR AR B AR K > 0 M RE A AT
oo REHIR - SR T BEIA 5
274F o

AL 2T TG K AT YR R R A
R ([RFAT]) R F _FER
CE-NFE=ZA= T B E R
HEAT A E o K R 47 F B A 42 [0 SIf 4 B
o B A B M R A B
B Y 3 2 AL E RS -

G T T Z A AR > BT Z R
Lo fe £ ViR 2 B R & o AR SR F I
B ) PP S T 3 LB Y MR AR
AEAG A SR B AR T 0 FU(E © %5 1 i
AT RS > A 4 ) A L A 6 2R
=07 A B B R A R Al A 4R T 1
Foo JA R R IR - AR SR A B
& B AN 5 AR W R A A S
[A] AT 32 K TR E T 5 B WAl 7 v M A3
2N SAEFH R A A o A SR [ 9 B TE
BHEEELRAE2EEA - A
Ty AR A I B T AT B B AR A% o
R 2R AN R AR 4R B Y A
i 5 bR )B4 16 55 3 i A P Y RE A
Trik o EEEMN A SRALE KR
53 58 1) Je IR {6 BRE S AS 4 W) #E o
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HE—

—EF=A=+HLFE

Year ended 31 March 2020

18.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT/PREPAID
LEASE PAYMENTS AND PROPERTY AND
EQUIPMENT - continued

One of the key unobservable inputs used in valuing
different buildings in the Group is the unit sale rate,
which is ranging from approximately HK$6,000 per square
foot to HK$30,000 per square foot (2019: approximately
HK$6,000 per square foot to HK$32,000 per square foot),
taking into account age, location and other individual
factors such as size and levels of building. A decrease in
the unit sale rate would result in decrease in fair value
measurement of the buildings by the same percentage

decrease and vice versa.

Buildings are classified as Level 3 under fair value hierarchy
at 31 March 2020 and 2019. There were no transfers into
or out of Level 3 during years ended 31 March 2020 and
2019.

If the buildings had not been revalued, they would
have been included in these consolidated financial
statements at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses of approximately
HK$16,363,000 (2019: HK$16,963,000).

The Group had pledged certain leasechold land and
buildings to secure banking facilities granted to the Group
during the year. Details of the pledges are set out in note 38

to the consolidated financial statements.

18.

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED #&#F&m&EBERAT o

MERFRE/ ASHEREN
SR/ Y S R

A 45 (8] S [) A% A% {E T ) B H A — T
I%ﬁ{i%”ﬁgwﬁ?\%&% VAR e

AT 4957 6,000 45 70 2 A7 7 IR
30,000%%73 (ZF—JUE - H18 TR
6,000% JC 2 &7 5 IR32,000% 70) ) >

B RS b 0 A 4 R R
R (B AR /DAMETE) o B8 65 (H

A R T 2 N A (EE R AR A F
T BB TR R R Z IR

M_B_ZER_F—-NLE=R
=+ —H o MTEANRL LN REREE
B3 ARME_F _ZFER TN
FEZAZ IR E RN M =
B A3

1 25 8 S AE E AL > B AR T e R
SR A B T 8 K 2 G (E S 1R
DL %716,363,000% 76 (— & — JL4F :
16,963,000%5 7G) 75 45 & W £ 51 i -

A H A AR A B A T A B b S ik
FHHR o A5 AL B R Ta%%ﬁ
AR o A BT 2 RE S R A A
TP 5 R B 538
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BHE_ZT_ZTF=A=+—HLEE

Year ended 31 March 2020

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. B &E
Trading rights
in Stock Club
Exchange  memberships Total
B 3T At
2R == &t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T TT T TT T TT
Cost D%
At 1 April 2018 N _F—/NFEMH—H 2,172 6,709 8,881
Addition s B - 3 3
At 31 March 2019, W E—JL4E
1 April 2019 and =H=+—H"
31 March 2020 “EX—RFMA—H
N_B_FF
=BA=+—H 2,172 6,712 8,884
Accumulated impairment losses R 51 5 {E &5 8
At 1 April 2018, A — A
31 March 2019, MH—H -
1 April 2019 and R
31 March 2020 EH=4—FH -
“EZ—JUFEMA—H
N=—B_ZFF
=BA=+—H 71 400 471
Carrying value IREE
At 31 March 2020 R-ZB-EF
=B=+—H 2,101 6,312 8,413
At 31 March 2019 nFE— A
=H=1—H 2,101 6,312 8,413
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HE—

—EF=A=+HLFE

Year ended 31 March 2020

19.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - continued

The management of the Group determined that certain
trading rights amounting to approximately HK$500,000
(2019: HK$500,000) were no longer utilised to generate
profits to the Group. For the purpose of impairment
testing on these trading rights, the recoverable amount has
been determined based on secondary market prices and
no impairment was made at 31 March 2020 and 2019.
The recoverable amounts of other trading rights with
carrying value of approximately HK$1,601,000 (2019:
HK$1,601,000) held by the Group have been determined
with reference to the recoverable amounts based on a
value-in-use calculation. Details of the impairment test
on other trading rights are set out in note 20 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Intangible assets amounting to approximately
HK$6,312,000 (2019: HK$6,312,000) represent club
memberships. For the purpose of impairment testing
on club memberships, the recoverable amount has been
determined based on the second-hand market price less
cost of disposal. No impairment loss was recognised in
years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 with reference to the

recoverable amount of the club memberships.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the trading

rights and club memberships have indefinite useful lives.

19

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED &€ mEBER AR

BEEE-—&
AE@EEBRBRABE T HEEY
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EmMEE - N _F_FER_F—
FE=H =+ — Bl AE o A H R
M T {E 491,601,000% ¢ (& — JL
4 11,601,000 70) 2 HoAth 32 5 HEAY AT
Wl 48 - B2 % AT el R > AR
i B (T E Tk T R o HoAth 32 ) B
Z WA A I I R A5 S S R R M A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON OTHER
TRADING RIGHTS

Certain trading rights with indefinite useful lives set out in
note 19 to the consolidated financial statements have been
allocated to the broking cash generating unit (“CGU”) (see
note 8 of the consolidated financial statements for details
of segment information). The carrying amounts of certain
trading rights, net of accumulated impairment losses, at 31
March 2020 and 2019 allocated to the unit are as follows:

HE-_Z-_TF=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

20. 13X 5 8 2 B AE R

R &7 5 5 R B RE 192 5 T JE PR
7E fifl Fi4F 31 22 5 HE B 0 i 22 AR AL 2 T
Z AIBLEAL ([RVBLERAL D) (B B2 &
B2 w1 > W 2 B AR A B R I RT
8) o ML EaZ AL 2 T 5 HE (41
Br 2 FHRERER) R —F _FEL-F
—NE=ZA=Z+—HHOREELWT :

HK$’000
T
Trading rights: REE:
Carrying value at 1 April 2018, o E—)NENMH—H - ZF—ILF
31 March 2019, 1 April 2019 and “HA=+—H ZF—NFEWMWA—H
31 March 2020 SZBZBFZA=+—HZIRMEHE 1,601

The recoverable amounts of the broking CGU containing
certain trading rights have been determined based on
a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 5-year period and at a discount
rate of 12% (2019: 12%) and at zero (2019: zero) growth
rate. A key assumption for the value-in-use calculation is
the zero growth rate, which is determined based on past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of the assumptions would not cause
the aggregate recoverable amount of the broking CGU to
fall below the aggregate carrying amount of the broking
CGU.

21. OTHER ASSETS

Other assets mainly represent statutory and other deposits
with various exchanges and clearing houses and are

non-interest bearing.

BEETEHMEZ B A B AL 2 Al
Wi ] <5 B O AR B TE PR A (A AR Tk
JE o w% Rt A AR IR E M WA 2 LA
BABCTE B LL12% (& — JL4E © 12%)
BRI R E (CFENEF) 2
WRRMETB SN ETEN - HE 2 1
ERATERBEEF AR FEM/E -
TR R T RIE DA 2 R g
BT 2 W R o B A
5 o AR R B 2 A Ao] A 3R] R 2 i A
N SR AT A BB A 2 A R AT i (e
BHBBR AR B AL B RTHRTEE -

21. EthEE
oA & B AR RAT T RF 55 BT K
GEELRT 2 1k R A4 o A S
AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-T-TF=A=1+—HILFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

22. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

22. EWBRIE

2020 2019
—ECEF ZE I
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 51 FET T T
Accounts receivable arising from the BEEEERRELEZ
business of dealing in securities: JE i R IE
— Cash clients —HexF (a) 8,240 8,879
— Margin clients: —REBEEF : (b)
— Directors and their close family —HERNWEZRE
members Kk i B 313,568 167,189
— Other margin clients —HihfiEE R P 3,378,726 3,565,374
— HKSCC —HB&HE 369 -
Accounts receivable from futures WEEESHET T ELER
clearing house arising from the H %ﬁfé‘ &5 H P 2 REUIRIE
business of dealing in futures
contracts 12,282 3,390
3,713,185 3,744,832
Less: Loss allowances W B IR (148,318) (37,411)
3,564,867 3,707,421

The normal settlement terms of accounts receivable from

cash clients and securities clearing house are two days

after trade date while for accounts receivable from futures

clearing house are one day after trade date. All the accounts

receivable (net of loss allowance) are expected to be

recovered within one year.

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks and

loss allowance for ECL of accounts receivable is set out in

note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED #&#F&m&EBERAT o

%Wﬁ%%ﬁ& B 5 45 A 2 BRTE Y

ﬁ%ﬁx%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ M & i
%\MEWZ%EME R G
S HE—H - %ﬁ%%%ﬁ:mﬁﬁﬁ
) 2y E R — i e o

A B A B2 1 T 3 2 £ LBy DA R HE Wi
MRIEZ R S HE R 2 &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

Notes:

(a)

Included in the accounts receivable from cash clients
are debtors with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$546,000 (2019: HK$154,000) which are past due at the
end of the reporting period but which the directors of the
Company consider not to be impaired as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and a substantial portion

of the carrying amount is subsequently settled.

In respect of accounts receivable from cash clients which are

past due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period,

HE-_Z-_TF=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

22. B BRTE — 48

(a)

Ba%F 2 BRI T A5G A o
HAZK B 781 1 1 B 1A {6 49 % 546,000%5 76
(= —JLAF 1 154,000 0) 2 fEIS 3K
TH > MEZAR 2 ) 3 55 58 4 A BH 3k TR 0 48
(NS DR Sl E O Wl (== =
B K 8 ) 1 K A R T (E B R AR

fH -

3 IR (800 e (E 2
W B 4B % 5 BRIAN & AH B R 0 AT

the ageing analysis (from settlement date) is as follows: (H&E BHERD R :
2020 2019
= K
HK$°000 HK$000
FHET AR
0-30 days 0% 30K 438 141
31-60 days 31260K 1 1
Over 60 days A 60K 107 12
546 154

The accounts receivable from cash clients with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$7,694,000 (2019:
HK$8,725,000) are neither past due nor impaired at the end
of the reporting period and the directors of the Company are

of the opinion that the amounts are recoverable.

Accounts receivable from margin clients are secured by
clients’ pledged securities with fair value of approximately
HK$11,060,046,000 (2019: HK$13,791,493,000).
Significant portion of the pledged securities are listed equity
securities in Hong Kong. The loans are repayable on demand
subsequent to settlement date and carry interest typically
at a range from 7.236% to 9.252% per annum (2019:
range from 7.236% to 9.252% per annum) as at 31 March
2020. Securities are assigned with specific margin ratios for
calculating their margin values. Additional funds or collateral
are required if the outstanding amount exceeds the eligible
margin value of securities deposited. The collateral held can
be pledged and can be sold at the Group’s discretion to settle

any outstanding amount owed by margin clients.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 fF5§ °

R K > BRTENME A 457,694,000
J6 (= F—JLAF 8,725,000 70) 2
W B 4 % B 2 BRI 2 Slf7 406 1 1A I 0 3
{8 > AR/ B 58 5 A B KA 2 n] LA
e gl o

JEW RS &K FRHEYUEF 24K
PRI - AR SE 2 A REL
£511,060,046,000%5 76 (— & — JL4F :
13,791,493,0005 76) ° 7 5 L T fe A
FB AN B KA R I R A -
CECEEZA=Z+—H > FREXK
TE &5 H AR ZE 5 m IR 2K I R
F A Ay F-7.236)H 529,252 1 (&
— JUAF - AR R F A F7.236)H %£9.252
JE) FHE o w8 S5 TR 2 RS
LR DG AR s S - R B
HAEHIBEGFA BN B
SEME > MgEREFRMEFEIES
SRR o BT R 2 HCA 5 AT DA P
> T A 45 [ T 9 18 4% 2 45 DA &S T
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HE-T-TF=A=1+—HILFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

AR
ST

22. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued 22. EERTE - &
Notes: — continued [ . |
(b) — continued (b)y —4#4
Included in accounts receivable from margin clients arising IR Gy S A FEWR B R E P
from the business of dealing in securities are amounts due BRIE > LG R B Rk B
from directors and their close family members. The details K wEEWTE -

are as follows:

Maximum amount Market value of pledged
Balance outstanding securities
& REAEESHE EfES2HE

During
During the the year

At At At year ended ended At At

1 April 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

Name 2018 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020
ED S

IS B ZZ0F ZBIER S iy

R ZF-RE ZBoRE =H =R SR ZRCRF

“ENE =i =R =t—H Z=t-HLt =R =R

3 mWA-A  =t-H =t-A 154 f€ =t-H  =t-H

HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T T TERL T TER T TER

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan, it 3 0 5 2

director of the Company ~ (AARHH) &k

and his close family ZRARME

members - - 13 1,312 956 9,762 14,123
Mr. Hung Hon Man, LB S

director of the Company,  (AARHH) »
his close family members B E R &M A K

and a controlling entity  — W #E | HHE 22,469 167,018 313,555 227,807 316,559 2,856,393 1,414,158
M. Shum Kin Wai, ARk

Frankie, director of the (RARESR) K
Company and his close Yy 3138

family members - 171 = 171 103 5,607 -
The above balances are repayable on demand and bear o 7= o | A
interest at commercial rates which are similar to the rates HAf AR 35 4 % P 4R i > FI R A
ffered to oth in clients. N h
offrered to other margln clients E‘ E/(J —I_;E’__‘—[ %*IJ %ﬁ‘l‘lw\ o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-T-_TF=A=1+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23. ANRE e REMERRK
RECEIVABLES 15

2020 2019

—E-ERE —E—JLE

HKS$’000 HK$°000

FEx T T

Prepayments A A B 1,257 1,530

Other deposits HoAth % 4 798 1,347

Other receivables HAth R i 2k B 90 50

2,145 2,927

All balances are expected to be recovered within one year
except for deposits of approximately HK$798,000 (2019:
HK$1,347,000).

T A &5 A TEIH R — AF R > HERY
798,000% 7 (=& — JU4E : 1,347,000%5
JG) Z IR & BRAb o

24. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 24, BERE
2020 2019
HK$’()00 HK$°000
FHT T T
Held for trading, at fair value BFIEEE  BARE
Equity securities — listed in Hong Kong el T i N 104 170
25. BANK BALANCES — CLIENT ACCOUNTS 25. RITHBR-—FFIRF

26.

The Group receives and holds money deposited by clients
and other institutions in the course of the conduct of the
regulated activities of its ordinary business. These clients’
monies are maintained in one or more segregated bank
accounts. The Group has recognised the corresponding
accounts payable to respective clients and other institutions
(note 27).

BANK BALANCES - GENERAL
ACCOUNTS AND CASH
The amounts comprise cash held by the Group and

short-term bank deposits at market interest rates ranging
from 0% to 1.5% (2019: 0% to 1.5%) per annum.

26.

A B2 B J P ST A I R AT 2
T B T BN R A R A
RIS - WHEEFEFHIAETIFR —
il B8 2 i 73 SLERATHR P o AR 4R A
M 1] A7 B B 5 % A B S A 2 K
TH (Bft 5E27) -

RITEH - —REFRRE

ARFEEHEAEEEA 2 B4

T 4% i1 35 R 2R (4 FI| 2R Ay ?of%w@
(CFE—J4E 0 EE1.5H)) st B2
HIERAT AR K o
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BHE_Z%

—EF=RA=+—HIEFE

Year ended 31 March 2020

27. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

27. B BRIE

2020 2019
—EDRF | _FhF
Notes HK$’°000 HK$°000
Wt FERT T#T
Accounts payable arising from the HWHREHEEGPEEZ
business of dealing in securities: JEAT R 1A -
— Cash clients —HexF (a) 105,081 119,718
— Margin clients —REEEF (b) 351,749 1,041,015
~ HKSCC —HEAE (a) 7,673 25,586
Accounts payable to clients arising HMEEHEEEG T (o)
from the business of dealing in 7E A 2 A %% P AR IA
futures contracts 13,972 9,884
478,475 1,196,203

No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of

directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does not give

additional value in view of the nature of business.

(@)

(b)

(©)

The normal settlement terms of accounts payable to
cash clients and securities clearing houses are two days

after trade date.

Amounts due to securities margin clients and futures
clients are repayable on demand and carry interest
at 0.25% (2019: 0.25%) per annum. Included in
accounts payable to margin clients arising from the
business of dealing in securities are amounts due to
directors of the Company, their close family members
and a controlling entity of approximately HK$247,000
(2019: HK$1,000).

Accounts payable to clients arising from the business
of dealing in futures contracts are margin deposits
received from clients for their trading of futures
contracts on the Hong Kong Futures Exchange
Limited (the “HKFE”).

outstanding amounts over the required initial margin

The excesses of the

deposits stipulated by the HKFE are repayable to

clients on demand.

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED #&#F&m&EBERAT o

BWIREB ZME > AN R ERB IR
i 73 A7 Sl S RE AN o PR L S 45 R
SR o A o

(a)

(b)

()

FEAS B % 5 T ¥ O3 &5 06 BT 2 iR
JEMIEH A3 AA5 FARW A -

RBHERBEEEE LIWEFF K
TH ZH0 A 22 oK R B R 0 H 420,258
(T F— U4 : 0.25)E) Z 4F &
ah S o W 5 E E N E A 2 AT
R84 % FHRIE b A48 AT A
ANFEESE HEZBERERE
T A B HE B AKIE 247,000 I
(ZZE—JU4F : 1,000 0C0)

{11

MEEHMEEXET T ELE BN
HFMRIE > AR W& F SORBLE
HHEM B S A RS A (T2
) BEM B S H 2 RE S %
& o IR ST B B B % 2 W04
PR & 4% & 2 W AR IR R R - H
% P EOR IR AR -
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HE-T-_TF=A=1+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

28. ACCRUED CHARGES AND OTHER 28. Bt E AR EMENRIE
PAYABLES
2020 2019
—B-BE| —“FhHE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T Tkt
Accruals JEsHE 3,162 3,689
Other payables Al A5 2 TE 2,212 4,754
5,374 8,443
29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 29. AT AR E S

On 1 September 2017 (the “Bond Issue Date”), the
Company issued convertible bonds, with coupon interest
rate of 2% per annum, in the principal amount of
HK$525,000,000 (“Convertible Bonds”) to not less than
six independent placees who were professional, institutional
or private investors and whose ultimate beneficial owners
were independent third parties. The coupon interest is
accrued at the outstanding principal amount of Convertible
Bonds and shall only be payable by the Company to the
bondholders once every six months from the Bond Issue
Date if Convertible Bonds are neither converted during
the conversion period nor redeemed prior to 1 September
2019 (the “Bond Maturity Date”). Convertible Bonds can
be converted into maximum 500,000,000 ordinary shares of
the Company at a conversion price of HK$1.05 per share.
The conversion period commenced from the Bond Issue
Date up to and including the date falling on the seventh day
immediately prior to the Bond Maturity Date.

Mo F—tF LA —H ([EHBT

) > AN AL AN DA TS 45 08 SR T

N (B2 R AREE > Hix
BERWA NS =0 B4R %
% /5525,000,00035 7T 2 2 )8 22 5 AT i
&% (TS ) - 258 Fl R ny
W EH R ERASHBAR Tﬁﬂfﬁ%
B 5 5 1 # F8 10 A0 o A 4 3 —
—WFENHA—H Z A1 R R ([E 5
FIHAHE D) > R B S581T H RS
ANEH B AN MEHRRFEE N o
AT 4 B A 25 BT e R A8 45 A 1.05%s T
4 1% B 191500,000,000 A% A< 72 7] 3 48
o M ESBITHMLEG  BEE
ROEEEEHFDIMAMSE LHEA
1AM -
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HE—

—EF=A=+HLFE

Year ended 31 March 2020

29.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS - continued

At initial recognition, Convertible Bonds were separated
into a liability component and an equity component
representing the conversion options of the bondholders.
The fair value of the liability component and the value of
the equity conversion component were determined at the
Bond Issue Date. The fair value of the liability component
was calculated using a market interest rate of 5.94% per
annum for instruments without a conversion option of
comparable credit status which is referenced to professional
valuation conducted by an independent professionally
qualified valuer. The residual amount, representing the
value of the equity conversion component, has been

included in the convertible bonds reserve.

As the fair value of Convertible Bonds was determined
using valuation models for which involved unobservable
inputs, the day-one loss, which represented difference
between the nominal value and the fair value of Convertible
Bonds at the Bond Issue Date, was not recognised in profit

or loss immediately but was deferred.

The carrying value of the liability component and the
equity conversion component of Convertible Bonds is
net of the deferred day-one loss which is allocated to the
liability component and the equity conversion component
on the same allocation basis of the allocation of the fair
value of Convertible Bonds. The deferred day-one loss
in the liability components is amortised over the term of
Convertible Bonds on the basis similar with the effective
interest method and included in “Interest on convertible
bonds” in profit or loss and the deferred day-one loss in the
equity conversion component will be accounted for in the

same basis as the equity conversion component.

29.

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED #&#F&m&EBERAT o

EmRESZ &

WA RERR I > AR R M B
o B R wR > AR ANZ
e HE o BEHER O 2 o Fo(E X HE i B
B ZHERFEFETHEE - A
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Ho HAMMHY 2~ R EMN G4
M5 4G > 92 % L S
EAK A (AT Z A A - BR
R R R 2 HE) B 5P A
RECY e L

AT e B S 2 O SR AR TS 6 W K i
Blgsm A SR 2 i EBEEE > B H
e 48y (R ] 460 5 £ 2 L % 8 1 25 84T
HZARMEZZER) > M50 R FFR 48

A 4 PR 2 RS 20 % M i A B
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS - continued

The effective interest rate of the liability component of
Convertible Bonds on initial recognition, which excluded
the impact of the deferred day-one loss, is 7.43% per

annum and is subsequently carried at amortised cost.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, Convertible
Bonds held by four bondholders of principal amount of
HK$262,500,000 were redeemed by the Company at the
redemption price of HK$262,500,000. The redemption
price was allocated to the liability component and the
equity component on the same basis as used in the
allocation of the fair value of Convertible Bonds at initial
recognition. At the date of redemption, the difference
between the redemption price allocated to the liability
component and the net carrying amount of the liability
component amounted to approximately HK$38,867,000
was recognised as a loss in profit or loss and the residual
amount of the redemption price of approximately
HK$17,811,000 was recognised in equity. Upon the
redemption of Convertible Bonds, the remaining amount of
the convertible bond reserves attributable to the redeemed
Convertible Bonds of approximately HK$88,499,000 was

transferred to retained profits.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, Convertible Bonds
of principal amount of HK$262,500,000 were matured
and fully redeemed by the Company at the redemption
price of HK$262,500,000 on maturity date, with no gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss. Upon the redemption
of Convertible Bonds, the remaining amount of the
convertible bond reserves attributable to the redeemed
Convertible Bonds of approximately HK$106,309,000 was
transferred to retained profits. No Convertible Bonds were
converted into ordinary shares of the Company up to the

maturity date.

HE-_Z-_TF=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

29. AT REZ - &

A E KRR I > AT MR I B AR
ZEBRAEFI R (MBRIELE & H s H 2 %
) 7. 438 > HARYLHE S R AS K -

BE - NLE=A=+—HIL£
BE > AN A DA [ {E262,500,000% JC
BN i S SN N i
262,500,000 JG ) AT 46 % f& 75 o [ ]
18 72 ) 4 T w8 57 ] R A8 35 N AU (B
Fict Fir F 09 A (] 25 Y 4y i 28 3 40 X
25 3B 43 o A R H O > AL E AR
T 43 1 1 [m] 1 BEL 2 i 40 A MR T VR
{H %138,867,000%5 JG 2 [H] 1Y 25 %8 ik 15
g PP RR 5 s 4R o i B [l A O R B 4
R £917,811,000% JC 76 # 45 T -
7V [ AT B AR 5 A% o LI ] AT 4R
15 55 HEAG 2 m] 2 % 5 5 it 2 SR BEL AT
88,499,000 7T . L 43 % 1R B5 i A o

BE T FHE=ZA=+—HIL%¥E
JE AR 4 B 15262,500,00095 JC 1Y 7] #
& 25 B 2 #9002 f A4S 2 A\ 3]
H $%262,500,000% 7T F) iE 5] {5 4 8
] 77 37 7 48 A5 B B2 UK 4 B 4R o
I ] T 4 B 75 4% > L ] ) T 4 A
& 25 M A A AT 6 I 0 5 5 R AL A0
106,309,000 JC E 4543 2= {5 84 %5 A -
BB H o S T A R R
AN A A
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HE-T-TF=A=1+—HILFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS - continued 29. TR R ESF &
The Convertible Bonds recognised at the end of the A - K T R 2 ] R B A 5 T
reporting period are calculated as follows: e
Gross Deferred Net
Amount day-one loss Amount
EEE B
A [F R
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F il it T
Liability component BENS
At 1 April 2018 A& — \4EINH —H 483,865 (133,025) 350,840
Interest expenses for the year: N R BB
Imputed interest expenses il LS B X 31,934 - 31,934
Amortisation of deferred RIE T H e 15 4 8
day-one loss = 64,741 64,741
31,934 64,741 96,675
Coupon interest paid / accrued Bt BFER (8,169) - (8,169)
Redemption of Convertible Bonds [ 1] 7] 46 Ji% & % (250,837) 45,015 (205,822)
(259,0006) 45,015 (213,991)
At 31 March 2019 and R_F— L
1 April 2019 ZHA=t—HRk
—E—NFENMA—H 256,793 (23,269) 233,524
Interest expenses for the year: FERFE R X
Imputed interest expenses i & F) 5 BE 32 7,909 — 7,909
Amortisation of deferred RIEE H e 15 4 8
day-one loss = 23,269 23,269
7,909 23,269 31,178
Coupon interest paid / accrued Bt/ BFER (2,202) = (2,202)
Redemption of Convertible Bonds A £I| /] Rl [ [ n] $#2 fi
upon maturity fE5 (262,500) = (262,500)
(264,702) - (264,702)
At 31 March 2020 R=-ZB-2F
=A=t+—H = - -
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS - continued

30.

“ra TR M R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-T-_TF=A=1+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

29. AT RE S — &

Gross Deferred Net
Amount day-one loss Amount
EEE B
R F R
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T# T T# T T# T
Equity component R
At 1 April 2018 W=FE—/FEMHHA—H 336,346 (123,727) 212,619
Redemption of Convertible Bonds i [7] A #f Ji & 75 (168,173) 61,863 (106,310)
At 31 March 2019 and —EF N
1 April 2019 =A=+—HxK
Z&F—AFMH—H 168,173 (61,864) 106,309
Redemption of Convertible i 3] 9 1R 5 (] w46 i
Bonds upon maturity & 25 (168,173) 61,864 (106,309)
At 31 March 2020 R=-F-FF
=A=1+—H - - -
DEFERRED TAXATION 30. JEAE B IR
The movements for the year in the Group’s net deferred tax DL 7 4 52 1) 22 0 A0 5 I 438 40 1 R R
provision were as follows: N ) -
Accelerated tax Revaluation
depreciation of properties Total
MEBIEFTE EMWE Gl
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T# T T#IT T#T
At 1 April 2018 W _F— /\@lﬂlﬁ —H 909 1,975 2,884
Charge to profit or loss for IR A 4 B 48 15
the year (note 15) (K EE15) 106 = 106
Charge to other comprehensive HI R A 4 B H Ath 4 T
income for the year I i - 457 457
At 31 March 2019 R _F— LA
=“H=+—H 1,015 2,432 3,447
Charge to profit or loss for IR A 4F B 4 4R
the year (note 15) (B 5E15) 68 = 68
Charge to other comprehensive FIBR A 4F B H At 2 TH
income for the year I %5 — 184 184
At 31 March 2020 R-Z2_%F
=Z=A=+—H 1,083 2,616 3,699
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Year ended 31 March 2020

30. DEFERRED TAXATION - continued
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated

31.

30.

unutilised tax losses of approximately HK$20,657,000
(2019: HK$26,380,000) available to offset against future

profits. The tax losses have not been recognised due to

uncertainty of future profit streams and may be carried

forward indefinitely.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax (assets)

liabilities for financial reporting purposes:

EESHE &

AR BAR > A< H A 420,657,000
gt (—FE—JL4E 1 26,380,000 70) Z Ak
o Bl B TE s 1R AT R DA B R B s
Fl o H A R g 15 A AR 0 B R AR
AT I 317 4 i R T s 48 K wT 4 PR HA &
o

EIEBLIH (CE ) B A B o 1 &
SHTAE

Assets Liabilities
BE af
2020 2019 2020 2019
—gzes | “ZAF| —ESEE| 3ok
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
TER THT TR SRV
Accelerated tax depreciation IR E (259) (259) 1,342 1,274
Revaluation of properties EXYYES - - 2,616 2,432
Deferred tax (assets) liabilities BRI (EE) B (259) (259) 3,958 3,706
SHARE CAPITAL 31. ®R&
Number of shares Amount
RHEE 8
2020 2019 2020 2019
SgogE | “FNk| —E-8F| SFOuE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER T TR SRV
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each B T 50,013 7T 2 8 At
Authorised: HE:
At the beginning and the end TR ) R 3 4 R
of the reporting period 10,000,000,000 | 10,000,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: CRITRAE
At the beginning and the end AR 1 B R 4 AR
of the reporting period 2,500,000,000 | 2,500,000,000 25,000 25,000
GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED #£#7< @5 BEHERAT e ANNUAL REPORT 2020 fFi§
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the

“Option Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution passed on 16

March 2016. The major terms of the Option Scheme are

summarised as follows:

(@)

(c)

(d)

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
attract and retain the best available personnel to
provide additional incentive to employees (full-time
and part-time), directors, consultants, advisers of
the Group, distributor, contractor, supplier, agent,
customers, business partners or service providers of the
Group and to promote the success of the business of

the Group.

The eligible participants of the Option Scheme include
any employee (full-time or part-time), director,
consultant or adviser of our Group, or any substantial
shareholder of the Group, or any distributor,
contractor, supplier, agent, customer, business partner
or service provider of the Group, who in the absolute
discretion of the Board of Directors has contributed or

will contribute to the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the relevant class of
securities of the issued share capital of the Company

from time to time.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares (250,000,000 shares) of the Company in issue.

HE-_Z-_TF=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

32. B RESTE

RAFRERIENR T —REZH N
H 288 2 2 P il 58 R AR — JELJ FBCHE &t )
([ f P Bt ) 1) o O F Bt ) 2 £ %
R anr

(a) W HERT BB AW 5| K IR B
BN H AR A (&
FeB) - EEH G A
P ~ 23 8 A~ R B~ SRR R
B~ BF - 1 20 A SUIR F it
JE 7 4R {3 A A1 5 ) DA R i B A 4R
HESE Y IRRES

(b) JEBHERH B 2 & B2 B AR
EFFRLEBHMNEER SO
SO AR 4R B AR R 2 AR 4R
B AT A R B (5 0 ol e k) ~ T
S PN e S R
] 3 R ~ AT ] 43 8 7~ R
LR BERER - AUH B
S BUIR TS BERE R

(o) RIAT fo AR 4% I e MEE i ) B A 42 1)
2 AT o] L Al B e M T ) BT AR M
W) R AT 2 BT A 1 s RE T m] B ZE
TEITZRAEE EREF AT
B AN ) R R BB AT AR AT
Al 5 B 3% 25 BRI 2 30% ©

(d) PRI AT o R 4% I G o) % A £ 1A
AT Ao At W R S ) BT AR S 2
JIT A JBCHE T R BB ZH T 8 AT 2 K
HFE EE I N C v /N w4
T 210% (250,000,000 %
fy) o
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Year ended 31 March 2020

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

(e)

®

()

(h)

()

The total number of shares issued and which may
fall to be issued upon exercise of the share options
granted under the Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group (including both exercised
or outstanding options) to each participant in any
twelve-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued

share capital of the Company for the time being.

There is no minimum period required for the holding

of a share option before it can be exercised.

A share option may be exercised at any time during a
period to be determined by the directors, the period
may commence on a day after the date upon which the
offer for the grant of share options is made but shall
not be later than ten years from the date of grant of the

share option.

The acceptance of a share option, if accepted, must be
made within 7 business days from the date of the offer
of grant of the share option.

The exercise price of a share option must be the higher

of:

(i)  the closing price of the share of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations on
the date of the offer of the grant;

(i) the average closing price of the share of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer of the grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the share of the Company.

The Option Scheme will expire on 15 March 2026.

There was no share option granted to eligible participants
during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019. There

were

no outstanding share options at 31 March 2020 and

2019.

32. BIRERTE-&

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED #&#F&m&EBERAT o

(e)

®

(8)

(b)

(i)

()

T AT ART 1240 H S0 fD R 4 o AR 48 O
e M T 1) e A% A A T HE A B B
RE 3 By % ) 2 i e > T 2 )
2 B P AT KT REZH 1) 4% 2 B
AT Z By BB ( I—Jﬂ%%@?ﬁa
5 B o AR A (I P T )
AN R IR 3 ExZIKZI%o

JES 8 ol I e R 22 A AT 1 A T
SRR A B BB 2 A I BR -

Jil e HE T S S i 2 TR A
BE R AT 66 > 52 IR ZH b SR 42 T
FERHE R N 2 B =
1 9 PR AR 4 O JiE o

S5 B 35 G042 0 T A > B ZE S 4R
452 T B IR A e R S A
26 F K A R o

WS b 2 AT BB B N B =&
ZEREH

(i) 4@ BT A HE e H A
B g B 2 8 H IR R T s 2
A W) BB A W T A

(i) HWBEHRZTIHBMEERD
WA TR 22 5 B AE B B 2
B H R AE R PR 2 AN T
TP i 8 5

(iii) A2 ] B4 T -

F e HE M A — %
+ 5 H W -

NE=ZR

RBE R BER - JEZA
E+ea¢$rﬁmmA§%,h

FAZ R o R

TER

—NFE=HA=+— Hiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁz
[T BB o
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HE-T-_TF=A=1+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2020
33. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 33. Hw R & REH
Details of the changes in the Group’s liabilities from AEEEMESEHELEZ AEZEH)
financing activities are as follows: A

Year ended 31 March 2020

BE_ZT_ZF=-A=1+t—HLFE

Non-cash changes

FEEEH
At Net At
1 April cash Interest Interest 31 March
2019 flows expense accrued 2020
i
i —EBCERF
—E-AF =R
MA—H HBERFHE MNERX ZFAE EF=[
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAERT THER THER TAERT TAERT
Loan from ultimate A e A
holding company 2B - (1,024) 1,024 - -
Bank borrowings AT E - (779) 779 - -
Liability component of [t fEF 2 £ &
convertible bonds oy 233,524 (265,139) 31,178 437 -
Total liabilities from Tl T B A 2
financing activities A 5 A 233,524 (266,942) 32,981 437 -
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE_ZEZ—NE=HA=1+—HILFEE
Non-cash changes
FHEED
Loss on
redemption  Transfer to
At of  convertible At
1 April Net Interest Interest  convertible bonds 31 March
2018 cash flows expense accrued bonds reserve 2019
#
# By RN
R N\E ‘ (DR Y e =H
WA—H BemEs HMERX Z3AE EhzER fifi =18
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
T T T Ti#x T T T
Loan from ultimate KRB AT Z
holding company B - (82) 82 - - - -
Bank borrowings RITHEE 60,000 (60,127) 127 - - - -
Liability component AR R 2 B R
of convertible bonds 350,840 (270,232) 96,675 (437) 38,867 17,811 233,524
Total liabilities from MEmEELE &R
financing activities B 410,840 (330,441) 96,884 (437) 38,867 17,811 233,524
Details of convertible bonds are disclosed in note 29 to the A B T A I 2 wE1E WO 4R A RS
R M aE29 -

consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 ££$8 * GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED &€ mEBERA A 157



158

wr B BT 8 R B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE—

—EF=A=+HLFE

Year ended 31 March 2020

34.

35.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group has joined a pension scheme under the
rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately in an independently managed fund. The
Group has followed the minimum statutory contribution
requirements of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate
income. The contributions, amounting approximately
HK$708,000 (2019: HK$711,000), are charged to the
profit or loss as incurred.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure contracted but not
provided for, net of deposits paid, in
the consolidated financial statements in
respect of acquisition of a subsidiary

34. BRAKEF &

35.

B T B R TR A TR —
W8 2~ ml 2 B T A9 {E R 184 1)
BB (R E A& %)

A 45 8 AR 95 5 o M S B 4 T A%
Z B B R B H BT A S B SR B
Z BB K AR A RH ) (T FE & 5t#l)) -
AR R ¥ 2 G E B — 8 L
EITEA - $%@E$§%%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁt
PHE > A EMEESHABEA
B2 5% 3K o £ BLA1708,000% 7T (—
FE—JL4E 711,000 00) Z fHEEE R E
A R FE HR 25 0B -

BAREE

2020 2019
SE L
HK$’000 HK$°000
Fi#n Fi Tt
56,638 =

On 13 January 2020, King Joy Asia Limited (“King Joy”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a conditional sale and purchase agreement with Mr. Hung
Hon Shing, the father of Mr.
executive director of the Company, and the elder brother

Hung Sui Kwan, an

of Mr. Hung Hon Man, a non-executive director of the
Company and an executive director of GN Holdings,
in relation to acquire the entire issued share capital of
Red Eagle Securities Limited (“Red Eagle”) at a cash
consideration of approximately HK$62,838,000 (subject
to adjustment). Red Eagle is licensed corporation under
the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance with
regulated activity under Type 1 Dealing in Securities and is
a participant of the Stock Exchange. The principal activity
of Red Eagle is provision of securities brokerage services.
Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 13 January 2020.

At 31 March 2020, a deposit of HK$6,200,000 had been
paid and was reported as “Deposit paid for acquisition of a
subsidiary”. Upon completion of the transaction, Red Eagle
will become a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
Up to the date of approving these consolidated financial
statements, the transaction is not yet completed and subject
to the approval from SFC.

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED &€ mEBER AR

MRoEEFE—H+=H > ARHEZ
iﬁ%%"?ﬁ%iﬁdllﬁﬁﬁ"? [ B
i ) BRI e (BAN AT E S
iitia”%iﬂﬂﬁ’aiz LA e AN F) I AT
HREEER T E R E R
W) BT SL A R E R o A B LA
B4 018 4962,838,000% 7T (7] T 9 4%)
WV R A BR A A ([ ]) &3
CEATIRA « R EFUE S N E
BT B Rk > A A S A I G
KAL) ZHEIEE - AWK 2

B2 o VEIRY  EE R IR R R AR

HB%%’% 52 oy b A WOR A\ H A
“ECERE-H T =ZHEAM -

AEEBE=ZHA=+—H > B %M
1% 426,200,000 7017 71 1 A [ Uil — ]
B A Rl 2 EATHE 4 ] - 385 5E A%
R NN Do < T /NI
BEARLG G M HMEREMMER B > 3%

52 Ty A5 AR 52 B 8 o v B L o
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36. LEASES
The Group leases berth and staff quarters for its daily

operations which are short-term leases and low value
assets leases with lease terms ranging from 1 month to 2
years. Certain leases provide the Group with an option to
terminate the leases after expiration of the first year with 2

months’ notice.

The Group has recognised the following amounts for the

HE-_Z-_TF=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

36.  HE

A G By HOW A R A & B T A
o AMMERENHE MEREEE
M HEMH —MHEWEALSE -
A A5 T A A T AT R 45 R AR i
A% 2 i AR A 48 0 A 1R AL

AL H B R AF R RERE LA T S8

year:
2020 2019
—g=%%5| —% A%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T

Lease payments: FH & A5 K
Short-term leases EERi YN 899 =
Leases of low value assets REEEEME 282 -
Operating lease payments 28225 0 B AT 3k - 1,235
Expenses recognised in profit or loss TE 48 £ P e 52 A0 B S 1,181 1,235
Total cash outflow for leases FH& Y B 4 0 o Al 1,181 1,235

Commitments under leases

At 31 March 2020, the Group was committed to
approximately HK$74,000 and HK$513,000 for short-term

leases and leases of low value assets respectively.
At 31 March 2019, the Group had total future minimum

lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases,

which are payable as follows:

Within one year —4E R

Vil -

AR DEE=ZA=+—H AEH
1 A B SR B (S A R R
W53 A 49 55 74,0009 76 12513,000% G ©

AR NE=ZA=+T—H A4%H
AR A AT f8 8 6 7 AL B 9 R AR e (AL
B AT A 2 AT

HK$°000
TH T

121
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HE-T-TF=A=1+—HILFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

37. BANKING FACILITIES

38.

At 31 March 2020, the Group had banking facilities
totaling HK$905,000,000 (2019: HK$905,000,000)
granted by financial institutions in Hong Kong. These
banking facilities are secured by charges over clients’
pledged securities and certain of the Group’s properties and
by corporate guarantees issued by the Company. Details of
the Group’s pledged assets are disclosed in note 38 to the

consolidated financial statements.

At 31 March 2020, the Group had undrawn amounts
under these banking facilities of HK$905,000,000 (2019:
HK$905,000,000).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group
(note 37):

38.

37. BITRE

MRoFREZA=+—H  AEH
HE T s B M ME B 0 SR AT B A
% £5905,000,000%5 76 (=& — JLAF -
905,000,000 7)) ° 3% %5 ERATRLE LK
J5 1B 0 S B A AR T s T AR
FEAR > Sl p AR 28 B A RS AR AE
MR - AL E K& E RS R 4
G BB R R MY 538 Bk o

M- F_LZF=H=+—H &%
B Rz S SRATREE TH T B RIR IR &
% £5905,000,000% 76 (— & — JLAF :
905,000,000 7)) °

AEERHA

AT BRME 2 & O AR > fEAA
4 B SRAT (5 BR B (B 5E37)

2020 2019
—E-®E | T 0AF
HK$°000 HK$’000
TERT T T

Hong Kong GRS
Leasehold land 0 &+ #h 66,583 69,024
Buildings BF 36,190 36,430
102,773 105,454

In addition, the Group’s banking facilities are also secured
by charges over clients’ pledged securities of fair value of
approximately HK$554,854,000 (2019: HK$484,182,000)
at 31 March 2020 and corporate guarantees issued by the
Company.

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED &€ mEBER AR

o> R FZFRE=H =+—H>
AEHZBITEEEISAEAARBELY
£5554,854,000% 70 (= F — JL4F :
484,182,000%5 70) 2 % F O K4 78 75 LA
R AN A8 N A LR AR FE A o
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HE-T-_TF=A=1+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. BEALR S
In addition to the transactions/information disclosed % 454 B 15 3R 35 A 30 10 BT 3% 5% 2 3¢
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, during 5 G RN A4 A AR AT LR
the year, the Group had the following transactions with b NG

related parties:

(a) Transactions (a X5
Name of related party Nature of transaction 2020 2019
BEALHEE8 REHE ZBIBE | CEE
HK$’000 HK$000
TER Tt
Directors of the Company and their close family members Brokerage commission 878 2,903
income (note i)
AarEEUREEZ REXRKA AR EIA (HFED
Messrs. Hung Hon Man, Shum Kin Wai, Frankie, Hung Sui Kwan
and their close family members and controlling entities
WS SRR - BRSO DR B 2 R
RIRINE R EEH E
Key management personnel and directors of GN Holdings Brokerage commission 37 68
and their close family members income (note i)
Bl e TRERANBREFURBE L REREN A AR A (MFaED
Messts. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony, Kam Leung Ming,
Cheng Wai Ho, Ng Hon Sau, Larry and their close family
members and controlling entities
BREEE - HEbed  BEEEA  RBRELEUR
(¥4 STV EL N L
Directors of the Company and their close family members Interest income (note i) 15,816 9,899
AAAEFURGEZRERENE FLEBOA (B3Ei)
Messrs. Hung Hon Man, Shum Kin Wai, Frankie, Hung Sui Kwan
and their close family members and controlling entities
WS AR - W R DR B 2 B
R R R
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HE-T-TF=A=1+—HILFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - 3. BEALTRS &
continued
(a) Transactions — continued (@ XZ-#&
Name of related party Nature of transaction 2020 2019
BEALHEE8 RatE ZBEIEE | CENE
HK$’000 HK$000
TER T#T
Key management personnel and directors of GN Holdings Interest income 11 11
and their close family members (note ii)
RN EREHARRERURNE 2 RER RN A FLE A (B 3Eii)

Messrs. Kam Leung Ming, Cheng Wai Ho, Ng Hon Sau, Larry and
their close family members and controlling entities

HIEWIEE B - RBREEURBEL

BRI R
GN Holdings Management fee 2,520 2,520
income (note iii)
B PE IR [2E IR LR N
(Mt i)
GN Holdings Loan interest expenses 1,024 82
(note iv)
R IRy BB X
(Pt Eiv)
Notes: i
(i) Commission was charged at 0.1% to 0.25% (2019: () HEHELHBEBEZ01%E
0.1% to 0.25%) on the total value of transactions. 0.25% (" FE —JL&E : 0.1% £
0.25%) YCHL
(ii) Interest was charged at 7.236% to 9.252% per (i) FEBIREES SR RMEEL
annum (2019: 7.236% to 9.252% per annum) on the B MR 4HE7.236%%9.252% (%
outstanding balances of margin loans. — JU4E © 7.236%%9.252%) Z F|
ESlg e
(iii) Management fee income was earned from GN Holdings (i) & PR WA T AL ZE B 0 ()
for office areas sharing. S8 Do 2 RO R TR
(iv) Loan interest expense was charged by GN Holdings at (iv) B R B B S ) 4 4R R 229 K
2% per annum outstanding pursuant to the revolving WA —F—LEALA T
loan facility agreement dated 19 May 2017. 22 478 B 0 Il o e 2 o

B H A5 1 42 SBE SO o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS -

continued
(b) Remuneration to key management personnel

The remuneration of members of key management,
other than directors as disclosed in note 14 to the

consolidated financial statements, was as follows:

Salaries and other benefits

< e At 47 A

Retirement benefit scheme contributions 8 /K48 #1] 51 #

HE-_Z-_TF=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

39. EALTRE &

b) FEEEAEZHM
BRiE 6 B R M 14 BB 2
WS FEEEA B ZHM W
T

2020 2019
—E=BF | T NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T Tt
2,991 3,098

73 72

3,064 3,170

The remuneration of directors and other key
management personnel is determined by the

performance of individuals and market trends.

40. ACQUISITION OF NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS IN A SUBSIDIARY

On 21 January 2020, the Group acquired the remaining
49% equity interests of Get Nice Silk Road Investment
Limited (“GN Silk Road”) at a cash consideration of
HK$170,000. GN Silk Road is incorporated in BVI and
its principal activity is investment holding. The acquisition
was completed on the same date. Upon completion of the
acquisition, GN Silk Road and its subsidiary, Get Nice
Asset Management Limited (*GNAM”), (the “GN Silk
Road Group”) became wholly owned subsidiaries of the

Company.

The carrying amount of the non-controlling interests
in the GN Silk Road Group at the date of acquisition
was approximately HK$170,000, which represented
proportionate share of carrying amount of net assets of the
GN Silk Road Group derecognised with no gain or loss
recognised in the retained earnings attributable to equity

holders of the Company.

T % H A A BN B 22
AL N R KT i S E

40. Wi — B & R RV IR IR I8

m

RoERE—~H +—H > A%EH
DL E 4 R 15170,000% T i I &5 47 4%
BB R A (5544 8% ) 1 H
49% FEAE o &5 Ut A I 1 5 B O L B S
i Sr > HFEER AR AR - Ik
WA TR H 58 o W 58 AR > A U
A5 I S EL B g N R A 4T A A P A BR
AT ([4EFEREER]) ([6FH%kE
B 1) %2 AR 2N F) Y A A D

T US4 A4 BR 4R ) T I RE
% 119 T {EL 49 2% 170,0005 76 > AR ERL
T T 5 4 LU A9 B A 465 4 44 B 4 [ 19 1
R AR AR > A R AR R A AT
i B R B Z8 ) NI 8 e A Aol i 2 B8 s

#H e
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HE-T-TF=A=1+—HILFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 41. X B 2 B Bk R &
OF THE COMPANY
2020 2019
—g=%E| % AF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i FET AR P
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries TANK B A 7 2 /& 196,042 196,042
Property and equipment VEY G 2 4
196,044 196,046
Current assets REEE
Deposits and prepayments e 4 T VAT IR 716 934
Cash and cash equivalents HEMREEEEH 192 3,218
Amounts due from subsidiaries JARE Wz ) 2 R i I 2,205,599 2,438,713
2,206,507 2,442,865
Current liabilities REBEE
Accrued charges =T 2 972 1,410
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREAST 66 JB 2 ) R T 213,087 180,414
Liability component of convertible AR 2 2 BRI
bonds — 233,524
214,059 415,348
Net current assets REBEERE 1,992,448 2,027,517
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,188,492 2,223,563
Capital and reserves BEXKFE
Share capital Jig A 31 25,000 25,000
Reserves It i 41(a) 2,163,492 2,198,563
TOTAL EQUITY B 2,188,492 2,223,563
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_Z-_TF=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 41. AR T 2B MRRK—E
OF THE COMPANY - continued

(a) Movements of the reserves (a) EEEH
Convertible
Share  Contributed bonds Other Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve profits Total
CE: 4

ke RARR REEG HUEFE RERA AR
Nows  HKS000 ~ HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
P&k TRR TRR TRR TEx TEx TER

Ac 1 April 2018 REF-\E
WH—H 375,407 1,486,951 212,619 195,942 83,349 2,354,268
Profit for the year REEREAN = = - - 12,106 12,106

Transactions with owners: BREEAZRS .
Contributions and distribucions ! & J 70k

- Dividends to owners —-HEFAZEE 16 - - - ~ (150,000 (150,000)
- Redemption of convertible ~ — 8 [ o 4 i (25
bonds 29 - - (106,310 - 88,499 (17,811)

Total transactions with HAEREEALRS

equity holders ot - - (106,310 = (61,501)  (167,811)
At 31 March 2019 REZF—NE

ZA=+-1 375407 1,486,951 106,309 195,942 33954 2,198,563

Profit for the year REERAN - - - - 139,929 139,929

Transactions with owners: BREEAZRS .
Contributions and distributions BRI

- Dividends to owners AR 16 = = = = (175,000) (175,000)
— Redemption of convereible I i i g el ]
bonds upon maturity B ES 29 - - (106,309) = 106,309 -

Total transactions with HERBEALRS

equity holders an - - (106,309) = (68,691)  (175,000)
At 31 March 2020 R-BZRF
=B=t-H 375,407 1,486,951 - 195,942 105,192 2,163,492
Note: At 31 March 2020, the reserves of the Company Wi 5 /\\:gigﬁizﬁ =t+—H i
available for distribution to shareholders were A ) 2 AT G IR T IR ik

5 % £52,163,492,000% 7 (—

approximately HK$2,163,492,000 (2019: T — LA © 2.092.254,000H
HK$2,092,254,000) which included share ) s L R O A~ B
premium, contributed surplus, other reserve and ik~ HAh e 5 S (R B4 3 A o

retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-T-TF=A=1+—HILFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 2. TENBLARFE
SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are AANFEZ EEMBAFFEHFNT
as follows:

Proportion of

Place of Class of Issued and fully paid nominal value of issued share capital Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held share capital held by the Company activities
MEDE AR EMALBE  FERGER BRTRAZRA ARAARAZERTRAAERD L TERH
2020 2019
Se L L
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
EE & HiE fi] %
King Joy British Virgin Ordinary US$1 100 - N/A - Investment
Islands (“BVI”) holding
Al YRR RER L B AR BB
GN Incorporated BVI Ordinary US$10,000 100 - 100 - Investment
holding
RREAHE  BER 10,000% 7 B R
Get Nice Securities Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,660,000,000 - 100 - 100 Securities dealing
(“GNS”) (2019: HK$860,000,000) and broking
Non-voting deferred HK$40,000,000 and securities
shares (note a) margin
financing
lf RS A R i 1 1,660,000,0007 7 o RE XA
([&ira %) (ZF-NE: ES YT £
860,000,000 ) e
Earey digidie 40,000,000 ¢
(W7t a)
Get Nice Currency Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1 - 100 - 100 Inactive
Exchange Limited
SR AR AR ik il 1T LS £5
Get Nice Capital Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 - 100 - 100 Corporate finance
services
EIREHRAA i Wk 10,000,000 ¢ LNV
Get Nice Futures Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20,000,000 - 100 - 100 Futures and
Company Limited options broking
EHMEERAF i Wk 20,000,000% 76 LEYE
ET
GN Silk Road (note b) BVI Ordinary US$10,000 - 100 - 51  Investment
holding
BB (M RED) RREAHE  BER 10,000% 7 B R
GNAM (note b) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$5,000,000 - 100 - 51 Asset management
services
W REEA (W) & Wk 5,000,000 ¢ B E R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES - continued

HE-_Z-_TF=-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

2. TEMBRAFRE &

nominal value of issued share capital

ARARAZERTRARER AL

Proportion of
Principal
activities

EXE S

held by the Company

Place of Class of Issued and fully paid
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held share capital
(il PR MR AERGEE BERTRAZRA
Steppington BVI Ordinary US$10,000
REELRE ik 10,000 72
NobleNet Limited BVI Ordinary US$1
RB LTS L 1R
Grace Field Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2
HEHARA R ik il 23T
Pacific Challenge Futures Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000
Hong Kong Limited
RTHEEMBARL T &b H 10,000,000 ¢
Get Nice Investment Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1
BB EARAR ik il 1
Bravo Nice Limited BVI Ordinary US$1
RB LTS L 1R
Dixten Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1
MIARA R ik il 1
Notes:
(a) The non-voting deferred shares, which are held by two

(0

directors of the Company, carry practically no rights to
dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at
any general meeting of GNS and on liquidation, the assets of
GNS available for distribution among the holders of ordinary
shares and the holders of non-voting deferred shares shall
be applied first in paying to the holders of ordinary shares
the sum of HK$1,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share and
secondly in repaying to the holders of non-voting deferred
shares the nominal amount paid up or credited as paid up on
such shares, and the balances of the GNS’s assets shall belong
to and be distributed among the holders of ordinary shares in
proportion to the amount paid up or credited as paid up on

such ordinary shares respectively.

Details of changes in ownership interests of subsidiaries are

set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

All subsidiaries are operating in Hong Kong.
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2020 2019

—E-EE

—-<—=%

Directly
EE

100

Indirectly

“E-pr
Directly  Indirectly
E:3 H# ES

- 100 - Investment
holding
REHER
Investment
holding
REHR
Property holding
MR

Inactive

100 = 100

Wing
100 - 100 Holding of yacht
FEH A
Investment
holding
REHR
Inactive
Wing

100 = N/A

A
100 - N/A
A

B 5E

(a)

(c)

M A A W 4 R 2 R AR
S RN B R b R A RS > IR S
WA B A58 T 5 2 AT ] e HROK & 48 45 B
JE KB s B o N TE RN &
g 78 5 ] I 3 R T A R R AN R 4

TR SE R N 2 B T A
AT A % 78 5 1,000,000,000,00035
JGZ AT S e A A > 4 A LA
TEH A B A 2 B8R B IR S 2
JE T (B T AR TR AR A AR A N o T
BT R SR 2 G R B R A IR
EDNEI 07 K e kS
42 BRSNS AU B 2 Uk o

B 2 ) AT M 4 2 S0 B R R R
fe e A R MY 40 o

i A7 WY T 2 R A A AR
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Year ended 31 March
BE=HA=+—HLEE

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
TR NE E—LHFE ZE-NE ZE-NE| —B-EE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T 0 T #5570 T#0 T 0 FHET
RESULTS E4
Revenue I %5 509,887 406,258 440,128 401,589 369,362
Profit before taxation B Fif i F1] 414,305 331,382 340,192 189,274 171,265
Taxation B TE (69,816) (57,322) (63,260) (56,219) (31,483)
Profit for the year 7 4F Ji i 344,489 274,060 276,932 133,055 139,782
As at 31 March
R=BA=+—H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
TE—NE ZE—LE —ZFE—)E FEFNE| ZEZEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T o0 SRV TH T Tt TR
ASSETS AND EEREE
LIABILITIES
Total assets AR 5,148,670 4,371,119 4,909,349 5,407,971 4,419,280
Total liabilities A (3,626,373) (749,692) (910,131) (1,442,040) (487,807)
Total equity HARE tn 1,522,297 3,621,427 3,999,218 3,965,931 3,931,473
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